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REEH

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

22nd Floor

World-Wide House

19 Des Voeux Road Central
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

BNP Paribas

China Construction Bank

China Merchants Bank

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Estera Trust (Cayman) Ltd.
Clifton House

75 Fort Street

PO Box 1350

Grand Cayman KY1-1108
Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.chinaconsun.com

STOCK CODE
1681

4 CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED EEHNZEEEEFRAF]

EBTELEXME
BB
EEE R 195
RERKE

2218

FEERRIT
REIERTT (B8) BRAE
SEBIERIRTT

P ERRIRTT

BRERTT

B T RERTT

BITIRT () GRAA

TRRODBFERTE

Estera Trust (Cayman) Ltd.
Clifton House

75 Fort Street

PO Box 1350

Grand Cayman KY1-1108
Cayman Islands

ERESERIRE

EBEPREBEEZLBRAR
BBET

SEANEER1835

AR T7IE1712-17 1658 4

AGE D

www.chinaconsun.com

g
1681



Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of Consun Pharmaceutical Group Limited
(the “Company”), | am pleased to present the audited
consolidated results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred as the “Group” or “Consun
Pharmaceutical”) for the year ended 31 December 2018.

l. THE GROUP’S OVERALL BUSINESS SCALE
REACHED RMB1.84 BILLION

In 2018, Consun Pharmaceutical Group embarked the
new development stage for the next two decades and
began the implementation of the “2018-2022 Strategic
Planning”. All Consun staff strived for the strategic goals
with hard work and proactive and pragmatic spirits.

The Group’s revenue amounted to RMB1.84 billion
and increased by 11.1% year-to-year in 2018. Among
which, the scale of our core business (excluding the
Yulin Pharmaceutical Segment) exceeded RMB1.2
billion. The Company recorded profit attributable to its
equity shareholders of RMB465 million, representing a
year-to-year growth of 17.4%, thereby rewarding our
shareholders with more remarkable results for their
dedicated trust and support to the Company.

Operating data of our core business (Consun
Pharmaceutical Segment) is as follows:

1) The sales of kidney medicines amounted
to RMB928 million in 2018, representing a
significant year-to-year growth of 13.9%.

2) The sales of products in the medical contrast
medium market amounted to RMB128 million,
representing a year-to-year increase of 6.9%,
which maintained Consun Pharmaceutical’s solid
market position in medical contrast medium for
magnetic resonance imaging.

Chairman’s Statement
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3) Women and children medicines continued the
rapid growth, with sales revenue increased by
18.2% year-to-year to RMB130 million, which
have become an emerging force that contributes
to our business results.

Operating data of Yulin Pharmaceutical Segment is
as follows:

1) In 2018, Yulin Pharmaceutical Segment recorded
revenue of RMB624 million, representing a
year-to-year growth of approximately 4.1%. Its
profits after tax amounted to RMB148 million
(including those attributable to non-controlling
interest shareholders and excluding amortisation
expenses of approximately RMB29 million
on consolidation of Consun), representing a
year-to-year growth of approximately 20.2%.
Among which, sales revenue of orthopedics
medicines amounted to approximately
RMB250 million, representing a year-to-year
growth of approximately 11.5%; sales revenue
of dermatologic medicines amounted to
approximately RMB222 million, representing a
year-to-year growth of approximately 0.5%; sales
revenue of Hepatobiliary medicines amounted to
approximately RMB111 million, representing a
year-to-year growth of approximately 8.5%.

Since becoming a controlling subsidiary of
Consun Pharmaceutical Group in July 2016,
a total of over RMB76 million was distributed
to Consun Pharmaceutical Group and other
non-controlling interests as dividends at a payout
ratio of approximately 30%.
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2) Industrial relocation from city to industrial
park made steady progress and the Chinese
time-honored brand gained new momentum.

The relocation of Yulin Pharmaceutical to the
industrial park has progressed smoothly. On
20 January 2019, Yulin Pharmaceutical held
the topping-out ceremony at the Yulin Chinese
Medicine Health Industrial Park. Currently, the
topping-out of 8 buildings in the north zone has
been basically completed and the construction of
the new zone has entered a new stage.

The preparation work for renovating the old plant
area also made certain breakthrough. The Group
has finalised the modes of land grants and
agreed on the conditions for cooperation with
relevant government authorities. It is currently in
negotiations for business partners.

3) The feasibility study and preparatory works for
the spin off of Yulin Pharmaceutical to the PRC A
shares market have been going well.

R&D AND INNOVATION

In mid-March 2018, Consun Pharmaceutical Group
received approval of the former China Food and
Drug Administration in relation to the clinical study of
its self-developed new medicine for diabetic kidney
disease. As of now, it has completed the pilot-scale
study and clinical study proposal (draft) for the
placebo. Research on institutions participating in the
clinical study is now underway and the production of
clinical samples will start soon. The new medicine for
diabetic kidney disease is a pure Chinese medicine
self-developed by Consun with modern advanced
technology, which will offer new alternatives to treatment
of diabetic kidney disease.

Chairman’s Statement

ERE®E

2) EREARRBIHEE FEZFHRK
BT -

IR e A\EBREREIE
F > 201941 208 » EM &L 284
TR s REXEEERT T
HEER - BRIEEATKEEIL
BORELENHIBETIIE HRER
BAFPEER -

ERMEBGENER TEHLRERHE
R EBFAEREBSPFTEE T L
HaE I EAREE T A ERA
EHERREIEEM -

3) NFREMBEBGEARTES EH
VR R EHE TIEIEB LA o

a9k

201853AF A REAFXEEAEHMH
MEEHEESRERRMEmEEE

PR ERRBRANIE - BEB A 25K
ZRBEPAMEMBRARTR (ER)
EREBMAERARATSEEN - AEEER
Rtk BEFETFERFAERLER
i B ERFEROAL P BB - #8 DA EREK
REREHIAERE

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 FHE#RE 7



Chairman’s Statement

ERBE

8

In late September 2018, the “Expert Consensus on
the Clinical Application of Kidney Repair and Edema
Alleviation Granules” was officially presented at the
2018 Academic Conference of Kidney Disease Division
of China Association of Chinese Medicine cum 31st
China Chinese Medicine and Kidney Disease Academic
Symposium. In accordance with prudent and scientific
principles, the consensus was reached by domestic
Chinese and Western medical practitioners, clinical
specialists in kidney diseases, pharmacologists and
statisticians, who had been invited by the China
Association of Chinese Medicine and the Expert
Committee for Chinese Medicine Development and
Research for Kidney Disease of China Association
of Traditional Chinese Medicine to consolidate and
analyze results of research conducted before and after
the launch of Kidney Repair and Edema Alleviation
Granules. Based on the origin of the “Yang-Raising
and Stomach-Boosting Decoction” (FF#i %)
formula, the clinical experience of Professor Zhang
Qi (a reputed Chinese Medicine master) and other
contemporary renal experts in integrating Chinese and
Western medicine to treat chronic glomerulonephritis
and nephrotic syndrome, and the latest clinical study
results, the “Expert Consensus” represents our wisdom
gathered from preliminary survey, consensus formation
and consensus refinement.
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In 2018, the Lanthanum Carbonate Project had a major
breakthrough and succeeded in the development of
active pharmaceutical ingredients and preparations
as well as the trial production of chewable tablets
and granules. On the other hand, the research on
production process and formulation of quality standards
were completed for the Ultrasound Micro-bubble
Contrast Medium Project. As micro-bubble application
facilitates precision treatment and enables treatment
and diagnosis at the same time, it has become a
notable field in the pharmaceutical sector and earned
the name “theranostic agents”. The Company has
established the first fully-enclosed automatic ultrasound
micro-bubble production line with mature technology
in both China and Asia, and it is expected to submit
clinical applications for products in 2020.

The revised 2018 National List of Essential Medicines
was finalised on 25 October 2018. Our flagship product
UCG remained on the list and our exclusive “Yuanli
Kang® - Iron-dextrin Oral Solution” was included for
the first time, thus leaving great room for imagination
of future business growth. In particular, Yuanli Kang®,
which is our key product for women and children,
has recorded a sales revenue of over RMB112 million
for 2018 and is expected to maintain a CAGR at
approximately 30% in the next three years, which is
attributable to the shift from sales through agency to
direct sales since 2015, as well as the nationwide sales
service network and professional academic promotion
team.

Chairman’s Statement
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ACTIVELY GAINING CAPITAL MARKET
EXPOSURE AND ADMITTED FOR STOCK
CONNECT

On 6 February 2018, Consun Pharmaceutical (1681.
HK) was admitted as a constituent of the Hang Seng
Stock Connect Hong Kong Index, effective from 5
March. Since then, mainland investors may purchase
our shares directly through the Stock Connect. The
admission directly enables us to gain access to more
diverse investors and effectively broaden the investor
base. It also enhances our stock liquidity and better

reflects the value of long-term investment in the Group.

Based on the latest information of Shenzhen-Hong Kong
Stock Connect from Gelonghui, the shareholding of
domestic investors has increased to 2.15% (3.5% at the
highest),

institutional investors’

which demonstrates domestic and overseas
recognition of the long-term
investment value of Consun Pharmaceutical and the
Chinese medicine industry.

THE GROUP RELEASED THE “2018-2022 TOP
STRATEGY”

Riding on the success of the five-year strategic
planning, Consun initiated Project Wildfire where the
sales force in ten major provinces made a collective
undertaking and drew up schedules for meeting the
sales targets of RMB100 million, RMB200 million and
RMB300 million in their respective provinces.

10 CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED EEX/FESEABRAA

—_ N

MEBHERELATES  BEEAERE
X5

xt

2018F2H6H ' RE A Z(1681.HK)E#
MABEBRBIESR DK - WHR3A5H
EREDR - AR EER ABRSRBE
EEERRERE EHEBRE  EEBS
BEESIAEMZ TIEMRES - BRIARE
JREEER  E—TRARERDE B
HHRMEENRIREEE -

BEERESBENMERER  RAKESE
R G EFE215% (RS E#E3.5%)
REHIERIMEBIREEHREHENSP
BEXRPKREEEMNR -

£ B [2018-2022 FEFTOPE; B |

REZEELFERAS  FRRIT
BR8] — +EBE - 1@@%% - 2H

TEEERERNITEHE TEEAR
TERBERBEIET 2B 1%\75
BRI -

CfRH
HE R



V. PROMOTING TALENT NURTURE AND TEAM
BUILDING ON MULTIPLE FRONTS

1.

After nearly a year of preparation, the job
qualification assessment was held at the OTC
Marketing Center in September 2018. A total of
366 employees took the written and practical
skills assessment on ten basic skills of regional
managers and five basic skills of marketing
officers over 19 days. 59 regional managers
and 294 academic representatives/business
managers passed the assessment.

The 6th promotion assessment for regional
managers and academic promotion officers was
held at the Prescription Drug Marketing Center in
November 2018. The talent assessment, nurture
and development system of the prescription drug
marketing team has become more mature after 6
years of refinement.

With the establishment of the job qualification
system and promotion assessment system for the
OTC marketing team, Consun Pharmaceutical
has developed an assessment system for
professional prescription drugs and OTC
promotion, which allows it to speed up the
building of a high-quality professional academic
promotion team for the five-year strategic
planning of the Group.

Chairman’s Statement
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Not only is the Group developing, it is also
evolving. The year 2018 was crucial for our
strategic transformation and upgrade. In the
year, we fostered employees’ full understanding
of themselves and the team, facilitated their
breakthrough from a long-term perspective
and identified areas of improvement which
they most need and recognise at the time in
a more effective manner. We also helped the
management to grasp the capabilities of team
members, explore their potential and formulate
development plan. Apart from that, agility and
core values training, 360 degree behavioral
assessments and other activities were organised
by the Human Resources Department of the
Company at the Group level to promote more
objective, fair and rational talent assessment.

In order to motivate the management and
employees, following the adoption of the vesting
of the 2016-2018 share options, the Company
granted a new tranche of 63 million share options
in total with a term of three years to certain
directors and employees on 2 January 2019,
and adopted the third excessive profit incentive
scheme for frontline salespersons, with the aim of
encouraging them to continue to strive for good
progress, higher sales and better results for the
Company and the shareholders.
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AWARDS FOR FRUITFUL RESULTS IN
INNOVATION AND THE PURSUIT OF
EXCELLENCE

In 2018, our vice chairlady LI Qian was ranked No.
4 in “China’s Top 10 Female CEOs” by Forbes China
and Consun Pharmaceutical received the Golden
Lion Award for H Share Listed Company in the “Best
Investor Relations Management” category. Inner
Mongolia Consun was recognised as the “Outstanding
Private Enterprise” in the Inner Mongolia Autonomous
Region and Guangzhou Consun was accredited as
the “Provincial Enterprise Technology Center” in
Guangdong Province. Our “Uremic Clearance Granules”
was included in the “List of Healthy China’s Brands” for
the third consecutive year, while the “Iron Dextran Oral
Solution” and “Erythromycin Estolate Suspension” were
selected as the “Famous Branded Products of Inner
Mongolia Autonomous Region”.

Yulin Pharmaceutical of the Group was awarded the title
of “China’s Top 100 Pharmaceutical Enterprises” again
and its ranking went up to the 33rd. Its “Zheng Gu Shui”
product passed the CE certification of the European
Union and is exempted from inspection for import to EU
countries.

In 2018, Consun Pharmaceutical received the Golden
Lion Award for H Share Listed Company in the “Best
Investor Relations Management” category.

In 2018, Consun Pharmaceutical Group stayed
committed to “industrial chain operation and
international operation”. With the aims of making
breakthroughs and expanding into a ten-billion
enterprise, it empowered organizations and individuals
to build up their momentum, strengthened brand image,
undertook social responsibilities and started a new
chapter for the next two decades of development.

I
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Financial Highlights
MBRE

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HILEE

2018 2017 Change
20184 20174 1t
RMB’000 RMB’000 (%)
Results E ARMEF T ARBT T (%)
Revenue WA 1,843,973 1,660,230 11.07%
Profit before taxation 5 B 5 ) 616,699 544,982 13.16%
Profit for the year attributable 7N &) 4 25 IR B8 FIE 15 4F 1A % A
to equity shareholders of the
Company 465,353 396,242 17.44%
Earnings per share FRAEF (AAREITHIR)
(expressed in RMB Yuan)
— Basic N 0.5444 0.4602 18.30%
— Diluted - ¥ 0.5300 0.4570 15.97%
As at 31 December
M12A831H
2018 2017 Change
2018%F 20174 (e
RMB’000 RMB’000 (%)
Financial Position B H AR 35 AR®T T ARETTT (%)
Total assets BEE 3,897,038 3,572,017 9.10%
Total equity attributable to RAE R R (R ERE
equity shareholders of the
Company 2,157,219 1,746,688 23.50%
Net assets per share FRFEE
(expressed in RMB (AEBRAREITLIIR)
Yuan per share) (Note) 3 2.46 2.00 23.0%
Net debt (interest bearing FEIE (GFEEERRAES K
liabilities less cash and cash R4 %EY) st = Net cash Net cash NA
equivalents) to equity ratio FEE FiRE TEA

Note: Net assets per share is calculated based on the total equity — fifit : FZRFEE KD Gl 7 I8 E FEIL 1E 2 A4 5B 1%
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company divided by U EBEREEFE -

the number of ordinary shares.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

For the year of 2018,
RMB1,843,973,000, representing an increase of approximately
11.1% as compared with RMB1,660,230,000 for 2017.
Categorized by product lines, sales of kidney medicines

the Group’s revenue was

recorded an increase of approximately 13.9% as compared
with last year, among which, Uremic Clearance Granules
("“UCG”) remained the Group’s key product, maintained
its leading position in oral modern Chinese medicines for
kidney diseases; sales of medical contrast medium recorded
an increase of approximately 6.9% as compared with last
year, maintained a leading position in the domestic medical
contrast medium market for magnetic resonance imaging;
sales of orthopaedics medicines recorded an increase of
approximately 11.5%; sales of dermatologic medicines
recorded an increase of approximately 0.5%; sales of
hepatobiliary medicines recorded an increase of approximately
8.5%; sales of the Group’s women and children medicines
recorded an increase of approximately 18.2%; and sales
of other pharmaceutical products recorded an increase of
approximately 9.5%. Sales of different product lines generally
increased due to the Group’s continuous efforts to explore
product markets and develop sales network around the whole
country.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

For the year of 2018, the Group’s gross profit was
RMB1,384,426,000, representing an increase of approximately
12.7% as compared with RMB1,228,395,000 for 2017. The
increase in gross profit was mainly attributable to the increase
in sales. For the year of 2018, the Group’s average gross profit
margin was approximately 75.1%, representing an increase
of 1.1% as compared with the 74.0% for last year, which was
mainly attributable to the management effort in maintaining
selling prices and controlling production costs for the Group’s
products.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Other (Loss)/Income

For the year of 2018, the Group’s other (loss)/income was net
loss of RMB2,194,000, which mainly included government
grants, interest income and net exchange loss. Compared with
the other net income of RMB35,102,000 for 2017, the change
was mainly attributable to the net exchange loss in connection
with HKD loans arising from the depreciation of RMB while
there was net exchange gains arising from the appreciation of
RMB during 2017.

Distribution Costs

For the year of 2018, the Group’s distribution costs was
RMB561,537,000, representing an increase of approximately
3.9% as compared with RMB540,264,000 for 2017. The
increase in distribution costs was mainly attributable to the
Group’s expansion of marketing and distribution networks by
recruiting additional marketing staff and increasing marketing
and academic promotion activities during the year.

Administrative Expenses

For the year of 2018, the Group’s administrative expenses
were RMB176,527,000, representing an increase of
approximately 8.0% as compared with RMB163,497,000 for
2017. The increase in administrative expenses was in line with
the Group’s expansion in operations.

Finance Costs

For the year of 2018, finance costs were RMB27,469,000,
representing an increase of approximately 86.2% as compared
with RMB14,754,000 for 2017, which was mainly due to the
interest arising from a loan which was drawn down in April
2017.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Income Tax

For the year of 2018, the Group’s income tax expense was
RMB119,208,000, representing a decrease of approximately
3.2% as compared with RMB123,162,000 for 2017. The
effective tax rate (income tax expense divided by profit before
taxation) decreased by approximately 3.3% from 22.6% for
2017 to 19.3% for 2018. The decrease was mainly due to the
increase in provision for dividend withholding tax during 2017
in connection with dividends expected to be distributed from
the Group’s PRC incorporated subsidiaries to the Hong Kong
incorporated subsidiaries in the foreseeable future, and such
provision was still sufficient for 2018 and did not need to be
further increased.

Annual Profit Attributable to Equity Shareholders of the
Company and Earnings Per Share

For the year of 2018, the Group’'s annual profit was
RMB465,353,000, representing an increase of approximately
17.4% as compared with RMB396,242,000 for 2017. The basic
earnings per share increased by approximately 18.3% from
RMBO0.4602 for 2017 to RMB0.5444 for 2018, and the diluted
earnings per share increase by approximately 16.0% from
RMB0.4570 for 2017 to RMB0.5300 for 2018.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
Trade Debtors and Bills Receivable

As at 31 December 2018, the balance of trade debtors
and bills receivable was RMB863,992,000, representing a
decrease of approximately 11.0% as compared with the
balance of RMB970,294,000 as at 31 December 2017. Trade
receivables turnover days for 2018 were 181.5 days, increased
by 13.6 days from 167.9 days for 2017, which was mainly
because the Group granted longer credit period to certain
strategic customers with good credit standing based on the
market situation during the year.
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Inventories

As at 31 December 2018, the balance of inventories was
RMB210,310,000, representing an increase of approximately
5.2% as compared with the balance of RMB200,001,000 as
at 31 December 2017. Inventory turnover days for 2018 were
163.0 days, increased by 18.9 days from 144.1 days for
2017, which was mainly due to the increase in inventory level
during the year to prepare for the expected increase in market
demand.

Trade Payables

As at 31 December 2018, the balance of trade payables was
RMB92,755,000, representing an increase of approximately
34.9% as compared with the balance of RMB68,739,000 as
of 31 December 2017. Trade payables turnover days for 2018
were 64.1 days, increased by 1.4 days from 62.7 days for
2017, which remained at a stable level.

Cash Flows

For the year of 2018, the Group’s net cash generated from
operating activities was RMB754,210,000, representing
an increase of approximately 199.1% as compared with
RMB252,123,000 for 2017, which was mainly attributable to
the decrease in trade receivables and bills receivable during
2018 while there was an increase in trade receivables and
bills receivable during 2017. For the year of 2018, the Group’s
net cash used in investing activities was RMB180,804,000,
representing an increase of approximately 201.1% as
compared with RMB60,049,000 for 2017, which was mainly
due to the construction of plant and acquisition of equipment
in Yulin new plant area. For the year of 2018, the Group’s net
cash used in financing activities was RMB292,425,000, as
compared with the net cash generated from financing activities
of RMB128,125,000 for 2017, the change was mainly due to
the repayment of part of the principals and interest during the
year in respect of bank loans drawn down last year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Cash and Bank Balances and Borrowings

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s cash and bank
balances were RMB1,269,746,000, representing an increase
of approximately 28.3% as compared with RMB989,565,000 as
at 31 December 2017. As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s
total loans and borrowings amounted to RMB392,538,000,
representing a decrease of approximately 30.9% as compared
with RMB568,104,000 as at 31 December 2017, which mainly
due to the repayment of part of the principals during the year
in respect of bank loans drawn down last year.

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management
approach towards its treasury policies and thus maintained
a healthy liquidity position throughout the year of 2018. The
Group strives to reduce exposure to credit risk by performing
ongoing credit assessments and evaluations of the financial
status of its customers. To manage liquidity risk, the Board
closely monitors the Group’s liquidity position to ensure that
the liquidity structure of the Group’s assets, liabilities and
other commitments can meet its funding requirements from
time to time. Cash and cash equivalents of the Group are
mainly denominated in RMB and HKD.

GEARING RATIO

The gearing ratio of the Group, representing the total interest
bearing borrowings divided by total equity attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company as at 31 December 2018
was 18.2% (31 December 2017: 32.5%). The decrease in
gearing ratio was mainly due to the partial repayment of bank
loans during the year.

EXCHANGE RATE RISKS

The Group’s transactions are mainly denominated in RMB
and HKD. The majority of assets and liabilities are also
denominated in RMB and HKD, and there are no significant
assets and liabilities denominated in other currencies. The
Group faces exchange rate risk due to fluctuation of exchange
rates. During the year, the Group did not commit to any
financial instruments to hedge its exposure to foreign currency
risk.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

In 2018, the Company issued a total of 1,580,600 ordinary
shares (2017: 1,895,700 ordinary shares) pursuant to
employees’ exercise of share options granted under the
Share Option Scheme (adopted on 2 December 2013). Save
as disclosed above, there were no significant changes in
the Company’s capital structure. The Company’s capital
comprises ordinary shares and other reserves.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had capital commitments
of approximately RMB494,328,000 (831 December 2017:
RMB386,072,000).

INFORMATION ON EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group hired a total of 2,667
employees (31 December 2017: 2,332 employees). The
total staff costs (including the directors’ remuneration) for
the year ended 31 December 2018 was RMB287,461,000
(2017: RMB352,417,000). The salaries of the employees were
determined with reference to individual performance, work
experience, qualification and current industry practices.

On top of basic salaries, bonuses may be paid by reference to
the Group’s performance as well as individual’s performance.
Other staff benefits include contributions to Mandatory
Provident Fund and various retirement benefits schemes in
Hong Kong, including the provision of pension funds, medical
insurance, unemployment insurance and other relevant
insurance for employees who are employed by our Group
pursuant to the PRC rules and regulations and the prevailing
regulatory requirements of the PRC. The salaries and benefits
of the Group’s employees are kept at a competitive level
and employees are rewarded on a performance-related
basis within the general framework of the Group’s salary and
bonus system, which is reviewed annually. The Group also
operates a share option scheme adopted by the Company on
2 December 2013 (the “Share Option Scheme”) and a share
award scheme adopted on 21 July 2014 (the “Share Award
Scheme”), where options to subscribe for shares and share
awards may be granted to the Directors and employees of the
Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group made considerable efforts in continuing education
and training programs for its staff, to continuously enhance
their knowledge, skills and team spirit. The Group regularly
provided internal and external training courses for relevant
staff according to their needs.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

Except for investments in its subsidiaries, during the year
ended 31 December 2018, the Group did not hold any
significant investment in equity interest in any other company.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS AND
CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in this announcement, as at the date of this
announcement, the Group did not have other future plans for
material investments and capital assets.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

The Group did not have any material acquisitions and
disposals of subsidiaries and associated companies during
2018.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2018, the Group did not have any pledged
assets (31 December 2017: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities (31 December 2017: Nil).
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Management continues to manage the Group’s key risk
exposures, including operational risks (e.g. ensuring high
quality of medicines products, safety in the production process
and efficiency in the distribution processes), financial risks
(e.g. through budget control and cash flow management) and
compliance risks (ensuring the relevant rules and regulations
are complied with) on a daily basis. Management also pays
close attention to the recent developments of national policies
in respect of the pharmaceutical industry, which is a key
uncertainty facing the Group, and formulates and adjusts the
Group relevant policies accordingly on a timely basis.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to achieving environmental
sustainability and incorporating it in the Group’s daily
operations. Other than complying with all relevant
environmental rules and regulations, management always
encourage water, energy and materials saving and recycling
practice which are considered in the performance appraisal
process.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year of 2018, there was no incidence of significant
non-compliance of laws and regulations that is relevant to the
Group’s operations.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 2 January 2019, the Company granted 63,000,000 share
options to certain directors and employees. The exercise price
of these share options was HKD4.476 per share. The options
will vest after one year to three years from the date of grant
and are then exercisable on or before 1 January 2029.

During the period from 3 to 25 January 2019, the Company
repurchased 3,212,000 shares of its own ordinary shares
through the Stock Exchange at a total consideration
of approximately HKD15,581,000 (approximately
RMB13,518,000). The shares repurchased by the Company
will be cancelled in due course.

Save as disclosed above and in other parts of this
announcement, as at the date of this announcement, the
Group has no significant events after the reporting period
required to be disclosed.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile

DIRECTORS

The Board is fully responsible for management and operations. ZEE& 42

REERRNER

The following table sets forth information regarding our

Directors as at the reporting date.

B=

EENREGHNEEANERBE

AEEEREEER - TRIEES

Name Appointment Date Age
A ZEBH Fie
Executive Director

HITES

Mr. AN Yubao (Chairman) 24 January 2011 76
RHERE (£/E) 20114F1 A24H

Ms. LI Qian (Vice Chairlady, Chief Executive Officer) 24 December 2012 54
RELL (BIEE - #B3) 2012612 R24H

Professor ZHU Quan 24 December 2012 79
REHX 2012612241

Mr. TANG Ning 1 June 2018 58
FELE 20186 H1H

Independent Non-executive Director

BYFHTES

Mr. SU Yuanfu 2 December 2013 73
T BEE 201312 A2H

Mr. FENG Zhongshi 2 December 2013 60
IBIPERE 2013%F12A2H

Ms. CHENG Xinxin 2 December 2013 66
FRIRMR & £ 2013F12A2H
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ESENRSHREEANERBE

CHAIRMAN AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. AN Yubao (%Z#H8E), aged 76, is our chairman and an
executive Director and a Controlling Shareholder. He was
appointed as our Director with effect from 24 January 2011.
He is also a director of Guangzhou Consun Pharmaceutical
Company Limited (“GZ Consun”), Consun Pharmaceutical
(Inner Mongolia) Co., Ltd. (“Inner Mongolia Consun”)
and Yulin Pharmaceutical, and a director and the legal
representative of Guangzhou Consun Pharmaceutical
Research Company Limited (“Consun Research”). Mr. AN is
primarily responsible for the overall management, operations,
investment and the charting and reviewing of corporate
directions and strategies of our Group.

Mr. AN has nearly 20 years of experience in medical
education and over 20 years of experience in the business
of the pharmaceutical industry. He has served various key
positions, including executive director of GZ Consun since its
establishment. Mr. AN served as the vice chairman of E=R
A EREEEEEHL (Guangdong Southern Lee KumKee
Commercial Information Centre) from November 1995 to
February 1999. From July 1996 to December 1998, Mr. AN
started his career in the pharmaceutical industry by serving as
the chairman and legal representative of BRmHZ R e S
RERABMR AR (Guangdong Southern Lee KumKee Nutrition
Health Products Co., Ltd.) and representing FFE A RENEFH
—E B KE (the First Military Medical University of the People’s
Liberation Army of the PRC) as one of its shareholders. Mr.
AN served as the minister and vice president respectively
of MABNMAREBRFBEARMBMHESE —EFEKZ) (Southern
Medical University) (formerly known as the First Military
Medical University of the People’s Liberation Army of the
PRC)) from November 1991 to August 2001 and served as the
vice president of FEIARBENEEEEREBLER (Jinan Military
General Hospital of the People’s Liberation Army of the PRC)
from 1987 to 1988. Between 1981 and 1987, Mr. AN worked
at various units of the PRC People’s Liberation Army and was
mainly responsible for hygiene and hospital management.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile

Mr. AN graduated from B A REREZEERT (the Logistics
Engineering College of the People’s Liberation Army of the
PRC) in 1981 and majored in rear commanding. Mr. AN also
obtained a master’s degree in business administration from
Asia International Open University (Macau) (now known as City
University of Macau) in November 2007.

VICE CHAIRLADY AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. LI Qian (32 &),
executive Director and chief executive officer.

aged 54, is our vice chairlady, an
She was
appointed as our Director with effect from 24 December 2012.
She is also the chairman of GZ Consun, and a director of
Inner Mongolia Consun and Yulin Pharmaceutical, primarily
responsible for formulating and implementing the corporate
strategies, overseeing production activities, business
development, research and administrative management of our
Group.

Ms. LI has over 28 years of experience in the business of
pharmaceutical industry. Prior to joining our Group, Ms. LI
worked at Southern Medical University from October 1989
to April 1998. Ms. LI joined our Group in 1997 when Consun
Pharmaceutical was newly set-up, as the associate director of
general manager’s office, human resources manager, deputy
executive general manager and deputy sales general manager
of GZ Consun. Ms. LI has also served as a director and the
general manager (which was redesignated as president in
May 2008) of GZ Consun since November 1999.
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ESENRSHREEANERBE

Ms. LI obtained a master’'s degree in business administration
at Asia International Open University (Macau) in November
2007. She has obtained 3 invention patents and published
research papers on the “Chinese journal of Clinical Medicine”
(P BB R 22 2% 5)). Ms. LI was awarded as Excellent
Private Entrepreneur (2 & K & & % K) by Tongliao City
People’s Government of the Inner Mongolia Autonomous
Region in July 2008, and a Model Worker (4 Z1#£%3) by Inner
Mongolia People’s Government in April 2010. In December
2010, she obtained the Third Prize for Technological Progress
in the Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region (N5 & B A R R #
=% 4#%). In December 2011, she was recognised as Famous
Entrepreneur in Pharmaceutical Industry of Guangdong
Province (ER&E BETEZERPHER) by Guangdong Province
Pharmaceutical Industry Association (FEER&RETEHE). In
April 2014, she was elected as Chinese Pharmaceutical Brand
Woman (Bl (B& 2577 %) M8 4L ). In February 2017, she
was accredited as Excellent Entrepreneur in Pharmaceutical
Industry of Guangdong Province (BR & EHITEESF X
%) and in December 2017 was awarded the “Best Business
Leader Award” by “China Finance”.

Ms. LI is a local registered pharmacist of Guangdong province
(EERE 55 260) recognised by Guangdong Food and Drug
Administration (EREARMEMREBEERE). Since March 2012,
she has been appointed as a member of the First Expert
Committee for Kidney Disease and Blood Purify of China
Medical Women’s Association (25— & Bl £ E &l i 2 B s
RMm#EF(LEREZEE). In October 2014, she was elected as
the deputy councillor of Expert Committee for Professional
Committee of Chinese Medicine Product Development and
Incubation of China Association of Traditional Chinese
Medicine (FEIHF EH et EZEMRAEHETEEXEZESF). In
August 2016, she was elected as the deputy councillor of the
First Expert Committee for Chinese Medicine Development
and Research for Kidney Disease of China Association of
Traditional Chinese Medicine (FF B 2515 & 55 — i Bk H 253
R EEZES), and a member of the Pharmacoeconomics
Expert Committee (EMKBEEHEXZE®), and in July 2017
was elected as a member of the Standing Committee of the
Encephalopathy Medicine Research Professional Committee of
China Association of Traditional Chinese Medicine.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Professor ZHU Quan (%
Director. He was appointed as our Director with effect from 24

%), aged 79, is our executive

December 2012. Professor ZHU is also a director and the chief
scientist of GZ Consun and the general manager of Consun
Research. Professor ZHU joined our Group in August 2006 as
the chief scientist of GZ Consun. Professor ZHU is primarily
responsible for the product research and development of our
Group.

Professor ZHU has over 30 years of experience in teaching
and research at medical school and over 10 years of
experience in the business of pharmaceutical industry.
Professor ZHU has served as professor and Ph.D. candidate
supervisor at BP9 & £ K &2 (Macau University of Science
and Technology) since September 2003. He served various
positions, such as a deputy director of medicine department, a
director of BIZK R &t A #4212 E 52 %= (National Standardization
Laboratory for Chinese Herbal Pharmacology), a Ph.D.
candidate supervisor at FRFEZARE (Nanjing University
of Chinese Medicine) between October 1981 and November
2005. Professor ZHU also served as an expert for 25 2F
RI2#H1MTZ 2 € (Science & Technology Commission of Ministry
of Education), an assessment expert for B B ARIBEH S £
LI (Department of Life Science of National Natural Science
Foundation) and a drug evaluation expert in Jiangsu Province
and in the PRC.

Professor ZHU graduated from A ERIEfE (China Academy of
Traditional Chinese Medicine) (now known as 7 Bl B Rl 263
(China Academy of Chinese Medical Sciences)) in November
1981 with a master’s degree in pharmacology of traditional
Chinese medicine.
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Mr. TANG Ning (F %), aged 53, is our executive Director. He
was appointed as our Director with effect from 1 June 2018.
He is also a director and vice president of GZ Consun. Mr.
TANG joined our Group in July 1998 as a business manager.
Between July 1998 and June 2011, Mr. TANG served various
positions at GZ Consun, such as business manager, regional
marketing manager, marketing director, and president
assistant. He has been the vice president of GZ Consun since
June 2011. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. TANG worked at
2 5| 5 B #) 42 A a)(Cili County Baifang General Company)
between October 1987 and June 1998. Mr. TANG graduated
from S#F R E2T (Hunan University of Commerce) in June 1986
majoring in marketing.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. SU Yuanfu (#7C48), aged 73, is our independent non-
executive Director. He joined our Group on 2 December 2013
when he was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director.

Mr. SU graduated from R R ARBHEFZMNEZ KNS (the
Fourth Military Medical University of the People’s Liberation
Army of the PRC) in December 1969 and obtained a master’s
degree in radiopathology at the same university in December
1982. Mr. SU served various positions at the People’s
Liberation Army of the PRC. From January 1970 to August
1979, he served as a doctor at PHiE & & & Bt (General
Hospital of Tibet Military Region). Between January 1984 and
November 1995, Mr. SU served as the director of science
and research office, the dean of academic affairs, the deputy
superintendent and superintendent of the first affiliated
hospital respectively at the Fourth Military Medical University
of the People’s Liberation Army of the PRC. From November
1995 to June 1998, he served as the director general of #
% B 3 & £ BRI B (Technology Training Bureau of the
Department of Health of the General Logistics Department).
Between June 1998 and June 2004, Mr. SU served as the
director of the department of medical administration and
the deputy superintendent respectively at FERERERT (the
General Hospital of the People’s Liberation Army). Mr. SU has
been a standing director of FEIETHE (Chinese Hospital
Association) since October 2004.
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Mr. FENG Zhongshi (51 &), aged 60, is our independent
non-executive Director. He joined our Group on 2 December
2013 when he was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director.

Mr. FENG is a lawyer qualified in the PRC. He is currently a
partner of ItEMEAREZMELFT (Beijing Gaolie Law Firm).
He graduated from FRBIEEARE (China University of Political
Science and Law) in July 1986 with a bachelor’s degree in
law. From July 1986 to January 1993, Mr. FENG worked at A
5 B)RRAAEE (the Department of Justice of Inner Mongolia
Autonomous Region). He served as a lawyer at A5 & & & 2D
EFT (Inner Mongolia Jingji Law Office) (now known as #&tt
ZEMEHBFT (Jingshi Law Office)) from 1993 to 1995. Between
1996 and 2002, Mr. FENG served as a partner at A5 5 2
EMEFT (Inner Mongolia Huicong Law Office). From 1996
to 2003, he also served as the head of legal department of
It REREERENAER2AA (Beiing Hui Cong International
Information Co., Ltd.). Between 2002 and 2009, Mr. FENG
served as a lawyer of b R AR IHAERIEH AT (Beijing ZhongRui
Law Firm). Between June 2011 and January 2013, he served
as a partner of It R & BEMEHEFT (Beijing Jin Li Law Firm).

Ms. CHENG Xinxin (fXfXfX), aged 66, is our independent non-
executive Director. She joined our Group on 2 December 2013
when she was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director.

Ms. CHENG is a senior accountant recognised by ER&E AF
E2 (Department of Human Resource of Guangdong Province).
She has been a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants since October 1994, a registered financial
planner since September 2002, a fellow of the Institute
of Public Accountants of Australia since December 2004
and a member of the Chartered Association of Business
Administrators of the United Kingdom since March 2005. Ms.
CHENG graduated from ZFg K2 (Jinan University) majoring in
trade economy in July 1985. Ms. CHENG obtained a master’s
degree in business administration from Murdoch University
in March 2000 and obtained a doctor of philosophy degree
in management by distance learning from a joint degree
programme with European University of Ireland, University of
International Business and Economics and Institute of Cost
and Executive Accountants in March 2005.
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Ms. CHENG has been a director of RMREBRELGRER A
(Chang Cheng Insurance Brokers Limited) since June 2003,
the chairman of E /N M@K I XL A FIHF L (Pearl
River Training Centre, Yuexiu district, Guangzhou City)
since October 2003, a director of BEINEBEEHEEEREE
[& 2 & (Guangzhou Saibao Lianrui Information Technology
Company Limited) since November 2003 and had been the
principal partner of EBMEFE5FTRIEHFT (Guangzhou Xingtai
Accounting Firm) from March 2005 to June 2014 and has been
a salaried consultant of InZEZFTEIEHFT (Ruihua Certified
Public Accountants) since July 2014. Ms. CHENG served as,
from November 2000 to July 2017, served as a director of
BErTEEEHE AR QA (Kang Yuan International Consultant
Limited); from February 2002 to July 2017, a director and
president of BEINE&E 7 B EH B R 2 & (Allwell Company
Limited); from November 1994 to January 2001, successively
as a deputy general manager in the department of enterprise
management, financial department and department of
strategic development of & & &8 1 % & B 2 & (Yuehai
Enterprise Group Company); from April 1993 to November
1994, as a deputy general manager of BB RERBERELR
‘A7) (Flying Dragon International Investment Limited); from
July 1975 to April 1993, as deputy section chief, section chief
and deputy director of EE&R & I EEE (Department of Finance of
Guangdong Province).

Save as disclosed above, each of our Directors has not been
a director of any other publicly listed company during the past
three years.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. ZHOU Shangwen (& X), aged 49, is a vice president
of GZ Consun. Mr. ZHOU joined our Group in April 2004 as a
marketing manager for Guangdong province. Between April
2004 and June 2013, Mr. ZHOU served various positions at
GZ Consun, such as regional marketing manager, marketing
director for our kidney drugs and president assistant. He
has been the vice president of GZ Consun since July 2013.
Prior to joining our Group, Mr. ZHOU worked at B/ mAsHE}
% BT (Guangzhou Brain Hospital) between July 1995 and
March 1997. Between August 1997 and April 2004, Mr. ZHOU
successively worked at nE#ETE (R32) BEEFR AR (Servier
(Tianjin) Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.). Mr. ZHOU graduated from
b BRI KE (Beijing Medical University) (now known as 1t
AEEEET (Peking University Health Science Centre)) in July
1995 with a bachelor’s degree in mental health.

Ms. FANG Lanfen (5 %), aged 56, is a vice president of
GZ Consun. Ms. FANG joined our Group in July 1999 as a
business manager. Between July 1999 to July 2013, Ms. FANG
served various positions at GZ Consun, such as business
manager, regional marketing manager and marketing director.
She has been the vice president of GZ Consun since July
2013. Prior to joining our Group, Ms. FANG worked at [E$E
9% B T (Guzhen County Hospital) between July 1985 and
September 1989, and at ZH&EKFIEERT (Water Resource
Department of Anhui Province Hospital) between September
1989 and July 1999. Ms. FANG graduated from #FiREEEALE
(Bengbu Medical College) with a bachelor’s degree in medical
in July 1985.

Mr. FANG Peicheng (7553k), aged 40, is the chief investment
officer and president assistant of GZ Consun. Mr. FANG
joined our Group in August 2010 as an audit manager. He has
been the audit and legal director since January 2013 and the
president assistant of GZ Consun since January 2015. Prior
to joining our Group, Mr. FANG worked as audit supervisor
at FAREL TR B AR (Xilong Chemical Company Limited)
between May 2008 and July 2010.
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Mr. FANG graduated from FZETLIRZF (Nan Hua College
of Industry and Commerce) major in computer accounting in
July 2002, and graduated from FEABAAL (FER) @:t2H
2% (China University of Petroleum (Eastern China) Accounting
Profession) with a bachelor’'s degree in management in July
2008. Mr. FANG has the Audit Professional Qualification
(Intermediate) granted by H#E AR KEFE A 7 E RIS R
FZ2f (Ministry of Human Resources and Social Securities of
the People’s Republic of China). He is also a member of The
Institute of Internal Auditors.

Ms. YANG Tongtao (i5/%/&), aged 51, is the Group’s chief
financial officer. Ms. YANG joined the Group in August 2018
and is responsible for the handling the Group’s financial
management. She is a member of American Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. She has over 20 years
experience in audit and accounting. Prior to joining the
Group, Ms. YANG acted as the chief financial officer of
QAC Technology Ltd., the chief financial officer of Netafim
Ltd. — China, group senior finance manager of Tongjitang
Medicine Ltd. and different positions at several global 500
corporations. She also worked in the audit department of
PricewaterhouseCoopers and Schwartz Levitsky Feldman
LLP, familiar with the finance operations and disclosure
requirements of overseas listed companies, with practical
experience of IPOs, acquisitions, mergers and integration of
corporations.

Mr. GAO Haien (&5/8/2), aged 50, is our Board secretary
and the board secretary of GZ Consun. Mr. GAO joined our
Group in August 2007 as the board secretary of GZ Consun.
Mr. GAO has been the manager and legal representative
of Guangzhou Consun Pharmaceutical and Inner Mongolia
Consun since March 2013, the manager and legal
representative of Guangxi Yulin Pharmaceutical Group and
Guangzhou Consun Pharmaceutical since August 2015, and
a director of Yulin Pharmaceutical and Inner Mongolia Consun
since August 2018. Mr. GAO also acted as a joint company
secretary of the Company from 15 April 2014 to 31 May 2017.
Prior to joining our Group, Mr. GAO successively served as a
general manager of the accessories store and the assistant
to headquarters general manager of J&¥IITH¥ros T A@EHEA
R A& (Shenzhen Sunyes Tools Co. Ltd.) from January 2006
to August 2007. Between July 1995 and January 2006, Mr.
GAO successively served as a senior engineer of EEE X
%M (IDT Data System Factory) and a technology manager
of RIITTEEBEEFR AR AF (Shenzhen Aomeidi Digital
Technology Co. Ltd.).
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Mr. GAO graduated from FREITEZKE (China University of
Mining and Technology) in July 1992 with a bachelor’'s degree
in engineering and subsequently obtained a bachelor’s
degree in economics at the same university in January 1994.
He obtained a master’s degree in business administration at
AR B S A K2 (Zhongnan University of Economics and
Law) in June 2012. Mr. GAO holds EH¥EFZEKFRBIEE (=
#%) (Professional Certificate in Securities (Band 1)) granted
by FEIZESZEWE (Securities Association of China) and %
E@MWMELKREZ (Board Secretary Certificate) granted by
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. He is also a member of Hong
Kong Securities and Investment Institute.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. YAU Chi Ming (f£7%8H), aged 52, has been our company
secretary since he joined our Group in March 2013. Mr. YAU
is responsible for our company secretarial matters and he
has over 20 years of experience in finance and accounting.
Mr. YAU is a certified public accountant and is a fellow of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is also
acting as an independent non-executive director of Cosmo
Lady (China) Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 2298).
In the past, he also acted as an independent non-executive
director of other listed companies, including Common
Splendor International Health Industry Group Limited (stock
code: 286) (from February 2013 to June 2017), CircuTech
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 8051) (from April
2015 to June 2016), Chinese Energy Holdings Limited (stock
code: 8009) (from August 2016 to January 2018) and Hosa
International Limited (stock code: 2200)(from April 2018 to July
2018). Prior to joining our Group, he worked at an international
audit firm from August 1992 to November 1994 and from May
1995 to October 2012, during which he was promoted to
partner in July 2007. Mr. YAU graduated from The University
of Hong Kong in December 1992 with a bachelor’s degree in
social sciences.

EENREGHNEEANERBE

RAERIQNRFTAZXNFEBEERNE - B
TREBEABA - BRBEN1994F1AER—FAT
ANERBLBBETBA o H1R20129F6 A HE
PRPERERENTITEHEEBELISNN - 5L
RERTHEEFXHERBENBTFESERKER
FEZ (ZH) FAFRINEFRGHERNES

[2Eva =]
GNEEREE - WIAEEBERRASEN
&8 .

"R =
AEARE

EERBEELE - 5258 0 B2013F3 A MAREE LA
RERPNARWE - EAEBEARARAWES
B BREME RS HEEESA20F &R - L&

WM EFERERESETEA (PE) ZRERQE (IR
DREE : 2298) 2B IEMITES - RBE - &
MEEHM ETMRARMNBLIENTES - BIER
FERREREEXERBR AR (MK - 286)
(201352 A =2017F6A) * T 5H /8B BT
AR AR (BRHHIR - 8051) (2015454 A £2016
F6H) EERRERABR QA (BRMHAE:
8009) (20164F8 A 201841 H) A K& BB
AR AT (BRHHIR - 2200) (201844 A £2018
F7H) o IMAREER - 1 H1992F8 A £1994
FI1HAKRB1995F5H E£2012F10 AR —KE
PREETEISATER - R ER2007F7AE A A
BEA c EEERI192F12AREREBERE
BEETERBELER o

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 FE#HE 33



Corporate Governance Report
EEREBRME

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Adapting and adhering to recognised standards of corporate
governance principles and practices has always been one
of the top priorities of the Company. The Board believes that
good corporate governance is one of the areas that lead to
the success of the Company and in balancing the interests
of shareholders, customers and employees, and the Board
is devoted to ongoing enhancements of the efficiency and
effectiveness of such principles and practices.

The Company has adopted and complied with the code
provisions (the “Code Provisions”) set out in Appendix 14
“Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report” to the Listing Rules during the year ended 31
December 2018.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
THE DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. The
Company confirms that, having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, all the Directors have complied with the required
standards of dealing as set out in the Model Code during the
year ended 31 December 2018.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board currently comprises
7 Directors, of which four are executive Directors and three
are independent non-executive Directors. The composition of
the Board during 2018 and up to the date of this report is as
follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. AN Yubao (Chairman)

Ms. LI Qian (Vice Chairlady, Chief Executive Officer)
Professor ZHU Quan

Mr. TANG Ning (appointed on 1 June 2018)
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Non-executive Director

Mr. LIN Sheng (Resigned, with effect from 13 April 2018)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. SU Yuanfu
Mr. FENG Zhongshi
Ms. CHENG Xinxin

Biographical details of current Directors are set out in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management Profile” on
pages 23 to 33.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

During the year of 2018, there were three independent
non-executive Directors representing one third or more of the
Board, and one of them, Ms. CHENG Xinxin has accounting
professional qualifications. Each of the independent
non-executive Directors has made an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company is of the view that all independent non-executive
Directors meet the independence guidelines set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and thus are independent in
accordance with the terms of the guidelines.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD AND
MANAGEMENT

The Board is primarily responsible for overseeing and
managing the Company’s affairs, including the responsibilities
for the adoption of long-term strategies and appointing and
supervising senior management to ensure that the operation
of the Group is conducted in accordance with the objective
of the Group. The Board is also responsible for determining
the Company’s corporate governance policies which include:
(i) development and review of the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance; (ii) review and monitoring
of the training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management; (iii) review and monitoring
of the code of conduct and compliance manual applicable to
employees and Directors; and (iv) review of the Company’s
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
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While at all times the Board retains full responsibility for
guiding and monitoring the Company in discharging its
duties, certain responsibilities are delegated to various Board
committees which have been established by the Board to
deal with different aspects of the Company’s affairs. Unless
otherwise specified in their respective written terms of
reference as approved by the Board, these Board committees
are governed by the Company’s articles of association
(“Articles of Association”) as well as the Board’s policies
and practices (in so far as the same are not in conflict with
the provisions contained in the Articles of Association). With
the new composition of members of the nomination committee,
remuneration committee and audit committee, the independent
non-executive Directors will be able to effectively devote their
time to perform the duties required by the respective Board
committees.

The Board has also delegated the responsibility of
implementing its strategies and the day-to-day operation to
the management of the Company under the leadership of
the executive Directors. Clear guidance has been made as
to the matters that should be reserved to the Board for its
decision which include matters on, inter alia, capital, finance
and financial reporting, internal controls, communication with
shareholders, Board membership, delegation of authority and
corporate governance.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the preparation
of the financial statements which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group. The financial statements set
out on pages 84 to 223 were prepared on the basis set out in
note 1(b) to the financial statements. Financial results of the
Group are announced in a timely manner in accordance with
statutory and/or regulatory requirements. The declaration of
reporting responsibility issued by the external auditor of the
Company on the Company’s financial statements is set out in
the Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages 71 to 83.
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BOARD MEETINGS

The Board is scheduled to meet regularly at least four times
a year (does not include obtaining Board consent through
circulating written resolutions) at approximately quarterly
intervals, to discuss the overall strategy as well as the
operational and financial performance of the Company. Other
Board meetings will be held when necessary. Such Board
meetings involve the active participation, either in person
or through other electronic means of communication, of a
majority of Directors. During the year of 2018, the Board held
4 meetings.

GENERAL MEETINGS

An annual general meeting was held by the Company on 30
May 2018. Details of Directors’ attendance are as follows:
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No. of No. of

attendance/  attendance/

No. of board No. of general

meetings meetings

HERE HERE

Director B= EEEESRNE REAERE

Executive Directors BITES

Mr. AN Yubao (Chairman) TRE S E (£/E) 4/4 1/
Ms. LI Qian (Vice Chairlady, RELLT (FF/F - #E)

Chief Executive Officer) 4/4 1/1
Professor ZHU Quan KEHZ 4/4 11
Mr. TANG Ning (appointed on 1 June 2018) BEELA (KR2018F6A1H

BEE) 2/2 =
Non-Executive Director FHITES
Mr. LIN Sheng (Resigned, with effect MEEE (BEBHE - B

from 13 April 2018) 2018F 4 13 4 4%) 11 ==
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIYFHITES
Mr. SU Yuanfu BTEkE 4/4 1/1
Mr. FENG Zhongshi B ELE 4/4 11
Ms. CHENG Xinxin PRI 22 £ 4/4 1/1
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At least 14 days’ notices are given to all Directors in advance
for attending regular and other Board meetings. Meeting
agendas and other relevant information are provided to
the Directors at least 3 days before the date of the Board
meetings. All Directors are consulted to include additional
matters in the agenda for Board meetings and have access to
the advice and services of the company secretary with a view
to ensuring that Board procedures, and all applicable rules
and regulations, are followed.

Both draft and final versions of the minutes are sent to all
Directors for their comment and records. Minutes of Board
meetings are kept by the company secretary and such minutes
are open for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable
prior notice by any Director.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

By providing all Directors with relevant guideline, updated
materials and training regarding the relevant laws and
applicable regulations, the duties and responsibilities of being
a Director, and relevant disclosure requirements, the Group
ensure that each Director understands and is familiar with the
relevant rules and the latest development. The Group has also
provided funding to each Director, to encourage Directors to
participate in various continuous professional development
courses, to ensure that each Director continue to possess the
necessary knowledge and skills to take part in and contribute
to the Board’s affairs.
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For the year of 2018, the Directors’ participation in continuous
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R20184E - EFLEMKFEEXERZIIM

professional development training is as follows: T
Training related
to corporate
governance,
regulatory
development
and other
relevant
professional
topics
BRLEER -
EERER
HinHAE %
Director 2= FEREI
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. AN Yubao (Chairman) THELE (F/E) v
Ms. LI Qian (Vice Chairlady, Chief Executive Officer) RiExL (FI£/E - #3) V
Professor ZHU Quan REHE Vv
Mr. TANG Ning BETE Vv
Non-Executive Director FHITES
Mr. LIN Sheng ME LA (BBE B
(Resigned, with effect from 13 April 2018) 201844 5 13H 4 &) v
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUFHITES
Mr. SU Yuanfu BoTfREE vV
Mr. FENG Zhongshi BB LA Vv
Ms. CHENG Xinxin PR R R 22+ v

All Directors have provided record of training attendance and FTEEFERME L FIHINEEE - fAR R
the Company will continue to arrange and/or fund the training — # & K& <F BE X EA 6.5 R TE L HHFIN R,

in accordance with paragraph A.6.5 of the Code Provisions.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION

S REIRTESR -

REREE

All Directors have entered into letters of appointment with the &EFHEHEARRFVZEE  BZEAHE
Company for a specific term of three years from the date of ZIEEFHA/=4F - AJHEET o

appointment, subject to re-election.
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In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company,
at each annual general meeting one third of the Directors for
the time being shall retire from office by rotation. However,
if the number of Directors is not a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to but not less than one third shall be the
name of retiring Directors. The Directors who shall retire in
each year will be those who have been longest in the office
since their last re-election or appointment but as for persons
who became or were last re-elected as Directors on the same
day those to retire will (unless they otherwise agree among
themselves) be determined by lot. Such retiring Directors may,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the annual
general meeting. All Directors appointed by the Board to fill a
casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting
of shareholders after their appointment and be subject to
re-election at such meeting and all Directors appointed by the
Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office
only until the next following annual general meeting and shall
then be eligible for re-election.

BOARD COMMITTEES
Nomination Committee

The Company established a nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) on 2 December 2013 with written
terms of reference in compliance with paragraph A.5.2 of the
Code Provisions. Its terms of reference were amended on 20
March 2019 and are available on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review
the structure, size and composition and diversity of the
Board on regular basis; identify individuals suitably qualified
to become Board members; assess the independence
of independent non-executive Directors; and make
recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to
the appointment or re-election of Directors. When identifying
suitable candidates for directorship, the Nomination Committee
will carry out the selection process by making reference to a
series of criteria as bases, including but not limited to skills,
experience, education background, professional knowledge,
personal integrity and time commitments of the proposed
candidates, and taking into consideration of the Company’s
Board Diversity Policy. All candidates must be able to meet
the standards as set forth in Rules 3.08 and 3.09 of the Listing
Rules. A candidate who is to be appointed as an independent
non-executive Director should also meet the independence
criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Qualified
candidates will then be recommended to the Board for
approval.
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As at the date of this annual report, the Nomination Committee RAERBEMH B EREESH KK EHA
comprises three members and two of them are independent [ @ EFRWREZABYIENTES (DRl AHTE
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. SU Yuanfu (Chairman), %4 (/) BRI EZ L) IR —ZAHITES
Ms. CHENG Xinxin and one Executive Director, namely Mr. AN (AL EELAE) - FA20184F + IR E B 8ITT
Yubao. In 2018, the Nomination Committee held two meetings mMKA @%@ SEZEeKEHELENTBOT ¢
and details of the committee members’ attendance are as

follows:
No. of
attendance/
No. of
committee
meeting
HERE
Committee member ZEBRE ZESEBNH
Independent non-Executive Directors BYKEBITES
Mr. SU Yuanfu (Committee Chairman) BILELE (ZEESLE) 2/2
Ms. CHENG Xinxin FCARIR 22+ 2/2
Executive Director HTES
Mr. AN Yubao ZHVE St A& 2/2

The Nomination Committee reviewed the structure, size and REZE &R TEFTSHNRE - REHEMK
composition of the Board, and assessed the independence #ZTEBYIFAITERABYM  UEREEAR
of the independent non-executive Directors and concluded RINESZEZTLBEREEZSHT ©

that the Company’s Board Diversity Policy has been properly

implemented.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance. With
a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development,
the Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level
as an essential element in supporting the attainment of its
strategic objectives and its sustainable development, and has
adopted the Board Diversity Policy.

All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against appropriate criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.
Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural background and ethnicity, in addition to educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit
and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.

For the purpose of implementation of the Board Diversity
Policy, the following measurable objectives were adopted:

(A) at least 40% of the members of the Board shall be
non-executive directors or independent non-executive
directors;

(B) at least 1/3 of the members of the Board shall be
independent non-executive directors;

(C) at least 1 of the members of the Board shall have
obtained accounting or relevant financial management
professional qualifications;

(D)  at least 50% of the members of the Board shall have 7
years or more of experience in the industry he/she is
specialised in; and

(E) at least 2 of the members of the Board shall have
China-related work experience.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) on 2 December 2013 with
written terms of reference in compliance with paragraph B.1.2
of the Code Provisions. Its terms of reference are available on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee will review the proposals
made by the management on the remuneration of Directors
and senior management and make recommendation to the
Board. The Board will have final authority to approve the
recommendations made by the Remuneration Committee.
The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee also
include making recommendation to the Board on the overall
remuneration policy and structure relating to all Directors
and senior management of the Group and to ensure none
of the Directors determine their own remuneration. The
emoluments of executive Directors are determined based
on the skills, knowledge, individual performance as well as
contributions, the scope of responsibility and accountability
of such Directors, taking into consideration of the Company’s
performance and prevailing market conditions. The
remuneration policy of non-executive Directors (including
independent non-executive Directors) is to ensure that the
non-executive Directors are adequately compensated for their
efforts and time dedicated to the Company’s affairs including
their participation in respective Board committees. The
emoluments of Directors are also determined with reference to
their skills, experience, knowledge, duties and market trends.
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As the date of this annual report, the Remuneration Committee
consists of three members and two of them are independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. FENG Zhongshi
(Chairman), Mr. SU Yuanfu and one executive Director, namely
Ms. LI Qian. In 2018, the Remuneration Committee held one
meeting and details of the committee members’ attendance
are as follows:

RAFEREMZBE FTHEZESH=2KEBHE
K ERMERBLIFATES (DRIREHE
A (ZE) BFRTBEL) AR —RRWTES
(RBEXL) - N2018F » HFMEBGRITT —
REH - BSREGNEBHEGAENFBLT

No. of

attendance/

No. of

committee

meeting

HERE

Committee member ZEERE ZESERNRY
Independent non-Executive Directors BYKEBITES

Mr. FENG Zhongshi (Committee Chairman) BHELE (ZESEE) 1/1

Mr. SU Yuanfu ERITiR e 1/1

Executive Director HITES
Ms. LI Qian R+ 1/1

The Remuneration Committee assessed the performance,
reviewed the proposal made by management on the
remuneration of executive Directors and senior management
and made recommendation to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior
management. Details of remuneration of Directors are set out
in note 6 to the Financial Statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) on 2 December 2013 with written terms of
reference in compliance with paragraph C3.3 and C3.7 of the
Code Provisions. Its terms of reference were amended on 16
December 2015 and came into effective from 1 January 2016,
which are available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.
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The Audit Committee reports to the Board and has held regular
meetings to review and make recommendations to improve
the Group’s financial reporting process, risk management and
internal controls. The primary duties of the Audit Committee,
among other things, are to make recommendation to the Board
on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of external
auditor, review the financial statements and oversee financial
reporting, risk management and internal control procedures of
the Group.

As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee consists of
three members and all of them are independent non-executive
Directors, namely Ms. CHENG Xinxin (Chairlady), Mr. FENG
Zhongshi and Mr. SU Yuanfu. The Audit Committee has
reviewed with management of the Company the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group, and discussed
internal controls and financial reporting matters. The Audit
Committee also met with the external auditors and reviewed
the Annual Results.

In 2018, the Audit Committee held two meetings and details of
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No. of
attendance/
No. of
committee
meeting
HERE
Committee member ZEERE EESERNRE

Independent non-Executive Directors BUFHTESE

Ms. CHENG Xinxin (Committee Chairlady) WKk L+ (ZEE@E/E) 2/2
Mr. FENG Zhongshi B ELEE 2/2
Mr. SU Yuanfu BRTETE 212
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The Audit Committee has reviewed with management of the
Company the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group, and discussed risk management, internal
controls and financial reporting matters. The Audit Committee
also met with the external auditors and reviewed this annual
report of the Company. The Board has not taken a different
view from the Audit Committee on the selection, appointment,
designation or dismissal of external auditors.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year of 2018, the Company engaged KPMG as the
external auditors. Apart from providing audit services, KPMG
also provided interim financial statements review. The fees in
respect of audit and non-audit services provided by KPMG for
the year ended 31 December 2018 amounted to approximately
RMB2,100,000 and RMB450,000, respectively.

The reporting responsibilities of KPMG are set out in the
Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages 71 to 83.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for ensuring the
Group to maintain a sound and effective risk management and
internal control system, and making review on its effectiveness
at least once a year. The Audit Committee assists the Board
in fulfilling its governance role over finance, operations,
compliance, risk management and internal control of the
Group. The Group’s Audit and Legal Centre assists the Board
and the Audit Committee in reviewing the effectiveness of the
Company’s risk management and internal control system on an
ongoing basis. The Board is regularly updated on significant
risks which may affect the performance of the Group.
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The Group’s internal control system is designed to safeguard
assets against misappropriation and unauthorized disposition,
to ensure compliance of relevant ordinances and rules, to
ensure proper maintenance of accounting records for provision
of reliable financial information used within the business or for
publication and to manage operational risks. The controls built
into the risk management system are intended to manage,
not eliminate, significant risks in the Group’s business
environment. Such systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to business objective, and can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

The Group has established on-going procedures for
identifying, assessing and managing the significant
risks involved with the Group. Meanwhile, it reviews the
effectiveness of the relevant internal control system. These
procedures include but not limited to: (1) the Group has
established and continued to improve the risk management
structure and internal control mechanism, and has regularly
conducted project audit and annual risk assessment
according to the risk management system code and annual
plan; (2) to identify the significant risks involved in the
business and assess the impact of such risks on the business
of the Group; (83) information gathering channels, to ensure
material or potential inside information being captured and
kept confidential until timely disclosure is made in accordance
with the Listing Rules; (4) to conduct gap analysis on the
internal control measures in response to the significant
risks, and make recommendations on the improvement of its
internal audit functions; and (5) to continuously follow up and
supervise the implementation of relevant measures against the
recommended improvements.

The Group’s Audit and Legal Centre assists in implementing
the risk management practices and prepares regular work
reports on whether the relevant internal control is adequate
and effective in the previous year. The Audit Committee
will report to the Board on the implementation of the risk
management and internal control policy, including the
identification of risk factors and assessment on which grades
of risks are acceptable by the Group and the effectiveness of
risk management and internal control policy.
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Based on the report prepared by the Group’s Audit and Legal
Centre and Audit Committee, the Board believes that the
risk management and internal control system of the Group
is proper and effective, and the Group has complied with
the provisions of risk management and internal control as
contained in the corporate governance code. The Group will
continue to review the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control system in coming years.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. YAU Chi Ming, being our company secretary, is primarily
responsible for the company secretarial work of the Group. Mr.
YAU attended no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during 2018.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The shareholders of the Company may make requisition for
the convening of an extraordinary general meeting (‘EGM”) of
the Company in accordance with the procedures set out in the
Articles of Association as follows:

(1) Any one or more shareholders, who at the date of
deposit of the requisition hold not less than one tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company having the right
of voting at general meetings, shall have the right, by
written notice, to require an EGM to be called by the
Directors of the Company for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition.
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Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or
the company secretary of the Company at the following:

Principal place of business of the Company in the PRC

Address: 71,
Guangzhou Economic and Technological

Dongpeng Avenue, Eastern section,

Development District, Guangzhou, PRC
Email: ir@chinaconsun.com

Attention: Company Secretary

Registered Address of the Company

Address: Clifton House, 75 Fort Street,
PO Box 1350,
Grand Cayman KY 1-1108,
Cayman Islands

Attention: Company Secretary

The Board will convene an EGM within 21 days from the
date of deposit of the requisition.

If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board does not
proceed duly to convene such EGM, the requisitionists
themselves may do so in the same manner, as nearly as
possible, as that in which meetings may be convened
by the Board, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board
shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.

For matters in relation to the Board, shareholders can
contact the Company at the following:

Address: 71, Dongpeng Avenue, Eastern section,
Guangzhou Economic and Technological
Development District, Guangzhou, PRC

Email: ir@chinaconsun.com

Tel: (86) 20-82264529

(86) 20-82261886

Company Secretary

Fax:
Attention:
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To put forward proposals at a general meeting of the
Company, a shareholder should lodge a written notice of his
or her proposal (“Proposal’) with his or her detailed contact
information at the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong, the address is: 22nd Floor, World-Wide House, 19
Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.

The request will be verified with the Company’s branch share
registrars in Hong Kong and upon their confirmation that the
request is proper and in order, the Board will be asked to

include the Proposal in the agenda for the general meeting.

The notice period to be given to all the shareholders for
consideration of the Proposal raised by the shareholder
concerned at the general meeting varies according to the
nature of the Proposal as follows:

(1) At least 14 days’ notice in writing if the Proposal
requires approval by way of ordinary resolution of the
Company.

(2) At least 21 days’ notice in writing if the Proposal
requires approval by way of a special resolution of the
Company in an EGM of the Company or an ordinary
resolution of the Company in an annual general meeting
of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION

The Board recognises the importance of good communications
with all shareholders. The Company believes that maintaining
a high level of transparency is a key to enhance investor
relations. The Company is committed to a policy of open and
timely disclosure of corporate information to its shareholders
and public investors.
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The Company updates its shareholders on its latest business
developments and financial performance through its corporate
publications including interim and annual reports and public
announcements. Extensive information about the Company’s
activities for the year ended 31 December 2018 has been
provided in this annual report. While the annual general
meeting provides a valuable forum for direct communication
between the Board and its shareholders, the Company also
maintains its website (http://www.chinaconsun.com) to provide
an alternative communication channel for the public and its
shareholders. All corporate communication and Company’s
latest updates are available on the Company’s website for
public’s information.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, there has been no
significant change in the Company’s constitutional documents.

Hong Kong, 20 March 2019
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The Board of the Company are pleased to present the annual
report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements (the “Financial Statements”) of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and those of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set
out in note 15 to the Financial Statements.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required
by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
including a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group and an indication of likely future
developments in the Group’s business, can be found in the
Chairman’s statement and the Management Discussion and
Analysis set out on pages 5 to 13 and pages 15 to 22 of this
annual report, which form part of this director’s report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group’s annual results for the year ended 31 December
2018 and its state of affairs as at 31 December 2018 are set
out in the Financial Statements on pages 84 to 223.

The Company did not pay an interim dividend in 2018 (2017
interim dividend: HKDO0.096 (approximately RMB0.082)
per share, totally approximately RMB66,059,000). The
Board proposed to declare a final dividend of HKDO0.20
per share (2017: HKDO0.10 per share), totally approximately
RMB146,288,000 (2017: approximately RMB68,943,000) for the
year ended 31 December 2018. The proposed final dividend
is subject to approval by the shareholders of the Company at
the annual general meeting to be held on Friday, 31 May 2019
and, if approved, is expected to be paid on or about Friday,
21 June 2019 to shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on Friday, 14 June 2019.
The final dividend is declared and will be paid in HKD.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

According to the Company’s Articles of Association, the
Company may declare and pay dividends out of our
distributable reserves as permitted under the relevant law.
The payment and the amount of any dividends will depend
on the results of the Group’s operations, cash flow, financial
condition, statutory and regulatory restrictions on the payment
of dividends, future prospects and other factors that the
Board may consider relevant. A decision to distribute any
interim dividend or recommend any final dividend will be
at the discretion of the Board. In addition, any payment of
final dividend will be subject to approval by the Company’s
shareholders. The Board reviews the Company’s dividend
policy from time to time in light of the following factors in
determining whether dividends are to be declared and paid:

- financial results of the Group;

- shareholders’ interests;

— general business conditions, strategies and future
expansion needs;

- the Company’s capital requirements;

- the payment by the subsidiaries of cash dividends to
the Company;

- possible effects on liquidity and financial position of the
Group; and

- other factors the Board may consider relevant.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years ended 31 December
2014 to 2018 is set out on page 224. This summary does not
form part of the Financial Statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of changes in share capital of the Company during
the year of 2018 are set out in note 25(c) to the Financial
Statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2018, the Company’s distributable
reserves, calculated in accordance with the Companies Law
Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of
the Cayman lIslands, amounted to RMB274,029,000 (2017:
RMB397,537,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group maintains good business relationships with its
suppliers and customers, which are beneficial for the Group’s
healthy long-term development.

For the year of 2018, the aggregate sales attributable to the
Company’s five largest customers, including sales to entities
which are known to the Group to be under common control
with these customers, accounted for approximately 60% of
the total revenue for the year; sales to the largest customer
accounted for approximately 23% thereof. The aggregate
purchases attributable to the Company’s five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 59% of the total purchase for
the year; purchases from the largest supplier accounted for
approximately 31% thereof.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors,
their associates or any shareholders who owned more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital had any beneficial
interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers or
suppliers during the year.
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SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATED COMPANIES AND
JOINTLY CONTROLLED COMPANIES

Details of the major subsidiaries of the Group are set out in
note 15 to the Financial Statements.

PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASE
PREPAYMENTS

Details of changes in the Group’s investment property, other
property, plant and equipment and lease prepayments during
the year of 2018 are set out in notes 9 to 11 to the Financial
Statements.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

During the year of 2018, the Group’s total capital expenditure
amounted to RMB200,789,000 (2017: RMB43,088,000)
which was used for acquisition of other property, plant and
equipment. Details of movements the Group’s other property,
plant and equipment are set out in note 10 to the Financial
Statements.

LOANS AND BORROWINGS

On 17 March 2017, the Company signed a facility agreement
(the “Facility Agreement”) with BNP Paribas, acting through
its Hong Kong Branch (the “Lender”), pursuant to which the
Lender agreed to grant the Company a three year term loan
facility of up to HK$560,000,000. Pursuant to the Facility
Agreement, if (a) Mr. AN Yubao (“Mr. AN”, the current
Chairman of the Board) and Central Success Developments
Limited (which is wholly owned by Mr. AN) and Ms. LI Qian
(“Ms. LI”, the current Vice Chairlady of the Board and the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company) and Double Grace
International Limited (which is wholly owned by Ms. LI) cease
collectively to (i) be the beneficial owners, either directly
or indirectly, of at least 30% of the issued share capital of
the Company or (ii) be the single largest shareholder, either
directly or indirectly, of the Company; or (b) Central Success
Developments Limited ceases to be wholly-owned by Mr. AN
and/or his family; or (c) Double Grace International Limited
ceases to be wholly-owned by Ms. LI and/or her family, which
each of them will constitute an event of default, all outstanding
amounts under the Loan Facility (including principal and
interest) shall become immediately due and payable.

As at the date of this report, these commitments continued to
exist and were complied with.
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Details of the Group’s loans and borrowings as at 31
December 2018 are set out in note 21 to the Financial
Statements.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The Directors of the Company who hold office during the year
and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. AN Yubao (Chairman)

Ms. LI Qian (Vice Chairlady, Chief Executive Officer)
Professor ZHU Quan

Mr. TANG Ning (appointed on 1 June 2018)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. LIN Sheng (Resigned, effective from 13 April 2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. SU Yuanfu
Mr. FENG Zhongshi
Ms. CHENG Xinxin

Each of the Directors has entered into a letter of appointment
with the Company for an initial term of three years from the
date of appointment, automatically renewable for a further one
year subject to director’s rotation pursuant to the Articles of
Association of the Company and can be terminated by not less
than three months’ notice in writing served by either party on
the other. None of the Directors has a service contract which
is not determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries
within 1 year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

The Company has received annual confirmation on
independence from each of the independent non-executive
Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and all of
them are considered to be independent.
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In accordance with article 112 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, the Directors shall have the power from time to
time and at any time to appoint any person as the Director
either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as an addition
to the existing Board. Any Director so appointed by the Board
shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-
election. Accordingly, Mr. TANG Ning who was appointed as
an executive Director by the Board with effect from 1 June
2018 shall be eligible for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, one
third of the existing Directors shall retire from office at each
annual general meeting. Accordingly, Mr. AN Yubao, Ms. LI
Qian and Professor ZHU Quan shall retire from office at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as otherwise disclosed, there was no transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
or an entity connected with a Director had a material interest
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management
of the Group are disclosed in the section headed “Directors
and Senior Management Profile” on pages 23 to 33 of this
annual report.
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

Each of Mr. AN Yubao, the chairman of the Board, Ms. LI
Qian, the vice chairlady of the Board, and Mr. YOUNG Wai
Po, Peter (collectively, the “Controlling Shareholders “or
“Non-Competing Covenantors”) entered into a deed of
non-competition (“Deed of Non-Competition”) on 2 December
2013, pursuant to which the Non-Competing Covenantors
have irrevocably and severally (but not jointly and severally)
undertaken to the Company (for itself and for the benefit of
each of the members of the Group) that with effect from the
date of Listing and for as long as the shares of the Company
remain so listed on the Stock Exchange and the Controlling
Shareholders are individually or collectively with any of his/
its associates interested directly or indirectly in not less than
30.0% of the issued ordinary share capital of the Company
(the “Restricted Period”), the Non-Competing Covenantors or
their respective associates shall not, (i) directly or indirectly
engage, participate or hold any right or interest in or render
any services to or otherwise be involved in any business
(whether as owner, director, operator, licensor, licensee,
partner, shareholder, joint venturer, employee, consultant or
otherwise) in competition with or likely to be in competition
with the existing business carried on by the Group (the
“Restricted Business”); and (ii) directly or indirectly take any
action which constitutes an interference with or a disruption
of the Restricted Business including, but not limited to, (a)
solicitation of any existing or then existing employees of the
Group for employment by them or their associates (excluding
the Group); (b) solicitation of any current or then current
customers and/or suppliers and/or former customers and/
or suppliers of the Group for the preceding 6 months at the
relevant time away from the Group; and (c) without the consent
from the Company, making use of any information pertaining
to the business of the Group which may have come to their
knowledge in their capacity as Substantial Shareholders for
the purpose of engaging, investing or participating in any
Restricted Business. Each of the Non-Competing Covenantors
severally (but not jointly and severally) undertakes to the
Company (for itself and for the benefit of each of the members
of the Group) that, in respect of any order or any part of it
undertaken or proposed to be undertaken by him/her or his/
her associates for the Restricted Business, it shall and shall
procure that his/her associates shall, unconditionally use
reasonable endeavours to procure that such customer(s) to
appoint or contract directly with any member of the Group for

the Restricted Business under the relevant order.
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Each of the Non-Competing Covenantors jointly and
severally undertakes to indemnify and keep indemnified the
Group against any damage, loss or liability suffered by the
Company or any other member of the Group arising out of
or in connection with any breach of its undertakings and/
or obligations under the Deed of Non-Competition, including
any costs and expenses incurred as a result of such breach
provided that such indemnity shall be without prejudice to
any other rights and remedies the Company is entitled to in
relation to any such breach, including specific performance,
and all such other things and remedies are hereby expressly
reserved by the Company.

Each of the Controlling Shareholders has confirmed to
the Company of his/its compliance with the Deed of
Non-Competition provided to the Company until (i) the date on
which the Company’s shares cease to be listed on the Stock
Exchange; or (ii) the date on which the relevant Covenantor
and his/its associates cease to own 30% or more of the then
issued share capital of the Company directly or indirectly;
whichever occurs first.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company had
reviewed the status of compliance as well as confirmation by
the Controlling Shareholders of the Company and, on the basis
of such confirmation, are of the view that such Controlling
Shareholders have complied with their non-competition
undertakings under the Deed of Non-Competition and these
non-competition undertakings have been enforced by the
Company in accordance with its terms.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Company did not enter into any transactions which
constitute non-exempt connected transactions within the
meaning of the Listing Rules during the year of 2018.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s existing Share Option Scheme was approved
for adoption on 2 December 2013 for the purpose to provide
the Company with a flexible means of giving incentive to,
rewarding, remunerating, compensating and/or providing
benefits to eligible participants and for such other purposes
as the Board approve from time to time. Subject to the terms
of the Share Option Scheme, the Board may, at their absolute
discretion, grant or invite any person belonging to any of the
following classes to take up options to subscribe for shares:
(a) any employee, supplier/service provider, customer,
partner or joint-venture partner of the Group (including any
director, whether executive and whether independent or not,
of the Group) who is in full-time or part-time employment with
the Company or any subsidiaries, (b) any person who have
contributed or may contribute to the Group. The total number
of share which may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company must not exceed 10%
of the total number of shares in issue on the date of Listing
unless the Company seeks the approval of the shareholders in
general meeting for refreshing the 10% limit under the Share
Option Scheme provided that options lapsed in accordance
with the terms of the Share Option Scheme or any other share
option schemes of the Company will not be counted for the
purpose of calculating 10% limit.

The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are
summarised as follows:

The exercise price per share of the Company for each option
granted shall be determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion but in any event shall be at least the higher of:

(1) the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the
date of offer for the grant of option (“Date of Grant”)
which must be a trading day;

(2) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the
daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
for the five trading days immediately preceding the
Date of Grant; and

(3) the nominal value of the shares on the Date of Grant.
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Upon acceptance of the options, the grantee shall pay
HKD1.00 to the Company as consideration for the grant. The
acceptance of an offer of the grant of the option must be
made within the date as specified in the offer letter issued
by the Company. The exercise period of any option granted
under the Share Option Scheme shall not be longer than 10
years commencing on the date of grant and expiring on the
last day of such 10-year period subject to the provisions for
early termination as contained in the Share Option Scheme.
The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted and to be granted to each
grantee under the Share Option Scheme (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) in any 12-month period
shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares in issue.
Any further grant of options in excess of this 1% limit shall
be subject to issuance of a circular by the Company and
approved by its shareholders in accordance with the Listing
Rules.
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Details of share options outstanding during the year are as

follows:

FARRITENBREFBLT

Outstanding Outstanding
as at, Granted Exercised Cancelled Expired as at
1 January during during during during 31 December
2018 the year the year the year the year 2018
R2018% 20185
1A1H 12A318
HRTR ERRL ERfTE FREs ERER HRTR
000 000 '000 '000 000 000
Tk Tk T ik Tk T
Share options with exercise TEEAC6IETHERE
price of HKD6.64
Directors 43
Mr. AN Yubao RHELE 6,000 - - - - 6,000
Ms. LI Qian ¥Eat 6,000 - - - - 6,000
Professor ZHU Quan REHR 1,200 - - - - 1,200
Mr. TANG Ning EERE 349 - - - - 349
Employees &8
In aggregate @t 7,181 - (189) - (460) 6,532
20,730 - (189) - (460) 20,081
Share options with exercise TEERLVIATNERE
price of HKD4.01
Directors 3
Mr. AN Yubao RHELLE 4,000 - - - - 4,000
Ms. LI Qian RExt 4,000 - - - - 4,000
Professor ZHU Quan REHR 2,000 = = = (242) 1758
Mr. TANG Ning EERLE 1,337 - - - (180) 1,167
Employees E8
In aggregate @t 32,495 = (1,392) = (7.136) 23,967
_______________________________________________________ o8 oo 0 o (15%8) 34882
64,562 - (1,581) - (8,018) 54,963

The options outstanding as at 31 December 2018 had a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 6.5 years.

BRI E N FEE6.5F -
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Apart from the aforesaid share option schemes, at no time
during the year ended 31 December 2018 was any of the
Company or its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate, and none of the Directors, or their
spouses or children under the age of 18, had any right to
subscribe for the shares in, or debentures of, the Company, or
had exercised any such right.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Board of the Company had adopted a Share Award
Scheme (“Share Award Scheme”) on 21 July 2014 as a means
to recognise the contributions by the selected employees and
provide them with incentives in order to retain them for the
continual operation and development of the Group and attract
suitable personnel for the further development of the Group.

Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, the selected employees
may be granted during the duration of the Share Award
Scheme an award in the form of awarded shares (“Awarded
Shares”). Awarded Shares will be purchased by the trustee
of the Company (“Trustee”) on the market out of cash
contributed by the Company and be held on trust for the
selected employees until such shares are vested on them in
accordance with the provisions of the Share Award Scheme.
The Board shall not make any further award of Awarded
Shares which will result in the nominal value of the shares
awarded by the Board under the Share Award Scheme
exceeding 10% of the issued share capital of the Company
from time to time. The maximum number of shares which may
be awarded to a selected employee under the Share Award
Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the
Company from time to time.

As at 31 December 2018, 19,798,000 ordinary shares were
held by the Trustee under the Share Award Scheme, among
which 19,698,000 shares were held on behalf of the Company
while the remaining 100,000 shares were held on behalf of
certain employees.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
OR SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2018, the Directors and chief executives
of the Company had the following interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company, its group members and/or associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO”)), as recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code:

EERFETHRAEBRKRG - HBERORE
BEESIAR

MR2018F12A31H » EERARRAEETHA
BERARA - EEBEKE AR KA EE
(EERBHFRBEGKD ((BERBEEKRG]) 5
XVER) iR fn - HEARMD RE#REF EAER
AREEFH KBGO EI52E M EFEMNERD
MzERSAR  BBREFRE STHAE AR
NAIRBMRFANERIABRT

Approximate

Number and Class Percentage of
Name of Director Nature of Interest and Capacity of Securities™" Shareholding
EEpHE EEHEREH EHEHERERO BAOREED L
AN Yubao® Beneficial Owner 19,805,817 Shares (L) 2.26%(L)
ZHE® E=EBA 19,805,817 A%(L)
AN Yubao® Interest of controlled corporation 197,324,000 Shares (L) 22.55%(L)
ZHE® RPE AR RS 197,324,0004%(L)
Sub-total 217,129,817 Shares (L) 24.81%(L)
NEF 217,129,8178%(L)
LI Qian® Beneficial Owner 15,922,261 Shares (L) 1.82%(L)
RE EnEAA 15,922,261 %(L)
LI Qian® Interest of controlled corporation 127,048,000 Shares (L) 14.52%(L)
RIE® Rt EE R 127,048,0008%(L)
Sub-total 142,970,261 Shares (L) 16.34%(L)
/Nt 142,970,261%(L)
ZHU Quan® Beneficial Owner 2,957,700 Shares (L) 0.34%(L)
KEO BB A 2,957,700/%(L)
TANG Ning® Beneficial Owner 1,505,600 Shares (L) 0.17%(L)
EEO® EnlAA 1,505,600/%(L)
CHENG Xinxin Beneficial Owner 2,993,000 Shares (L) 0.34%(L)
FSCRR R En#EEA 2,993,000/% (L)
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Notes:

(1) The letter “L” denotes the Directors’ long position in the shares

of the Company or the relevant associated corporation.

2) Including shares in relation to 10,000,000 share options,
10,000,000 share options, 2,957,700 share options, and
1,605,600 share options granted to Mr. AN Yubao, Ms. LI Qian,
Professor ZHU Quan and Mr. TANG Ning respectively under
the Share Option Scheme adopted on 2 December 2013.

(3) The entire issued share capital of Central Success
Developments Limited (“Central Success”) is owned by Aali
Resources Limited. Aali Resources Limited is held in the name
of BOS Trustee Limited as a trustee of a discretionary trust, of
which Mr. AN Yubao is the founder. Therefore, Mr. AN Yubao
is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Central

Success under the provisions of SFO.

4) The entire issued share capital of Double Grace International
Limited (“Double Grace”) is owned by Ms. LI, therefore, Ms.
Ll is deemed to be interested in all the shares held by Double

Grace under the provisions of SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of
the Directors and chief executives of the Company had any
other interests or short positions in any shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company, any of its group
members or its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which were notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which
were required, pursuant to the Model Code.

Hiat -

(1)

2

(3)

(4)

B EXREBEES
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND/
OR SHORT POSITION IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2018, so far as was known to the
Directors, the following persons/entities (other than the
Directors or chief executives of the Company) had, or were
deemed to have, interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company, its group members and/
or associated corporations which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required

to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

Name of Shareholder

BREWHE

Nature of Interest and Capacity

EEMEER S0

EFERRRAQARGRAABERD P2 Em
R/ SRHKR

REBEHAM WAL
2 (BEEHARAEBITHABRIN) RARQ
HEEKER 7&/_}Z$HH9F/£IZH§T§}ENH
% G - EASER AEARBRES RAE
G EXVED B2 35 G X B M AR 7 # 5&
MESSAR  RERAREES KBEEHE
33BEARARIAFENELMANERIAR

2018¢12ﬁ31EI

]

g‘m}%

—

Approximate
Number and Class
of Securities™"

= BE RERO

Percentage of
Shareholding
BARERD

Beneficial owner

BEmEAA

Guidoz Limited®
Guidoz Limited®

YOUNG Wai Po, Peter® Interest of controlled corporation

BER@ A B R
BOS Trustee Limited® Trustee
BOS Trustee Limited® SEEA

Aali Resources Limited® Interest of controlled corporation

Aali Resources Limited® SEHE A B M i

Beneficial owner

BEmfEAA

Central Success®

R

Beneficial owner

BEmEAA

Double Grace®
Double Grace®

Lazard Asset Management
LLC

Lazard Asset Management
LLC

Investment manager

AR

110,050,000 shares (L)
110,050,000/% (L)

12.57%(L)

110,050,000 shares (L)
110,050,000/% (L)

12.57%(L)

197,324,000 Shares (L)
197,324,000/% (L)

22.56%(L)

197,324,000 Shares (L)
197,324,000A% (L)

22.56%(L)

197,324,000 shares (L)
197,324,000A% (L)

22.56%(L)

127,048,000 shares (L)
127,048,000A% (L)

14.52%(L)

43,978,000 shares (L) 5.02%(L)

43,978,000/%(L)
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Notes:

(1) The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the shares
of the Company or the relevant group member. The letter
“S” denotes the person’s short position in the shares of the

Company or the relevant group member.

) The entire issued share capital of Guidoz Limited is legally and
beneficially owned by Mr. YOUNG. By virtue of the SFO, Mr.
YOUNG is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by
Guidoz Limited.

(3) The entire issued share capital of Central Success is owned by
Aali Resources Limited. Aali Resources Limited is held in the
name of BOS Trustee Limited as a trustee of a discretionary
trust, of which Mr. AN Yubao is the founder. Therefore, Mr. AN
Yubao is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by

Central Success under the provisions of SFO.

4) The entire issued share capital of Double Grace is legally
and beneficially owned by Ms. LI. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. LI
is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Double

Grace.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, the
Directors were not aware of any other persons/entities (other
than the Directors and chief executive of the Company) who
had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company, its group members or associated
corporations which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

COMPETITION AND CONFLICT OF INTERESTS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, none of the
Directors or Controlling Shareholders of the Company or any
of their respective associates has engaged in any business
that competes or may compete with the business of the Group
or has any other conflict of interests with the Group.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

In December 2018, the Company issued a total of 1,580,600
ordinary shares pursuant to employees’ exercise of share
options granted under Share Option Scheme (adopted on 2
December 2013).

Save for the above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeem any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year ended 31 December 2018.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for the pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association, or the laws of the Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover
for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions
against its Directors and senior management arising out of
corporative activities. The permitted indemnity provision is in
force for the benefit of the Directors as required by section
470 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance when the
Report of the Directors prepared by the Directors is approved
in accordance with section 391(1)(a) of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules
during the year ended 31 December 2018.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Details of the Group’s corporate governance practices can
be found in the Corporate Governance Report contained on
pages 34 to 51 in this annual report.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting will be held on Friday, 31 May
2019. Shareholders should refer to details regarding the
annual general meeting in the circular of the Company to be
issued in due course and the notice of the annual general
meeting and form of proxy accompanying thereto.

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

To determine the eligibility of the shareholders of the Company
to attend the annual general meeting to be held on Friday, 31
May 2019, the Company’s register of members will be closed
from Tuesday, 28 May 2019 to Friday, 31 May 2019 (both
days inclusive), during which period no transfer of shares will
be effected.
annual general meeting, all completed transfer documents

In order to be entitled to attend and vote at the

accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on Monday, 27 May 2019.

Report of Directors
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Report of Directors

ESERE

In addition, to determine shareholders’ entitlement to the
final dividend, the Company’s register of members will be
closed from Tuesday, 11 June 2019 to Friday, 14 June 2019
(both days inclusive). In order to qualify for the entitlements
to the final dividend, all completed transfers documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 pm on
Monday, 10 June 2019.

AUDITORS

A resolution to re-appoint the retiring auditors, KPMG, is to be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

By order of the Board
Consun Pharmaceutical Group Limited

AN Yubao
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 20 March 2019
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e

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Consun Pharmaceutical Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Consun Pharmaceutical Group Limited (“the Company”)
and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 84 to
223, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2018, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2018 and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”)
together with any ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the consolidated financial statements in the Cayman
Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B ZBERE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

BAREER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional FAEFTFIEHERBERFINEZHE @ RAEHK
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the HiIGAHEHRERNEBIZAEENSEIE - ELE
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These EEERMFIEFELHEAMBEHRRLEAES B
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the ETTERIER) - BT @Y ELSHEIEHEBFNS
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming & o

our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion

on these matters.

WATER - BHEZH

Revenue recognition: distributor arrangements

Refer to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note 1(v).
BRI A AR A2 R 1(v)R B 5B

The Key Audit Matter
BRENEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BANESF O AEEZSE

Revenue mainly comprises sales of
pharmaceutical products to a large number
of distributors throughout Mainland China.

WAFZBRRERTBEAES MRS LHEHE

o
&hop o

Each year, the Group enters into
standardised agreements with its
distributors setting out the key terms of the
distribution arrangements (“Distributor
Agreements”), including the terms of
delivery and policies for sales rebates and
sales returns. Purchase orders are then
placed with the Group and products are
delivered to the location designated by
the distributor, at which point the control
of the goods are considered to have been
transferred to the distributor and revenue is
recognised.

EEEEFRAKEMIIVEELCHE  EF
O HLHE ([REEmE]) T E5RN
BE R AR FRIA RSH &R A K 81 B iR B I
Ko RHPMHRGRAERE TERBIE M
EmBRXNERETHE - B §mEtE
SWEREEETHBLHR AR E R #

27
s

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of revenue from
distributor arrangements included the following:

BB E R KB E AR ENRANET BT EREATERF

° assessing the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of management’s key internal controls
which govern revenue recognition;

. FHEEEERE WA RO B AIE R - ITRE
TER ML

° inspecting Distributor Agreements, on a sample basis, to
understand the terms of the sales transactions, including
the terms of delivery, applicable rebates and sales
return arrangements and to assess the Group’s revenue
recognition criteria with reference to the requirements of
the prevailing accounting standards;

. MEREKEE RS AERHERISHNGER (BN
ERERNRHERELZHENGER) - AR2ERITEFER
BV AR E AT 4 B SR B B WA TERARZE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Independent Auditor’s Report
By AR E

BREER (A7)

Revenue recognition: distributor arrangements (Continued)

WATER  BHBLH (F)

Refer to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note 1(v).

BRI A R A2 R ()R EET R -

The Key Audit Matter
BREITSE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BN ES A REZEE

We identified recognition of revenue from
distributor arrangements as a key audit
matter because revenue is one of the
key performance indicators of the Group
and therefore there is an inherent risk of
manipulation of the timing of recognition of
revenue by management to meet specific
targets or expectations.
HPRAERRELHBA LN RABERE
EE RARKATNESEES — KEGEE
RIER - MU E IR BRI R U B s 1 LA
ERET AR ENEG AR -

° for a sample of revenue transactions recorded just
before and after the year end, inspecting the related
goods delivery notes, which had been signed by the
distributors as evidence of their receipt of the goods, to
assess if the related revenue had been recognised in
the appropriate financial period on the basis of the terms
of sale as set out in the Distributor Agreements and the
terms of the purchase orders;

. AR FEBRRARNRARSEATNS @ REHEEH
EnRXMRE (CHKHEREE  EREAKIIERNER) -
VART (4 AR RA UL A R 75 B AR 15 45 81 75 175 2 P 380 8 &5 IR R BR B
I BRI EE T B AR AR

° for a sample of sales rebates recorded during the
year, comparing the details of the bases of the rebate
calculations and the rebate ratios with the terms of the
underlying Distributor Agreements and comparing the
rebate bases (e.g. the sales amounts settled during the
year) to sub-ledgers and underlying bank remittances,
cheques, bills and other payment slips (where
applicable);

. HFAARNEERMNEARMS - LLEURA Y FTE 25 KR
ML ENFBERBALSHEEHZNER  AREEOHE
BEYH (MFAEENHESH) BoBRRIEEARITE
B XRE - ZEREREMMSFKE (WER)
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B ZBERE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

MREER (A7)

Revenue recognition: distributor arrangements (Continued)

WATERR | EHBLHE (F)

Refer to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note 1(v).

R E R EIREMNF2 R (V) BB BR °

The Key Audit Matter
BREITSE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BB A REZEE

scrutinising the sales ledger after the year end to
identify significant credit notes issued and sales returns
and inspecting relevant underlying documentation to
assess if the related adjustments to revenue had been
accounted for in the appropriate financial period in
accordance with the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards; and
REFEBENEEDBRABSIS B LN RBENRER R
HERE - DA RBRE BRI ART A WA ETE AR A B
ERERBRTEAEINRENEE NP EEEAALR
K

inspecting significant manual adjustments to revenue
raised during the reporting period, enquiring of
management the reasons for such adjustments and
comparing the details of the adjustments with relevant
underlying documentation.
BERBMEHANHRAEHNERAFHAE  AERESH
TEL AR RE & L BB 15 AR S
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Independent Auditor’s Report
By AR E

BREER (A7)

Loss allowance for trade receivables

E S EWHIRRI BB

Refer to note 18 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note 1(1).

BRI A AN 18RI 1A B AR -

The Key Audit Matter
BRENEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BAMES O AEEZSE

As at 31 December 2018 the carrying
value of the Group’s net trade receivables
totalled RMB604,163,000, net of loss
allowance of RMB10,583,000.

2018 12A31H - EXEE 5 R HIEN
FREER FHEE H A AKHK604,163,0007T
KRB858 #H A K #10,583,0007T °

Management measured loss allowance at
an amount equal to lifetime expected credit
loss, based on ageing of the receivables
and loss rate for the receivables which
existed during the reporting periods in
which HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” was
applicable. According to the experience
of the Group, the loss patterns for different
customers are not significantly different
and therefore, the receivables are not
segmented for measurement of loss
allowance.

AR EHAANFEEBEYEREERFEIHR
[CRTA|PMERNEKRFIENS  ERE
RAR UK IR BRI B R X - IRIBENEE
FEPNEREERESREAEEERE - R
BESENKR  TRATFPHNEREXERR
AE e Eitt - BRFOEEETELDBRUGE
BIR R o

Our audit procedures to assess the loss allowance for trade
receivables included the following:

BB E 5 RUGR R R R EN BT 2R TR

° obtaining an understanding of and assessing the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of key
internal controls relating to credit control, debt collection
and estimate of expected credit losses and making
related allowances;

. TERREEREEES - WERGSTEBEEBELELE
HEHEAEBNERAIEENRG - BT REEFTRL

° obtaining an understanding on the key data and
assumptions of the expected credit loss model adopted
by the management, including the historical default
data and the assumptions involved in management’s
estimated loss rate;

. THREREMRMEHCEEBRRENEZFRELEBR 8
RBEROCEARERERBERXNMA T ROR

Sl
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BY AR S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

MREER (A7)

Loss allowance for trade receivables (Continued)

ESEWHIRRERREE (&)

BRI A AN 18RI 1 (DA B AR -

Refer to note 18 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note 1(1).

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

HAREETER BN EFONAEEZEER

We identified loss allowance for trade | e
receivables as a key audit matter because
trade receivables and loss allowance
are material to the Group and because
the recognition of expected credit losses
is inherently subjective and requires
the exercise of significant management
judgement. o
HARREZRRFIANEEREEARE
21 RAREZRRFBENEBEEGBYES
EMEBEN  YARIEHEEERFEE
B REZETERETEREKRFL -

assessing the reasonableness of management’s loss
allowance estimates by examining the information used
by management to form such judgements, including
testing the accuracy of the historical default data
and evaluating whether the historical loss rates are
appropriately adjusted based on current economic
conditions and forward-looking information;
ZREHNEREEVKEBABERANGER - SFEAFBE
BRAGENERE LT HBEEBEEXESRERFLERR
RAEHERMELEE AR U HEEEAREREEN
fETRa IR

assessing, on a sample basis, whether items in the trade
receivables ageing report were classified within the
appropriate ageing category by comparing individual
items with underlying sales invoices; and
FRHERLBERIER BAEFHEEEERE  SHEE S RKFIE
FRIcREANIRE EEESBEERENREKER - &

comparing, on a sample basis, cash receipts from
debtors subsequent to the financial year end relating to
trade receivable balances at 31 December 2018 with
bank statements and relevant underlying documentation.
RV RFREFERREEFAREBNER S (BR20185F12
AB1EME ZRKFIAZERAR) HIRTTHRE XA XM
EITHRLR -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Independent Auditor’s Report
By AR E

BREER (A7)

Assessing potential impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets — trademark

TEREERBEMEREE — BEREERE

Refer to note 12 and note 13 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note 1(1).
BRI E R EIRERMN 12 R A3 13 RATaE1()8 251 B -

The Key Audit Matter
BRENEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BAMES O AEEZSE

As a result of the acquisition by the Group
of Guangxi Yulin Pharmaceutical Group
Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as “Yulin Pharmaceutical
Group”) in 2016, the Group recognised
goodwill of RMB320,647,000 and
other intangible assets - trademark of
RMB256,233,000, respectively, as at 31
December 2018.

MR EEEN2016F WHEEE E M EEE
ERETAGIREMBAR (FHE [ EMRE
£H]) E5BER2018F12A318 D IR
78 AR ¥320,647,0007T & H fh & & E —
1% A R #256,233,0007T °

Management identified other intangible
assets — trademark as intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives, and performed
impairment testing on goodwill and other
intangible assets — trademark annually
whether or not there were any indications
of impairment.

EREERAMBTYEE - BRISEFER
AERFHNETEE  WIRFHHERHEM
BVEE —BRETRENR  USHELE
IR R R HIRRE o

Our audit procedures to assess the potential impairment of

goodwill and other intangible assets — trademark included the

following:
B AR EREMELEE—HRNE
AT -

REREIZF RS

evaluating management’s impairment assessment
model, including the identification of and the allocation
of goodwill and other intangible assets — trademark to
the Relevant CGU with reference to the requirements of
the prevailing accounting standards;
AEEREARENGEE - BRE2ZRTETEANRE
FHERBR R EMETLEE — BiIRRER R

evaluating the competence, experience, capability
and objectivity of the external valuer engaged
by management to perform the calculation of the
recoverable amounts of the goodwill and other intangible
assets — trademark;
TEEEEMERERUBELREMETLEE - BRI KD
SRETHENIINEREMNERE - &5 - e hNFHM
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B ZBERE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

MREER (A7)

Assessing potential impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets — trademarks (Continued)

TFlEEEREMEEE— BRAEERE (&)

Refer to note 12 and note 13 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note 1(l).
BRI E R EIREMN 12 R AT 13 BRI 1()BI 251 B -

The Key Audit Matter
BRENEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BANES O AEEZSE

Management allocated goodwill and other
intangible assets — trademark to the cash
generating unit of Yulin Pharmaceutical
Group (“Relevant CGU”).
engaged an external valuer to assess the
recoverable amount of the Relevant CGU

Management

using the value in use method by preparing
a discounted cash flow forecast derived
from the most recent financial forecast
approved by the management covering a
five-year period.

ERECHBERAEMELEE—AREIRE
IMBEEENREELEC ((HBREE
£EBu])  EREDZE —BINEGER - LA
ERTRBEEHERRSEL SN KD
SEETHME - FERGIEEEBIENKS
BB BTEA ORELFHRE) SHOFRIR S

mMETEA -

The assessment of the recoverable
amounts of the Relevant CGU involves
significant management estimation and
judgement, in particular in determining the
key assumptions adopted in the cash flow
forecast, which include future revenue,
future cost of sales, other operating
expenses, and the discount rate applied.
HiEER eESELRWE BT ET R
BEANEBEMEEMALE  FhIREERSR
EFRREMANEREBE  HhBERKK
A RRSHERAR - Efth 45 % 59 2 T R 0 47
BE o

challenging the key estimates and assumptions adopted
in the discounted cash flow forecast, including future
revenue, future cost of sales, and other operating
expenses, by comparing relevant data with the financial
budget which was approved by the management, and by
comparison with historical performance of the Relevant
CGU and our knowledge of the business of Group;
HITRRSMEBTAF RPN ER A RRER (EFBIER
RN~ RIRHER AR EMEEF) IREEE - AER
HERERBREEEEHENVEIEE - AREBHEBRS
EFEUNELRRERMUEREXBNRE

comparing the data in discounted cash flow forecast
prepared in the prior year with the current year’s
performance to assess how accurate the prior year’'s
discounted cash flow forecast was and making enquiries
of management as to the reasons for any significant
variations identified;
HERAEFHIEFRRSREFAANBUREARFERIE - AFTE
EFHRRESREBERRDER - IAMBRLNERER
REMEREEHIEH :
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Independent Auditor’s Report
By AR E

BREER (A7)

Assessing potential impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets — trademark (Continued)

AR ERAMBEREE— BRI EERE (&)

Refer to note 12 and note 13 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note 1(1).

FRHGRE R EIREME 12 R M 13X R 1()A 251 R -

The Key Audit Matter
BREITSE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BN ES A REZEE

We identified the assessment of potential
impairment of goodwill and other intangible
assets - trademark as a key audit
matter because determining the level of
impairment, if any, involves a significant
degree of management judgement, which
can be inherently uncertain and could be
subject to management bias.

BT EmER AR EE — BRAEE
BEFRBREAETE  REZETRENKT
(WB) PREREENEREHE  E7F
EEE N EEMN  WARIIEEERASR

=2
IR 2 o

engaging our internal valuation specialists to assist us
in evaluating the valuation methodologies adopted by
the external valuer in the preparation of the discounted
cash flow forecast with reference to the requirements
of the prevailing accounting standards, and assessing
whether discount rate applied in the discounted cash
flow forecast was within the range adopted by other
companies in the same industry;
2ERITEAERNRTE  ZREAFHEEXRG BTG
HNEBfEE R R RATIRIR B M TR R ERAREETFE - A
RAEFRREeRERATFEANTREZSENEMEZE
NERAEEBER

performing a sensitivity analysis of key assumptions,
including future revenue growth rates, future gross
margins and the discount rate applied in the discounted
cash flow forecast and considering the resulting impact
on the impairment testing and whether there were any
indicators of management bias in the selection of these
key assumptions; and

HHEREBR (BERARBAEEE REEMNERFHER S
REBAREANFTREX) ETHRESNT - WERALYH
BEAREFNZERIEZERRBRRNEESFEENE
BERROTR : &

considering the disclosures in the financial statements
in respect of management’'s impairment assessments
of goodwill and other intangible assets — trademark
allocated to the Relevant CGU with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing accounting standards.
PERTEHENNRTE  ZRUBBERTERAEREH S
RERBREELEUNBEREMETLEE — BIRETR
EFERREER
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BY AR S

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included in the
annual report, other than the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and,
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or

in doing so, consider whether the other information

otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability

In preparing the consolidated financial statements,

to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

80 CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED EREX/XSEEABRAA

REMBREREZBEAREUIINER

EEFYHHEMERAR
BAWEEEE - BEF
Rz BRED IR & -

c HtE BBl TENF
BiEFAMBRE LI

BPEGREMBREANELL TREEMER -
BT A EZEEMEERREAMANERS

=A
A ©

BERPYHEAMBRRNET  RMANTEEE
BIEEMER  HEIBREY  ZEEMESES
N?m MBERRIBMERTBIEDH T BN

ERAFEEAEBRREFEEANHRRANIT
oo EREMERTHIE  REMBAEM
ERFHEERERRL  RAFEREZEE -
FESE BB ERRS -

EERGeMBHRRAKENER

EEFRAERBEESITNASGRONTENE
HELR BB (ARG WEEZRREHE
EMPBENEAMEHREK  YHER/RERSE

B mERE BB T AR ARGF R M E A
EXRBRRAAFOALENES -

EREFEAMBHRERE  EFAANGERER
BRENEEN  YHEEABATRERFERLS
ERNER ARERKECERSTER K
HEFERHESHBFRIELRLE  HHEE

ERNERDE -



The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the
override of internal control.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BY AR S

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.
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We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Li Shiu Chung.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

20 March 2019

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Consolidated statement of profit or loss
REBmK

for the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi)
EZ20185F12A31HIEFE (AARKESIR)

2018 2017
2018% 20174
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Kzt AR®T ARETTT
(Note)
(B 3E)

Revenue A 2 1,843,973 1,660,230
Cost of sales HERK A (459,547) (431,835)
Gross profit EF 1,384,426 1,228,395
Other (loss)/income Hith (B518) A 3 (2,194) 35,102
Distribution costs AN =) DN (561,537) (540,264)
Administrative expenses THAX (176,527) (163,497)
Profit from operations MR R 644,168 559,736
Finance costs BB A 4(a) (27,469) (14,754)
Profit before taxation BiADRER 4 616,699 544,982
Income tax FT{S %% 5(a) (119,208) (123,162)
Profit for the year FRREF 497,491 421,820
Attributable to: T AL :

— Equity shareholders of the Company — RNAR) SRR 465,353 396,242

— Non-controlling interests — FEPTERR 32,138 25,578
Profit for the year FRER 497,491 421,820
Earnings per share (RMB yuan) BREAN (AE®T) 8

— Basic —HEK 0.5444 0.4602

~ Diluted — e 0.5300 0.4570

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9
at 1 January 2018. Under the transition methods chosen,
comparative information is not restated. See note 1(c).

The notes on pages 92 to 223 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity
shareholders of the Company attributable to the profit for the
year are set out in note 25(b).
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Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

ReBaRkEMZERKER
for the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi)
EZE2018F12A31HIEFE (AARKESIR)

2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBTTT
(Note)
(B EE)

Profit for the year FERER 497,491 421,820
Other comprehensive income for HETHENIEZERZNER

the year that may be reclassified Hih 2w -

subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation s E AREME ([RE])

of financial statements of operations BONETSH TS RRER =R

outside the People’s Republic of B i 18

China (the “PRC"”), net of tax 7 (13)
Total comprehensive income FREERREE

for the year 497,498 421,807
Attributable to: AR AL :

— Equity shareholders of the Company — AR A E=RR 465,360 396,229

- Non-controlling interests — e iR 32,138 25,578
Total comprehensive income for FREEWHLEE

the year 497,498 421,807

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9 P&t @ ALEN2018F1 1B B RRK B LU B RS

at 1 January 2018. Under the transition methods chosen, AR EA55E R EBMEHRELERIFNW:  RIFFT
comparative information is not restated. See note 1(c). ERNBEDE  LREHASTEY - F2H
BsE1(c) °

oy

The notes on pages 92 to 223 form part of these financial %928 £ #2238 v Wit AZE 0K HEMAERK

statements.
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Consolidated statement of financial position

e PRI R

as at 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi)

MN20185F12A31H (LAARKZR)

2018 2017
2018% 20174
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HieE AR®T AREET T
(Note)
(B %)
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment property B 9 17,200 17,876
Other property, plant and equipment  E¥% « BE &% 10 561,785 400,797
Lease prepayments HEBFHIE 11 129,643 132,777
Intangible assets B E 12 430,800 460,215
Goodwill [SES 13 320,647 320,647
Other investments HEMigE 14 - 2,600
Other prepayments H M IER K 16 5,706 17,740
Deferred tax assets RETIBEE 24(c) 35,102 34,714
Total non-current assets FRBEEAE 1,500,883 1,387,366
Current assets REEE
Inventories TE 17 210,310 200,001
Trade and other receivables B 5 KM ERFIR 18 916,099 995,085
Cash and cash equivalents HEe NS ZEEEAER 19 1,269,746 989,565
Total current assets RBEEEE 2,396,155 2,184,651
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables H 5 N E M ER RIE 20 750,804 679,722
Loans and borrowings ERRAEK 21 147,202 193,621
Deferred income PRIE W 2= 22 1,655 1,554
Current taxation BVERTR 3K 24(a) 99,492 95,336
Total current liabilities REEEAEHE 999,153 970,233
Net current assets REBEEFE 1,397,002 1,214,418

The notes on pages 92 to 223 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated statement of financial position

n'l-\ézﬁle-i%ﬂﬁ)‘ﬂl%
as at 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi)
M2018F12A318 (AARKEIIR)

2018 2017

2018% 20174

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

HieE AR®T AREET T

(Note)

(B EE)

Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBARS 2,897,885 2,601,784
Non-current liabilities FRBEE

Loans and borrowings ERRER 21 245,336 374,483

Deferred income JRIEUS 75 22 18,320 20,741

Deferred tax liabilities BEHIEAE 24(c) 137,217 142,412

Total non-current liabilities FRBEEARE 400,873 537,636

Net assets EEFE 2,497,012 2,064,148
Capital and reserves EXE#E

Share capital %N 25(c) 68,782 68,652

Reserves B 25(d) 2,088,437 1,678,036

Total equity attributable to equity N B RE S IR R PE AL

shareholders of the Company AR 2,157,219 1,746,688

Non-controlling interests FFERER 339,793 317,460

Total equity HRES 2,497,012 2,064,148

Note:

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9

at 1 January 2018. Under the transition methods chosen,

comparative information is not restated. See note 1(c).

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors

on 20 March 2019.

AN Yubao
ZHE
Chairman
*E

The notes on pages 92 to 223 form part of these financial

statements.

o

NEMMP2018F1 A1 B BRIRMBE B M EHE
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BtzE1(c) °

2019F 3 A20 R K EE 2 #H ff RIFHETIE -

LI Qian
RfE
Vice Chairlady
aIFE
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for the year ended 31 December 2018
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Consolidated statement of changes
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Consolidated statement of changes

for the year ended 31 December 2018
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Consolidated cash flow statement

nV-\ é IEJ ﬁsﬁ % ’13«%
for the year ended 31 December 2018

(Expressed in Renminbi)

HZE2018F12A31BILEFE (UARESIR)

2018 2017
20185 20174
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HteE ARBTRT ARETT
Operating activities ReETE
Cash generated from operations KETEEEES 19(b) 874,845 345,720
PRC income tax paid B BEAMSE 24(a) (120,635) (93,597)
Net cash generated from RETHMESESTH
operating activities 754,210 252123
Investing activities RETH
Interest received 2 U & 11,266 3,469
Payment for purchase of property, BEWE  BENMRENRIE
plant and equipment (193,348) (54,969)
Payment for leasehold land HE LR - (9,477)
Proceeds received from disposal of BREEME - HE
property, plant and equipment MBS 5IE 1,278 928
Net cash used in investing activities ®REFEFMARSEE (180,804) (60,049)

The notes on pages 92 to 223 form part of these financial 928 E 0238 v Hir A S IERE WA
statements. 45 o
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Consolidated cash flow statement
ll'/-\éiﬁﬁﬁlii

for the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi)
EZE2018F12A31HIEFE (AARKESIR)

2018 2017
20184 20174
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

Wit AR®TR AR®TRT

Financing activities

Proceeds from new bank loans

Repayments of bank loans

Proceeds from shares issued under
share option scheme

Proceeds from shares issuance

Dividends paid to equity
shareholders of the Company

Dividends paid to non-controlling
interests holders

Finance costs paid

Payment for repurchase of shares
which were subsequently cancelled

Proceeds of capital injection from non-
controlling interests holders

A& SEE
L IRITE SRS A - 653,707
RITEFEEE 19(c) (197,008) (59,066)
BRI IR e Rt 81 31T

B 1 PS5k I8 5,624 4,620
I 0 24T P15 3k I8 - 239,751

ERARA AR R AR E
(68,943)  (173,231)
BRI EEREREE ANRE

(9,572) (10,758)
BT R E KA 19(c) (22,526) (24,020)
B8 0] EL 18 45 5 SH AU AR (0 B9 SR IE
- (505,716)
IR ER T B AL EFTSFRIE
- 2,838

Net cash (used in)/generated from
financing activities

MEEH (TR MEREFR
(292,425) 128,125

Net increase in cash and cash REeERBESEEEREMFERE

equivalents 280,981 320,199
Cash and cash equivalents MB1ENRERREEEER

at 1 January 989,565 672,711
Effect of foreign exchange EXRSBHNTE

rate changes (800) (3,345)
Cash and cash equivalents M12B31EHNBEERESEEIER

at 31 December 1,269,746 989,565

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9  Mfif @ A&EEN20185F1 1B BRI AET M S HE

at 1 January 2018. Under the transition methods chosen, ERIE155 R BBV R EERIFEIN - BIRFT
comparative information is not restated. See note 1(c). BERANBERE  EREBTTEY - F2H

BEE1(c) °

The notes on pages 92 to 223 form part of these financial 5928 E 52238 2 Wit A% S KRR AKX

statements.

BB o

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 FE#HE 91



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=BEHI -

1

92 CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED EREX/EXESEEABRAA

AAREIITR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“"HKFRSs”),
all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial

which collective term includes

Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).
Significant accounting policies adopted by the
Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting period
of the Group. Note 1(c) provides information on
any changes in accounting policies resulting from
initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the
current and prior accounting periods reflected in
these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2018 comprise the
Company and its subsidiaries (together referred
to as the “Group”).

The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (*“RMB”),
the nearest thousand, which is the functional

rounded to

currency of the subsidiaries carrying out the
principal activities of the Group.

1

BEREHEE

(a)

(b)

aREH

ZEMBRRIIREMBERNE
U BHREEL (BRMBHRESE
All) e HEAKRBREALS
AEAE ((BERSFHMAE]) B
o B0 P8 i A B0 (BB B B 5 3R
R FEGER ([FREEHE
Bl BB URBEBLRES
RAIREFECRARDD) WWER
E o REMBRENTNEBTBME
RHABRABES EMAR ([ L
TR WEBRAREGRX - KK
AT ERE S BERRN T X

E‘éo

ERGFMAGERME TRAE
BERITE A E R AR HiR
BRAFET RRIETBEEMBR
FEER o ()R AT HIHE
MFestRErAEEEEYC
R FWBHREARRERERR
MR BN I SRR E S
REER -

MBEBRNERESE

#H £2018F12A318 It F E W43
EUERERBEARTRENBEA
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FEMBHRRAARE (AR
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BRIEAEBETIZXBHNBELR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (Continued)

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the financial statements is the historical cost
basis except that the equity investments stated
at their fair value as explained in the accounting
policy set out in note 1(f).

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 29.

The HKICPA has issued a number of new
HKFRSs and amendments to HKFRSs that are
first effective for the current accounting period of
the Group. Of these, the following developments
are relevant to the Group’s financial statements:
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRmHERBEI - LARKEIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies

(i) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

(i) HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers

(i)  HK(IFRIC) 22, Foreign currency
transactions and advance consideration

The Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for
the current accounting period, except for the
amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment features
with negative compensation which have been
adopted at the same time as HKFRS 9.

(i) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments,
including the amendments to HKFRS
9, Prepayment features with negative
compensation

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39, Financial
instruments: recognition and measurement.
It sets out the requirements for recognising
and measuring financial assets, financial
liabilities and some contracts to buy or sell
non-financial items.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9
retrospectively to items that existed
at 1 January 2018 in accordance with
the transition requirements. The Group
has recognised the cumulative effect of
initial application as an adjustment to
the opening equity at 1 January 2018.
Therefore, comparative information
continues to be reported under HKAS 39.

There is no impact of transition to HKFRS

9 on retained earnings and reserves at 1
January 2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

()

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments,
including the amendments to HKFRS
9, Prepayment features with negative
compensation (Continued)

Further details of the nature and effect
of the changes to previous accounting
policies and the transition approach are
set out below:

a. Classification of financial assets and
financial liabilities

HKFRS 9 categories financial assets
into three principal classification
categories: measured at amortised
cost, at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI) and
at fair value through profit or loss
(FVPL). These supersede HKAS
39’s categories of held-to-maturity
investments, loans and receivables,
available-for-sale financial assets
and financial assets measured at
FVPL. The classification of financial
assets under HKFRS 9 is based on
the business model under which
the financial asset is managed
and its contractual cash flow
characteristics.Under HKFRS 9,
derivatives embedded in contracts
where the host is a financial asset
in the scope of the standard are not
separated from the host. Instead,
the hybrid instrument as a whole is
assessed for classification.
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRmHERBEI - LARKEIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 1
(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(i) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments,
including the amendments to HKFRS
9, Prepayment features with negative
compensation (Continued)

a. Classification of financial assets and
financial liabilities (Continued)

The following table shows the
original measurement categories
for each class of the Group’s
financial assets under HKAS 39 and
reconciles the carrying amounts of
those financial assets determined in
accordance with HKAS 39 to those
determined in accordance with

ERETHE (&)
(c) BEBE2H (&)
(i) BEHBHEEREIR

EHTA BEEBVER
&HREREH () A
FRBRIETEFFE ()

a.

EHEERETMEE
#7748 (&)

TREFHRERES
FTAERIZE 395 AL
EHEsRMEENRE
FFEER  RIBER
BEETERIFE I E
EMEREEREE
HREE B ERE
EBIFFREESEZ

HKFRS 9. FED
HKAS 39 carrying HKFRS 9 carrying
amount at amount at
31 December 2017 Reclassification 1 January 2018
R2017F 128318 R20185151A
BEEESHER REBRYKREES
FORERNRRE EE ] BORETNEEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETTT
Financial assets carried RBERASIRNEREE
at amortised costs
Cash and cash equivalents ReRRESEER 989,565 - 989,565
Trade and other receivables AR EWFE 995,085 = 995,085
1,984,650 - 1,084,650
Financial assets carried at FVPL ~ BAAEABH T BNEREE
Equity securities not held UHHERERRNEAES (13D
for trading (Note) - 2,600 2,600
Financial assets classified BEEEETENE0EIEA
as available-for-sale under MHHEELRERE (W)
HKAS 39 (Note)
Other investment (Note) EHRE (W) 2,600 (2,600) -
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBBREPI - LARKEIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 1 EREFEE (&)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued) (c) BEBE2H (&)
(i)  HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, (i) EBYBHEERFEI

EHITA BEEBVER
EREREH () A
FREBRIETEFFE ()

including the amendments to HKFRS
9, Prepayment features with negative
compensation (Continued)

a. Classification of financial assets and a. THEERTHEE
financial liabilities (Continued) 7 HE (&)
Note: Under HKAS 39, equity securities MizE: RES B 5

% Al 395k -
TEFHIERER
3 % B0 B A 2B
ol W I I
HE @&
Ee RERA
BEHRERE
1 15 3 & % A
FIE D BRI

not held for trading were
classified as available-for-sale
financial assets. These equity
securities are classified as at
FVPL under HKFRS 9.

For an explanation of how the Group
classifies and measures financial
assets and recognises related gains
and losses under HKFRS 9, see
respective accounting policy notes
in notes 1(f), (1)(i), (o) and (p).

The measurement categories for
all financial liabilities remain the
same. The carrying amounts for all
financial liabilities at 1 January 2018
have not been impacted by the
initial application of HKFRS 9.

The Group did not designate or
de-designate any financial asset
or financial liability as at FVPL at 1
January 2018.
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=BEHI -

1
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AAREIITR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(i)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments,
including the amendments to HKFRS
9, Prepayment features with negative
compensation (Continued)

b.

Credit losses

HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred
loss” model in HKAS 39 with the
“expected credit losses” (“ECL”)
model. The ECL model requires an
ongoing measurement of credit risk
associated with a financial asset
and therefore recognises ECLs
earlier than under the “incurred
loss” accounting model in HKAS 39.

The Group applies the new ECL
model to the following items:

- financial assets measured
at amortised cost (including
cash and cash equivalents
and trade and other
receivables); and

- lease receivables.

For further details on the Group’s
accounting policy for accounting for
credit losses, see note 1(l)(i) and

(ii).

The Group has concluded that there
was no material impact for the initial
application of the new requirements.
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IIV_\éﬁji%ﬁimqﬁ

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

()

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments,
including the amendments to HKFRS
9, Prepayment features with negative
compensation (Continued)

C.

Transition

Changes in accounting policies
resulting from the adoption of
HKFRS 9 had no impact on retained
earnings and reserves as at 1
January 2018.

The determination of the business
model within which a financial asset
is held has been made on the basis
of the facts and circumstances that
existed at 1 January 2018 (the date
of initial application of HKFRS 9 by
the Group).

If, at the date of initial application,
the assessment of whether there has
been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition would
have involved undue cost or effort,
a lifetime ECL has been recognised
for that financial instrument.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive
framework for recognising revenue and
some costs from contracts with customers.
HKFRS 15 replaces HKAS 18, Revenue,
which covered revenue arising from sale
of goods and rendering of services, and
HKAS 11, Construction contracts, which
specified the accounting for construction
contracts.

HKFRS 15 also introduces additional
qualitative and quantitative disclosure
requirements which aim to enable users
of the financial statements to understand
the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty
of revenue and cash flows arising from
contracts with customers.

The Group has elected to use the
cumulative effect transition method and
has recognised the cumulative effect of
initial application as an adjustment to the
opening balance of equity at 1 January
2018. Therefore, comparative information
has not been restated and continues to
be reported under HKAS 11 and HKAS
18. As allowed by HKFRS 15, the Group
has applied the new requirements only to
contracts that were not completed before
1 January 2018 (if any).

There is no impact of transition to
HKFRS15 on retained earnings at 1
January 2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(ii)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers (Continued)

Further details of the nature and effect
of the changes on previous accounting
policies are set out below:

a. Timing of revenue recognition

Previously, revenue arising
from provision of services was
recognised over time, whereas
revenue from sale of goods was
generally recognised at a point in
time when the risks and rewards of
ownership of the goods had passed
to the customers.

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is
recognised when the customer
obtains control of the promised
good or service in the contract. This
may be at a single point in time
or over time. HKFRS 15 identifies
the following three situations in
which control of the promised good
or service is regarded as being
transferred over time:

A. When the customer
simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits
provided by the entity’s
performance, as the entity
performs;
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

AAREIITR)

(Br=BEHI -

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(ii)

102 CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED FRE#ZESEER QA

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with

customers (Continued)

a.

Timing of revenue recognition
(Continued)

B. When the entity’s
performance creates or
enhances an asset (for
example work in progress)
that the customer controls
as the asset is created or
enhanced;

@. When the entity’'s
performance does not create
an asset with an alternative
use to the entity and the
entity has an enforceable
right to payment for
performance completed to
date.

If the contract terms and the entity’s
activities do not fall into any of these
3 situations, then under HKFRS 15
the entity recognises revenue for
the sale of that good or service at
a single point in time, being when
control has passed. Transfer of
risks and rewards of ownership is
only one of the indicators that is
considered in determining when the
transfer of control occurs.

The adoption of HKFRS 15 does
not have a significant impact on
when the Group recognises revenue
from sales of goods (see note 1(v)
(i)) and this change in accounting
policy has had no effect on retained
earnings as at 1 January 2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
IIV-\éﬁji%ﬁ%Mj.%I

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(ii)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers (Continued)

Significant financing component

HKFRS 15 requires an entity to
adjust the transaction price for the
time value of money when a contract
contains a significant financing
component, regardless of whether
the payments from customers are
received significantly in advance of
revenue recognition or significantly
deferred.

It is not common in the Group’s
arrangements with its customers
to receive payment in advance or
significantly deferred. This change
in accounting policy has had no
effect on retained earnings as at 1
January 2018.
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AAREIITR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(ii)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers (Continued)

Presentation of contract assets and
liabilities

Under HKFRS 15, a receivable is
recognised only if the Group has an
unconditional right to consideration.
If the Group recognises the related
revenue (see note 1(v)) before
being unconditionally entitled to
the consideration for the promised
goods and services in the contract,
then the entitlement to consideration
is classified as a contract asset.
Similarly, a contract liability, rather
than a payable, is recognised when
a customer pays consideration,
or is contractually required to pay
consideration and the amount is
already due, before the Group
recognises the related revenue,
or when the Group receives
consideration from a customer and
expects to refund some or all of
that consideration to the customer
(i.e. refund liability). For a single
contract with the customer, either a
net contract asset or a net contract
liability is presented. For multiple
contracts, contract assets and
contract liabilities of unrelated
contracts are not presented on a
net basis (see note 1(n)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)
(ii)

(iii)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers (Continued)

@. Presentation of contract assets and
liabilities (Continued)

To reflect this change in
presentation, contract liabilities,
including receipts in advance
from customers with amount
of RMB6,097,000, and, refund
liabilities, including sales rebates
payable to customers with amount
of RMB66,677,000, are now
separately presented under trade
and other payables at 31 December
2018, as a result of the adoption of
HKFRS 15. No contract assets are
recognised by the Group.

HK (IFRIC) 22, Foreign currency
transactions and advance consideration

This interpretation provides guidance on
determining “the date of the transaction” for
the purpose of determining the exchange
rate to be used on initial recognition of
the related asset, expense or income (or
part of it) arising from a transaction in
which an entity receives or pays advance
consideration in a foreign currency.

The Interpretation clarifies that “the date
of the transaction” is the date on initial
recognition of the non-monetary asset or
liability arising from the payment or receipt
of advance consideration. If there are
multiple payments or receipts in advance
of recognising the related item, the date of
the transaction for each payment or receipt
should be determined in this way. The
adoption of HK(IFRIC)22 does not have any
material impact on the financial position
and the financial result of the Group.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

106 CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED RE#ZESEEER QA

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when it is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group
and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated
into the consolidated financial statements from
the date that control commences until the date
that control ceases. Intra-group balances,
transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
a subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly
to the Company, and in respect of which the
Group has not agreed any additional terms with
the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual
obligation in respect of those interests that
meets the definition of a financial liability. For
each business combination, the Group can elect
to measure any non-controlling interests either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position
within equity, separately from equity attributable
to the equity shareholders of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of
the Group are presented on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as an allocation of
the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling
interests and the equity shareholders of the
Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions, whereby
adjustments are made to the amounts of
controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in
relative interests, but no adjustments are made to
goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the
date when control is lost is recognised at fair
value and this amount is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition of a financial asset
(see note 1(f)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost
less impairment losses (see note 1(1)).
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

108 CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED RE#ZESEER QA

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
and the fair value of the Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets and liabilities measured
as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain
on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a
business combination is allocated to each
cash-generating unit, or groups of cash
generating units, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination and is tested
annually for impairment (see note 1(l)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during
the year, any attributable amount of purchased
goodwill is included in the calculation of the profit
or loss on disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

Other investments in equity securities

The Group’s policies for investments in equity
securities, other than investments in subsidiaries
are set out below:

Investments in equity securities are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Group commits to
purchase/sell the investment. The investments
are initially stated at fair value plus directly
attributable transaction costs, except for those
investments measured at fair value through
profit or loss (FVPL) for which transaction costs
are recognised directly in profit or loss. For an
explanation of how the Group determines fair
value of financial instruments, see note 26(e).
These investments are subsequently accounted
for as follows, depending on their classification:
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Other investments in equity securities
(Continued)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018

Investments other than equity investments

The Group did not hold any investments
other than equity investments.

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities was
classified as FVPL unless the equity
investment is not held for trading purposes
and on initial recognition of the investment
the Group makes an election to designate
the investment at FVOCI (non-recycling)
such that subsequent changes in fair value
are recognised in other comprehensive
income. Such elections were made on an
instrument-by-instrument basis, but may
only be made if the investment meets
the definition of equity from the issuer’s
perspective. Where such an election was
made, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income remains in the
fair value reserve (non-recycling) until the
investment was disposed of. At the time
of disposal, the amount accumulated in
the fair value reserve (non-recycling) was
transferred to retained earnings. It was not
recycled through profit or loss. Dividends
from an investment in equity securities,
irrespective of whether classified as at
FVPL or FVOCI, are recognised in profit or
loss as other income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f) Other investments in equity securities
(Continued)

(B)

Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018

Investments in equity securities which did
not fall into investments in securities held
for trading or held-to-maturity securities
were classified as available-for-sale
securities. At the end of each reporting
period the fair value was remeasured, with
any resultant gain or loss being recognised
in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the fair
value reserve (recycling). Dividend income
from equity investments were recognised
in profit or loss. As an exception to this,
investments in equity securities that did
not have a quoted price in an active
market for an identical instrument and
whose fair value could not otherwise be
reliably measured were recognised in the
statement of financial position at cost less
impairment losses (see note 1(I) — Policy
applicable prior to 1 January 2018). When
the investments were derecognised or
Policy applicable
prior to 1 January 2018),

impaired (see note 1(I) —
the cumulative
gain or loss recognised in equity was
Investments
were recognised/derecognised on the date
the Group commits to purchase/sell the

reclassified to profit or loss.

investments or they expire.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

(h)

112 CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED FRE#ZESEEER QA

Investment property

Investment properties are land and buildings
which are owned or held under a leasehold
interest (see note 1(k)) to earn rental income and/
or for capital appreciation. These include land
held for a currently undetermined future use and
property that is being constructed or developed
for future use as investment property.

Investment properties are measured initially
at cost. The cost of a purchased investment
property comprises its purchases price and
any direct attributable expenditures. Investment
properties are accounted for using the cost
model and stated in the statement of financial
position at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses (see note 1(l)). The cost
of investment property, less its estimated residual
value and accumulated impairment losses, is
depreciated using the straight-line method over
its estimated useful lives as follows.

° Land use right 57 years

° Buildings 6 years

Other property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and
equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note

1(1):

- Buildings held for own use which are
situated on leasehold land classified as
held under operating leases (see note
1(k)); and

= Other items of plant and equipment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

Other property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

The cost of self-constructed items of property,
plant and equipment includes the cost of
materials, direct labour, the initial estimate,
where relevant, of the costs of dismantling and
removing the items and restoring the site on
which they are located, and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement
or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised
in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their
estimated residual value, if any, using the straight
line method over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

- Buildings situated on leasehold land
are depreciated over the shorter of
the unexpired term of lease and their
estimated useful lives, being no more than
50 years after the date of completion

= Machinery and equipment 5-20 years
- Motor vehicles 5 years
- Office equipment 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost
of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis
between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

1)

114 CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED RE#ZESEER QA

Research and development costs

Research and development costs comprise
all costs that are directly attributable to
research and development activities or that
can be allocated on a reasonable basis to such
activities. Because of the nature of the Group’s
research and development activities, the criteria
for the recognition of such costs as an asset are
generally not met until late in the development
stage of the project when the remaining
development costs are immaterial. Hence both
research costs and development costs are
generally recognised as expenses in the period
in which they are incurred.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
(where the estimated useful life is finite) and
impairment losses (see note 1(I)). Expenditure
on internally generated goodwill and brands is
recognised as an expense in the period in which
it is incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful
lives is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives. The
following intangible assets with finite useful lives
are amortised from the date they are available for
use or date of acquisition, whichever is shorter
and their estimated useful lives are as follows:

- Patents 8-13 years
Both the period and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

)]

(k)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(Continued)

Intangible assets are not amortised while their
useful lives are assessed to be indefinite. Any
conclusion that the useful life of an intangible
asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to
determine whether events and circumstances
continue to support the indefinite useful life
assessment for that asset. If they do not, the
change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is accounted for prospectively
from the date of change and in accordance with
the policy for amortisation of intangible assets
with finite lives as set out above.

Lease assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a
series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the
Group determines that the arrangement conveys
a right to use a specific asset or assets for an
agreed period of time in return for a payment or
a series of payments. Such a determination is
made based on an evaluation of the substance of
the arrangement and is regardless of whether the
arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the
Group

Assets that are held by the Group under
leases which transfer to the Group
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k) Lease assets (Continued)

(ii)

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets
held under operating leases, payments
made under the leases are charged to
profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis
is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased
asset. Lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to
profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under
an operating lease is amortised on a
straight-line basis over the period of the
lease term.

() Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i)

116 CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED RE#ZESEER QA

Credit losses from financial instruments
and lease receivables

(A)  Policy applicable from 1 January
2018

The Group recognises a loss
allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) on the following
items:

- financial assets measured
at amortised cost (including
cash and cash equivalents
and trade and other

receivables); and

- lease receivables.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
and lease receivables (Continued)

(A)

Policy applicable from 1 January
2018 (Continued)

Financial assets measured at fair
value, including equity securities
measured at FVPL, are not subject
to the ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted
estimate of credit losses. Credit
losses are measured as the present
value of all expected cash shortfalls
(i.e. the difference between the
cash flows due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are
discounted using the following
discount rates where the effect of
discounting is material:

- fixed-rate financial assets,
trade and other receivables
and contract assets: effective
interest rate determined
at initial recognition or an
approximation thereof;

- variable-rate financial assets:
current effective interest rate;

- lease receivables: discount
rate used in the measurement
of the lease receivable:
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(i)

118 CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED RE#ZESEER QA

Credit losses from financial instruments
and lease receivables (Continued)

(A)

Policy applicable from 1 January
2018 (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

The maximum period considered
when estimating ECLs is the
maximum contractual period over
which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group
takes into account reasonable
and supportable information that
is available without undue cost or
effort. This includes information
about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the
following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are
losses that are expected to
result from possible default
events within the 12 months
after the reporting date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are
losses that are expected
to result from all possible
default events over the
expected lives of the items to
which the ECL model applies.

1 EREHEE (&)

() FEBEREERE (F

(i) KRELHBTEREKHELH
EEEE (&)

(A)

E20184F 1.5 1H # 5
B (&)

BHEEEENE

(%)

KRGt EBMEEER
FERHRRHER
AEBAZEERR
MRRAHME -

EFrERBEEEE
B AREZREAE
KA B &R M
BEAOKALE NE
BHER  BHeE
=4 BATOR BR
KB RAIER FEE
£t o

EHEEREERT
B B o — A 2 % 3t

=

- 1218 A 1) 7B H]
EEER: &’
FHERE BB
&12{E A A "]
REBRARED
EHMBEW
BE R

- EBEAFEHDH
BHEEB
8 BARE
RAEMEE
BIEEAKIA
B R EEH
FEHNME
AIRERARE
HWEFMER
HE1E



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
IIV_\éE\ZI-i%ﬁ%Bﬂ.H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
and lease receivables (Continued)

(A)

Policy applicable from 1 January
2018 (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

Loss allowances for trade
receivables and lease receivables
are always measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on
these financial assets are estimated
using a provision matrix based on
the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors and
an assessment of both the current
and forecast general economic
conditions at the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments,
the Group recognises a loss
allowance equal to 12-month
ECLs unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk of
the financial instrument since initial
recognition, in which case the loss
allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs.
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=BEHI -

AAREIITR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
and lease receivables (Continued)

(A)
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Policy applicable from 1 January
2018 (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit
risk of a financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares
the risk of default occurring on the
financial instrument assessed at the
reporting date with that assessed
at the date of initial recognition.
In making this reassessment, the
Group considers that a default event
occurs when (i) the borrower is
unlikely to pay its credit obligations
to the Group in full, without recourse
by the Group to actions such as
realising security (if any is held);
or (ii) the financial asset is 90 days
past due. The Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking
information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following
information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk
has increased significantly since
initial recognition:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
IIV_\éE\ZI-i%ﬁ%Bﬂ.H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
and lease receivables (Continued)

(A)

Policy applicable from 1 January
2018 (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk
(Continued)

- failure to make payments of
principal or interest on their
contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected
significant deterioration in a
financial instrument’s external
or internal credit rating (if
available);

- an actual or expected

significant deterioration in

the operating results of the
debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes
in the technological,
market, economic or legal
environment that have a
significant adverse effect on
the debtor’s ability to meet its
obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of
the financial instruments, the
assessment of a significant increase
in credit risk is performed on either
an individual basis or a collective
basis. When the assessment is
performed on a collective basis, the
financial instruments are grouped
based on shared credit risk
characteristics, such as past due
status and credit risk ratings.
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=BEHI -

AAREIITR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
and lease receivables (Continued)

(A)
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Policy applicable from 1 January
2018 (Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest

income

ECLs are remeasured at each
reporting date to reflect changes
in the financial instrument’s credit
risk since initial recognition. Any
change in the ECL amount is
recognised as an impairment gain
or loss in profit or loss. The Group
recognises an impairment gain or
loss for all financial instruments
with a corresponding adjustment to
their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account.

Interest income recognised in
accordance with note 1(v)(iii) is
calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial
asset unless the financial asset
is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based
on the amortised cost (i.e. the
gross carrying amount less loss
allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group
assesses whether a financial asset
is credit-impaired. A financial asset
is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset have
occurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
IIV_\éE\ZI-i%ﬁ%Bﬂ.H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBBREPI - LARKEIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
and lease receivables (Continued)

(A)  Policy applicable from 1 January
2018 (Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest

income (Continued)

Evidence that a financial asset
is credit-impaired includes the
following observable events:

- significant financial
difficulties of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such
as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal
payments;

- it becoming probable that
the borrower will enter into
bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

- significant changes
in the technological,
market, economic or legal
environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor;
or

- the disappearance of an
active market for a security
because of financial
difficulties of the issuer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=EHEAIN - UARES

)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

and lease receivables (Continued)

(A)

(B)
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Policy applicable from 1 January
2018 (Continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a
financial asset or lease receivable is
written off (either partially or in full)
to the extent that there is no realistic
prospect of recovery. This is
generally the case when the Group
determines that the debtor does not
have assets or sources of income
that could generate sufficient cash
flows to repay the amounts subject
to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset
that was previously written off
are recognised as a reversal of
impairment in profit or loss in the
period in which the recovery occurs.

Policy applicable prior to 1 January
2018

Prior to 1 January 2018, an

“incurred loss” model was used
to measure impairment losses
on financial assets not classified
as at FVPL (e.g. trade and other
receivables, and available for sale
investments). Under the “incurred
loss” model, an impairment loss was
recognised only when there was
objective evidence of impairment.
Objective evidence of impairment
included:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
IIV_\éE\ZI-i%ﬁ%Bﬂ.H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
and lease receivables (Continued)

(B)

Policy applicable prior to 1 January
2018 (Continued)

significant financial difficulty
of the debtor;

a breach of contract, such
as a default or delinquency
in interest or
payments;

principal

it becoming probable
that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;
significant changes
in the technological,
market, economic or legal
environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor;
and

a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of
an investment in an equity
instrument below its cost.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=AEHERN - UARKIITR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
and lease receivables (Continued)

(B)  Policy applicable prior to 1 January
2018 (Continued)

If any such evidence existed, an
impairment loss was determined
and recognised as follows:

- For trade and other
receivables and other
financial assets carried at
amortised cost, impairment
loss was measured as the
difference between the
asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of
estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial
asset's original effective
interest rate, where the effect
of discounting was material.

If in a subsequent period the
amount of an impairment loss
decreases and the decrease
could be linked objectively
to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment
loss was reversed through
profit or loss. A reversal of
an impairment loss was only
recognised to the extent
that it did not result in the
asset’s carrying amount
exceeding that which would
have been determined had
no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
IIV_\éE\ZI-i%ﬁ%Bﬂ.H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBBREPI - LARKEIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 1 EREFEE (&)

profit or loss.

()  Credit losses and impairment of assets () FEEFEEREERME (&)
(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments (i) KEEHBTARERBEEH
and lease receivables (Continued) EEERE (&)
(B)  Policy applicable prior to 1 January (B) 2018414 1HFi#MH
2018 (Continued) K (&)
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=BEHI -

AAREIITR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i)

(ii)

128 CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED RE#ZESEEER QA

Credit losses from financial instruments
and lease receivables (Continued)

(B)  Policy applicable prior to 1 January
2018 (Continued)

- For available-for-sale

investments, the cumulative
that had been
recognised in the fair

loss

value reserve (recycling)
was reclassified to profit
or loss. The amount of the
cumulative loss that was
recognised in profit or loss
was the difference between
the acquisition cost (net of
any principal repayment and
amortisation) and current fair
value, less any impairment
loss on that asset previously
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of
information are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may
be impaired or, except in the case of
goodwill, an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

- investment property;

- other property,
equipment;

plant and

- lease prepayments;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other non-current assets
(Continued)

- intangible assets;

- goodwill; and

- investment in subsidiaries in the
Company’s statement of financial
position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In
addition, for goodwill and intangible
assets that have indefinite useful lives, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually
whether or not there is any indication of
impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an
asset is the greater of its fair value
less costs of disposal and value
in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates
cash inflows independently (i.e. a

cash-generating unit).
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=EHEAIN - UARES

)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other non-current assets

(Continued)
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Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss if the carrying amount
of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the
cash-generating unit (or group
of units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets
in the unit (or group of units) on
a pro rata basis, except that the
carrying value of an asset will not
be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable) or value in use (if
determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than
goodwill, an impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss in
respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss
is limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses
are credited to profit or loss in the
year in which the reversals are
recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

U]

(m)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment
Under the Listing Rules, the Group is
required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with HKAS 34, Interim
financial reporting, in respect of the first
six months of the financial year. At the end
of the interim period, the Group applies
the same impairment testing, recognition,
and reversal criteria as it would at the end
of the financial year (see notes 1(I)(i) and

(if)).

Impairment losses recognised in an
interim period in respect of goodwill are
not reversed in a subsequent period. This
is the case even if no loss, or a smaller
loss, would have been recognised had the
impairment been assessed only at the end
of the financial year to which the interim
period relates.

Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for sale
in the ordinary course of business, in the
process of production for such sale or in the
form of materials or supplies to be consumed
in the production process or in the rendering of
services.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average
cost formula and comprises all costs of purchase,
costs of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=BEHI -

AAREIITR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m)

(n)
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Inventories (Continued)

Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount
of those inventories is recognised as an expense
in the period in which the related revenue is
recognised.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories
are recognised as an expense in the period
the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of
any reversal of any write-down of inventories
is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the
period in which the reversal occurs.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group
recognises revenue (see note 1(v)) before being
unconditionally entitled to the consideration
under the payment terms set out in the contract.

The current business model of the Group does
not lead to any recognition of contract assets.

A contract liability is recognised when the
customer pays consideration before the Group
recognises the related revenue (see note 1(v)).
A contract liability would also be recognised if
the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding
receivable would also be recognised (see note

1(0)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

(o)

Contract assets and contract liabilities
(Continued)

For a single contract with the customer, either
a net contract asset or a net contract liability is
presented. For multiple contracts, contract assets
and contract liabilities of unrelated contracts are
not presented on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant
financing component, the contract balance
includes interest accrued under the effective
interest method (see note 1(v)).

The amount of contract liabilities are not
individually sufficiently material and therefore
is not separately presented in the statement
of financial position. Relevant information
is collectively presented in trade and other
payables (see note 20).

Policy prior to 1 January 2018

In the comparative period, no contract balances
were recorded. Amounts received before the
related work was performed were presented
as “receipts in advance” under “trade and
the payables”. These balances have been
reclassified on 1 January 2018 as shown in note
20.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration.
A right to receive consideration is unconditional
if only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due. If revenue
has been recognised before the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration, the
amount is presented as a contract asset (see
note 1(n)).
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o)

()

(a)

()
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Trade and other receivables (Continued)

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method less allowance for
credit losses (see note 1(1)(i)).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
at bank and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition. Cash and cash
equivalents are assessed for expected credit
losses (ECL) in accordance with the policy set
out in note 1(1)(i).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised
at fair value and are subsequently stated at
amortised cost unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised
initially at fair value less attributable transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost with any difference between the
amount initially recognised and redemption value
being recognised in profit or loss over the period
of the borrowings, together with any interest and
fees payable, using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s) Employee benefits

()

(ii)

Short-term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the
year in which the associated services are
rendered by employees. Where payment
or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

Contribution to appropriate local defined
contribution retirement schemes pursuant
to the relevant labour rules and regulations
in the PRC are recognised as an expense
in profit or loss as incurred, except to the
extent that they are included in the cost
of inventories not yet recognised as an
expense.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in
a capital reserve within equity. The fair
value is measured at grant date using the
binomial tree model, taking into account
the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled
to the options, the total estimated fair value
of the options is spread over the vesting
period, taking into account the probability
that the options will vest.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s) Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)
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Share-based payments (Continued)

During the vesting period, the number
of share options that is expected to vest
is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment
to the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior years is charged/credited to the
profit or loss for the year of the review,
unless the original employee expenses
qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of options that
vest (with a corresponding adjustment to
the capital reserve) except where forfeiture
is only due to not achieving vesting
conditions that relate to the market price of
the Company’s shares. The equity amount
is recognised in the capital reserve until
either the option is exercised (when it
is included in the amount recognised in
share capital for the shares issued) or the
option expires (when it is released directly
to retained profits).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when it recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination
benefits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

®

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax
and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred
tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit
or loss except to the extent that they relate
to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the
relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

®
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Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable
profits that may support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary
differences, provided those differences relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse either in the
same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods
into which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax
asset can be carried back or forward. The same
criteria are adopted when determining whether
existing taxable temporary differences support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising
from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse in a period,
or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from goodwill not deductible
for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets
or liabilities that affect neither accounting
nor taxable profit (provided they are not part
of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries
to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in
the case of deductible differences, unless it is
probable that they will reverse in the future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

®

Income tax (Continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount
of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when
the liability to pay the related dividends is
recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances,
and movements therein, are presented separately
from each other and are not offset. Current tax
assets are offset against current tax liabilities,
and deferred tax assets against deferred tax
liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the
legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the
following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and
liabilities, the Company or the Group
intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

®

(u)
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Income tax (Continued)

- in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on

either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in
each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled
or recovered, intend to realise the

current tax assets and settle the

current tax liabilities on a net basis or

realise and settle simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group or the
Company has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot
be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed
as a contingent liability, unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(v)

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue
when it arises from the sale of goods, the
provision of services or the use by others of
the Group’s assets under leases in the ordinary
course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a
product or service is transferred to the customer,
or the lessee has the right to use the asset, at the
amount of promised consideration to which the
Group is expected to be entitled, excluding those
amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.

Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant financing
benefit to the customer for more than 12 months,
revenue is measured at the present value
of the amount receivable, discounted using
the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction with the customer,
and interest income is accrued separately under
the effective interest method. Where the contract
contains a financing component which provides
a significant financing benefit to the Group,
revenue recognised under that contract includes
the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. The
Group takes advantage of the practical expedient
in paragraph 63 of HKFRS 15 and does not
adjust the consideration for any effects of a
significant financing component if the period of
financing is 12 months or less.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(v) Revenue and other income (Continued)

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other
income recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the customer
takes possession of and accepts the
goods.

In the comparative period, revenue was
recognised when the goods were delivered
to the customers’ premises, which was
taken to be the point in time when the
customer had accepted the goods and the
related risks and rewards of ownership.

(ii)  Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss
in equal instalments over the periods
covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the use of the leased asset. Lease
incentives granted are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments receivable. Contingent
rentals are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are
earned.

(iii)  Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method. For
financial assets measured at amortised
cost or FVOCI (recycling) that are not
credit-impaired, the effective interest rate
is applied to the gross carrying amount
of the asset. For credit impaired financial
assets, the effective interest rate is applied
to the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying
amount net of loss allowance) of the asset
(see note 1(l)(i)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(v)

(w)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

(iv)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
statement of financial position initially
when there is reasonable assurance that
they will be received and that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group
for expenses incurred are recognised as
income in profit or loss on a systematic
basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred. Grants that
compensate the Group for the cost of an
asset are initially recognised as deferred
income and subsequently recognised
as other income in profit or loss over the
useful life of the assets.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
The transaction date is the date on which the
Company initially recognises such non-monetary
assets or liabilities. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that
are stated at fair value are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair
value was determined.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(w)

(x)

(y)
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Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

The
translated into Renminbi at the exchange rates

results of foreign operations are

approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the dates of the transactions. Statement
of financial position items are translated into
Renminbi at the closing foreign exchange rates
ruling at the end of the reporting period. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of
an asset which necessarily takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that
asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred.

All borrowing costs of the Group are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

Related parties

(a) A person, or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the Group if
that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(iii)  is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the
Group’s parent.
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IIV-\éﬁji%ﬁ%Mj.%I

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(v)
(b)

Related parties (Continued)

An entity is related to the Group if any of
the following conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Group are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of
the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in

(a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a
group of which it is a part, provides
key management personnel services
to the Group or to the Group’s
parent.

1 EXREHEE (&)
BEAL (&)

v)
(b)

(BRABEHI -

AAREIITR)

EUATEABERT - XEE
SRR ER 6 R

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

ZEBRASESR
A —%E&KE QR
(BNERA - B
AIERRMB AR
B B b5 A R -

m o

o

\
A

@

hii|

|

it

fiE

I mE
o TSR

N

i

\;
!

o) Jmé

11 S 1

NI 3
|
fie i &R

Jul

[ =

==
e

e
D R
2 % o ¥

o

\|
/

=;: N
KSR oom

SHE W

ot o
2w W W
B Om B
o om g

Kt &

ﬁ
B

/

&\
=
g
Ho|
SH
ik
=

o

=

> N
-

i)
)3
X
S
NN

T
o
et

b

fi
Sk R R

Il
s
7t

=

() (i) AT sk Bl A T3
2 EK%%M}
ZER (KZE

) FTEE

w
o o

\
o/

pos

e R
‘IIEE‘&“%]
20 &

\"ﬂ“ b) ‘m]fh} ﬁf

RS
ERk &
EENSEEAORN S
ZHRRREEEE
BABRBZERBX
HFfr I &= 2 (el AX

BAF

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 FE#E 145



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=BEHI -

AAREIITR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(y)

(2)
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Related parties (Continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person
are those family members who may be
expected to influence, or be influenced by,
that person in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of
each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments are
not aggregated for financial reporting purposes
unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class
of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may
be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.

1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
IIV-\éﬁji%ﬁ%Mj.%I

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BrEEEREIN - LARBIITR)
2 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 2 WARDHRE
(a) Revenue (a) WA
The principal activities of the Group are the NEEREEXE LM EE R
manufacturing and sales of pharmaceutical - FRANSEETZEBNE—Z
products. Further details regarding the Group’s FIERBENHEE2(D) ©
principal activities are disclosed in note 2(b).
Disaggregation of revenue WA 7 HF
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with REBEREPFIMY 26 KW AZE
customers by major products is as follows: EEMZIOFAT
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%F T ARBTT
Kidney medicines BR} #E) 928,360 814,926
Contrast medium Eapnarii] 128,056 119,831
Orthopedics medicines BREY) 250,171 224,334
Dermatologic medicines & E R EE) 222,025 220,995
Hepatobiliary medicines FFiEZEy 111,233 102,515
Women and children medicines U 57 25 ) 130,444 110,320
Others Hiy 73,684 67,309
1,843,973 1,660,230
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with REBEERFEIINS 42 WAZRA
customers by the timing of revenue recognition R ZEBREMETS 29T
and by geographic markets is disclosed in notes B3 BRI EE2(b) (1) K2 2(b)(iii) °

2(b)(i) and 2(b)(iii) respectively.
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=BEHI -

(a)

AARESITR)
2 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 2 WARDBEHE (&)
Revenue (Continued) (a) WA #&)
Disaggregation of revenue (Continued) WA ¥ (&)
Revenue from major customers contributing over KEBRMAREBRABIREI0%H0F
10% of the revenue of the Group, is as follows, ZEXEMRA (BIERARNEBESEE
including sales to entities which are known to the HZERPXHARZES 2 BEEER
Group to be under common control with these BISHE) 20T -
customers:
2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARETTT
Customer A ZEH 419,528 384,087
Customer B 2B 400,573 234,280
As at 31 December 2018, full amount of the R2018F12H831H » A& EIR A
transaction price under the Group’s existing EHBE IR EEHNEENIBEDR
contracts was recognised as revenue. BUWA
Segment reporting (b) oH®SE

(b)

148 CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED RE#ZESEEER QA

The Group manages its businesses by product
lines. In a manner consistent with the way in
which information is reported internally to the
Group’s most senior executive management
for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has
presented the following two reportable segments.

- Consun Pharmaceutical Segment: this
segment manufactures and sells modern
Chinese medicines and medical contrast
medium.

= Yulin Pharmaceutical Segment: this
segment manufactures and sells traditional
Chinese medicines.

AEBRERREEEER - XK
B2 THIMmERT2®HD 8 - B
ST AR SN B E R RFHERER
BHmAAEESRHTREEAR
AEHEEHN T AER—B -

-  FREAESE: HoRAEE
KK E AR R pCRE N B AR
REFLLA
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2 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

()

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources
between segments, the Group’s senior
executive management monitors the
results, assets and liabilities attributable to
each reportable segment on the following

bases:

Segment assets include all tangible,
intangible assets and current assets with
the exception of interests in associates,
investments in financial assets, deferred
tax assets and other corporate assets.
Segment liabilities include provision
for electronic product warranties, trade
creditors, accruals and bills payable
attributable to the manufacturing and
sales activities of the individual segments
managed directly by the segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to
the reportable segments with reference
to sales generated by those segments
and the expenses incurred by those
segments or which otherwise arise from
the depreciation or amortisation of assets
attributable to those segments. However,
other than reporting inter-segment sales
of pharmaceutical products, assistance
provided by one segment to another,
including sharing of assets and technical
know-how, is not measured.

The measure used for reporting segment
profit is gross profit. The Group’s senior
executive management is provided with
segment information concerning segment
revenue and gross profit. Segment assets
and liabilities are not reported to the
Group’s senior executive management
regularly.

e ISR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRABEHI -

AAREIITR)
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(Br=BEHI -

AAREIITR)

2 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

()
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Segment results, assets and liabilities
(Continued)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts
with customers by the timing of revenue
recognition, as well as information
regarding the Group’s
segments as provided to the Group’s

reportable

most senior executive management for
the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance for
the years ended 31 December 2018 and
2017 is set out below:

Consun Pharmaceutical

2

WAR S E#®E (&)
(b) AEE/E (&)

(i) DEFE BEEREE (F)

TXET KRB R PEIN 2
B R 2 WANIRRAFER 2 B
Mz a2 - AREZE20184F
20179 12H318 It F &
RO IEER R D BRE
MAAEEZ=THREEA
BRENAEBIZ®RD S

&R

Yulin Pharmaceutical

Segment Segment Total
BERESH INHEL @t
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
2018% 20178 2018% 2017% 2018% 2017F
RMB’000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
For the year ended 31 December  BZ12A31RLEE AR¥TR ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR
Disaggregated by timing BRUARR 2 KB
of revenue recognition pAx S
Point in time g 1,219,586 1060505 624,387 599,725 1,843,973 1,660,230
Reportable segment revenue CEL: Vi1 ON
Revenue from external customers — RESMIEFAMA 1219586 1,060,505 624,387 509,725 1,843,973 1,660,230
Reportable segment profit CEL: Gk
Gross profit eS| 976,447 848,253 407,979 380,142 1,384,426 1,228,395
Reportable segment assets T2HIPEE 2145240 2126155 1,719,492 1410783 3,864,732 3,536,938
Reportable segment liabilities TERIHER 791,408 826,683 369,114 441201 1,160,522 1,267,884
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e ISR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBBREPI - LARKEIIR)

2 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 2 WARDEHRE (&)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) PBHE (&)
(i)  Reconciliations of reportable segment (i)  A2#HD 505 FIR 2 R
profit
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFIT
Reportable segment gross profit KEAREBINTEFS
derived from the Group’s 2] 23D EBEF
external customers 1,384,426 1,228,395
Other (loss)/income (note 3) Hith (E5188) WA
(BfFEES) (2,194) 35,102
Distribution costs 7 SERAR (561,537) (540,264)
Administrative expenses THHAX (176,527) (163,497)
Finance costs (note 4(a)) FERA (M3E4(a)) (27,469) (14,754)
Consolidated profit before taxation — 4R& FiRT % £ 616,699 544,982
(iii) Geographic information (iii) HEEH

Analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results as well as analysis of the Group’s
carrying amount of segment assets
and additions to property, plant and
equipment by geographical market
has not been presented as 99% of the
Group’s operating profit is derived from
activities of manufacturing and sales of
pharmaceutical products in the PRC.

B A & E99%H) & & A
TR 8 B A 2 o A A B
ERY  BAEBMETS
2INEREERARKEZD
o ARANEE D BEER
EERDE - BB MERER
B2OM e
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=AEHERN - UARKIITR)

3 OTHER (LOSS)/INCOME

3 Hftt (BB KA

2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTF T ARBTTT
Government grants (i) AT BA ()
— Unconditional subsidies — M4 AL 1,981 6,708
— Conditional subsidies (note 22) — B &AL (F5E22) 2,466 2,344
Net rental income from FE Y FHE S WA
investment properties (ii) 1,049 311
Interest income A B 7 11,316 34119
Loss on disposal of property, BREVWE  WEKRKRE
plant and equipment o) =Ei! (231) (307)
Net exchange (loss)/gains FEN (B518), W (22,242) 23,192
Others Hb 3,467 (565)
(2,194) 35,102
(i) Government grants represent various forms of ) BRI #  4E PR S 05 BRURT AR B AR T AR R

incentives and subsidies granted to the Group by the

local government authorities in the PRC.

- Unconditional subsidies

The entitlements to certain government
grants amounting to RMB1,981,000 (2017:
RMB6,708,000) were unconditional. They were
funds to subsidise the operating expenses of
the PRC subsidiaries of the Group during the

current or prior years.

- Conditional subsidies

The remaining government grants were
conditional government grants and initially
recorded as deferred income. The amount
of conditional government grants charged to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss
for the year ended 31 December 2018 was
RMB2,466,000 (2017: RMB2,344,000) (see note
22).

152 CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED RE#ZESEER QA

B 5 R 2 22D Mo B G
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e ISR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BrEEEREIN - LARBIITR)
OTHER (LOSS)/INCOME (Continued) 3 Hith (58) WA (&)
(i)  Total future minimum lease payments receivables by (i)  AKERUCKRFEHEE T AEE
the Group
Total future minimum lease payments under AN B R R B AR R s B ARET
non-cancellable operating leases in place at the ST 9T A AR BR AR 2 7H B PR U A R 2R B (R
reporting date will be receivable by the Group in future HENRBENOT -
periods as follows:
2018 2017
20184 20174F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFR ARBFIT
Within 1 year 1FERN 1,396 1,400
After 1 year but within 5 years 1612 B5F A 1,201 930
After 5 years 5%F1& 1,030 =
3,627 2,330
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 4  BiADRF
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging: BATER AR A T SRS
(a) Finance costs (@) WERK
2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARETTT
Interest on bank loans (note 19(c))  #R{TEZ A& (M3E19(c)) 22,526 11,052
Finance charges on bank loans RITERMEER
(note 19(c)) (FzE19(c)) 4,943 3,702
27,469 14,754
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=AEHERN - UARKIITR)

4 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 4 BanEF (&2)
(b) Staff costs (b) BIRK
2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETTT
Salaries, wages, bonuses e 1LE - e RER
and benefits 269,636 322,579
Contributions to defined contribution 52 5E 4t FE (K5t 2] 4 5k
retirement schemes 9,335 8,651
Equity settled share-based VA B e 4 55 3 PARR 4D
payments: REME R
Share Option Scheme (note 23(a))  BERR#E:T2EI (Fi£23(a)) 8,490 21,187
287,461 352,417

154 CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED RE#ZESEEER QA

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and
regulations in the PRC, the PRC subsidiaries
participate in defined contribution retirement
schemes (the “Schemes”) organised by the
local government authorities whereby the PRC
subsidiaries are required to make contributions
to the Schemes based on certain percentages
of the eligible employees’ salaries. The local
government authorities are responsible for
the entire pension obligations payable to the
retired employees. The Group has no other
obligations for payments of retirement and other
post-retirement benefits of employees other than
the contributions described above.

RIBH B ERS B R A R R
B P R )2 R b 5 R
78 A0 4 0 SR E R FOR IRET &1 (T 5T
g2 gt PEMNBLARER
RABREBRF SN AN LA
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBHEIEAEIN  UARBIIR)
4  PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 4  BAER (&)
(c) Other items (c) HftEH
2018 2017
20185 20174
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Hfat ARBT R ARBTIT
Depreciation e
— Investment property —IREME 9 676 676
— Other property, — HAb¥ZE -
plant and equipment G 10 38,292 33,938
Amortisation b
— lease prepayments — HERNIA 11 3,134 3,106
- intangible assets — B EE 12 29,415 29,414
Auditor’s remuneration IZ S B &
— audit services — BRI 2,100 2,100
- non-audit services — B R 450 770
Impairment losses/ BAEETE
(reversal) of trade and (#m|) E5 Kk
other receivables(i) H 1t fE YRR TA() 4,894 (2,089)
Net unrealised losses on WIHFEEBERED
investment not held for RERIRE EE
trading (ii) FRA(I) 2,600 =
Operating lease charges KEHEER 2,920 2,858
Research and development 2SR AN (i)
costs(iii) 67,937 45,070
Cost of inventories(iv) FERA(iv) 17 459,547 431,835

(i During the year ended 31 December 2018,
provision for doubtful debts of RMB4,894,000
(2017: reversal of provision for doubtful debts
of RMB2,089,000) was recognised, among
which RMB5,000,000 were debts subsequently
collected that had been written off in previous
year (2017: Nil).

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2018,
net unrealized losses on investment not held
for trading of RMB2,600,000 (2017: Nil) was
recognised, representing the fair value change

of the investment.

(it)

HZE2018F12A31BLFE -
TR R AR 4 A R ¥64,894,000
T (20174« BB RERE A
[ #2,089,0007T) + HF AR
5,000,000 & W Bl 38 1T &
E B &M r &% (20174 :
=) o

» & E2018%12A318 It 4
B BHRUEFIEEERAZD
AERBEFERIFBEARE
2,600,0007C (20174 : &) » 18
REZBREARENES -
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=BEHI -

AAREIITR)

4 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued)

(c)

(a)

BRI SR (4F)

Other items (Continued) (c) HiER (&)

(i)  During the year ended 31 December 2018, (i)  EHZ=2018F12A31ALEFE
research and development costs included HEXABIFEEE THA - 57
RMB25,237,000 (2017: RMB20,442,000) relating EREHPINELHEER
to staff costs, depreciation and amortisation 8B M A R %25,237,0007T
expenses and operating lease charges, which (20174 : A R #20,442,000
amount is also included in the respective total 7o) » PA RS BIRET A £ Sk
amounts disclosed separately above or in the FE4(b)Bt & 7 X 58 5l 8 L # R
note 4(b) for each of these types of expenses. HEEESENA -

(iv)  During the year ended 31 December 2018, (iv) #EZ=2018F12A31HLEFE -
cost of inventories include RMB81,576,000 GFEXRABIEEE TRA - I
(2017: RMB81,777,000) relating to staff costs, EREHAIHBENARE
depreciation and amortization expenses, which 81,576,0007T (20174 : A R
amount is also included in the respective total #81,777,0007T) * BA_E©EETR
amounts disclosed separately above or in the s A £ 30t 5T 4(b)st & B 2
note 4(b) for each of these types of expenses. FERIE R ERHAREESTEN o

5 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED FEBRBERANAER
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
Taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) HERERANOBEE
profit or loss represents:
2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARETTT
Current tax BN HA 18
Provision for PRC income tax FE R B TS R RS
for the year 130,068 127,354
Over-provision for PRC income tax  BEFEREAESHBRERG
in respect of prior years (5,277) (554)
124,791 126,800
Deferred tax ELEBIE
Origination and reversal of EERELERMEEE
temporary differences (5,583) (3,638)
119,208 123,162
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5 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

(a)

Taxation in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss represents: (Continued)

(i)

(iiif)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of
the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin
“BVI”),
subject to any income tax in the Cayman
Islands and the BVI.

Islands (the the Group is not

No provision was made for Hong Kong
Profits Tax as the Group did not earn
income subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax
for the year ended 31 December 2018
(2017: Nil).

Taxable income for the subsidiaries of the
Company in the PRC is subject to PRC
income tax rate of 25%, unless otherwise
specified below.

Consun Pharmaceutical (Inner Mongolia)
Co., Ltd.
and Guangzhou Consun Pharmaceutical

(“Inner Mongolia Consun”)

Company Limited (“Guangzhou Consun”)
were qualified as an “Advanced and New
Technology Enterprise”, Inner Mongolia
Consun and Guangzhou Consun were
entitled to the preferential income tax rate
of 156% from 2018 to 2020 and 2017 to

2019, respectively.

Yulin Pharmaceutical and Guangxi Yulin
Limited
(“Yulin Capsule”) were qualified as

Pharmaceutical Capsule Co.,

encouraged industry that operates in
western China. Yulin Pharmaceutical
and Yulin Capsule were entitled to the
preferential income tax rate of 15% from
2011 to 2020.

r e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRABEHI -

AAREIITR)

5 HeBEmRANRES (&)

(a) BABBRANBIES: (4

(i)

(if)

(iiif)

RIBFHSE S KRB LA
E(RBELEEB] MR
ARG - NEBEBARF
SHENRBRZESHN
ERFEH

R A &£ B R E £2018F
128318 Ik F E I £ H 5
TR BN VS RS B A
(20174 : &) « i 30 /& 3t
BANGBIELEE -

BRIETXEZHEHRE - FRIAR
A A) A R BB B 1 A A B R
Tt U A 7B 3% 25 % H Tt R 0 4%
R EIFTISHL o

RE#Z (NEH) BRE
FRAI(ARGTEE]) &
Emmﬁi%ﬁ@ a (&
MNEE]) BRFAR [T
Ml REHERERE
M E A 5 5l {20184 &
2020¢ N20174 £20194F
XEBEFAEHBE15% o

FEMRBIBE R EE EMELER
BEERAR(EHBE]D
EREBERNPREAIEEN
ERENMEEEAR C EMRBILE
REMBEHAIH2011EFE
2020F ZZEBEAMEHBIX
15% o
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=BEHI -

5
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AAREIITR)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

(a)

Taxation in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss represents: (Continued)

(iiif)

(iv)

(Continued)

Guangxi Yulin Pharmaceutical Group
Yuming Chinese Traditional Medicine Co.,
Limited (“Yuming Chinese Traditional
Medicine”), Guangxi Yulin Pharmaceutical
Group Hongsheng Trading Co., Limited
(“Hongsheng Trading”) and Guangxi
Yulin Yunxiang Real Estate Co., Limited
(“Yunxiang Real Estate”) met the criteria
for preferential income tax rate granted to
small and low profit-making enterprises
in the PRC, and were entitled to the
preferential income tax rate of 10% in 2018
(2017: 10%).

Guangxi Yulin Pharmaceutical Group
Yonglv Chinese Traditional Medicine
Industry Co., Limited (“Yonglv Chinese
Traditional Medicine”) met the exemption
criteria on income generated through
planting of agricultural products and was
exempted from PRC income tax in 2018
and 2017.

According to the relevant tax law and its
implementation rules, dividends receivable
by non-PRC-resident corporate investors
from PRC-resident enterprises are subject
to withholding tax at 10%. The Group has
adopted the withholding tax rate at 10%
for PRC withholding tax purposes.

5

REBRBRAMNAEHR (F)

(a)

FEBRBRANBIEE  (B)

(iii)

(iv)

(%)

B EHEELHTEAR
EAAE([E#hzE] -
EREMEEEERAE
SEREFTAR ([EHE
2 REAEMEREXS
RRABI(ZEEEB¥]) /o6
ZAER B T P B/ N R R
ENEBMERBE - I
R2018F Z R BEFTEFRH
Z10% (20174 : 10%) °

PP R B B ok A R BEE S
BRAR ([KigkpEE]) 75
BREREBERANIRRIZ
3 20184 20174
R RN FTET o

BIEE B ERE B IR
A EhBEERAEREE
R EERSENREE
R10% B MTE T o 3L+ E
BHHME AEEEHEA
10% B TEFFEE o



5 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

5

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(BRBBREPI - LARKEIIR)

REBBRANAER (&)

Taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) RERBRANBIERE © (7)
profit or loss represents: (Continued)
(iv)  (Continued) (v) (&)
The directors have determined that in EREME  ERETEH
determining the amounts of dividends to BRAB&RANEEEMX
be distributed from PRC subsidiaries to VHMBRBD KBRS
the Hong Kong incorporated subsidiary in B BERARRE RN
future, the amounts of dividends declared RERNEESBRART
or to be declared by the Company and BERREROEREHE -
the repayment schedule of loans and R20185F12A31H - R &
borrowings of the Company would be RAREARREMNEER
considered. As at 31 December 2018, MERARRIREME -
deferred tax liabilities of RMB58,003,000 AAREEHRARBARR
(31 December 2017: RMB58,003,000) 58,003,000t (2017412
have been provided based on the )j31 B+ ARH58,003,000
expected dividends to be distributed from L) e
Guangzhou Consun to the Company in the
foreseeable future.
Reconciliation between tax expenses and (b) HEFAZHEZBEBARETENES
accounting profit at applicable tax rates: B R
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®EF T ARBTT
Profit before taxation for the year F AT A &= A 616,699 544,982
Notional tax on profit before taxation, 3&Zi8/ T EE R % T
calculated at the rates applicable BARERFENTAR
to profits in the jurisdictions i A B % 3= T I8
concerned 175,188 144,299
Effect of non-deductible expenses A HRA T2 21,565 22,072
Effect of tax concessions MBS ERNTE (72,268) (59,808)
Dividend withholding tax &% S FEF - 17,153
Over-provision in respect WA FEBRERE
of prior years (5,277) (554)
Actual tax expenses ERHRIBEMRY 119,208 123,162
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AR e SRR B
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHEERIN - LAREBIITR)
6 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 6 EEWE
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section BIEE A (R TR F383(1)E KA A
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and (BREEZFmER) KOIE28omEE
Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information BEENESMEFEOT ¢
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:
Year ended 31 December 2018
BE2018F12A31ALEE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme  Share-based
fees in kind bonus  contribution  payment (i) Total
e BER NRGBRER
ESHe ENET MERL  BAGTEGR B} 5
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR  ARMTR  ARBTR  AR®TR  ARWTR  AR%TR
Executive directors HTES
Mr. AN Yubao ZHERE 2,047 1,080 10,290 - 339 13,756
Ms. LI Qian Rignt 2,109 975 10,290 39 339 13,752
Mr. ZHU Quan RErE 435 465 - - 445 1,345
Mr. TANG Ning BERE
(appointed on 1 June 2018)  (2018E6A1REZ(T) - 549 373 16 160 1,008
Non-executive director F4TES
Mr. LIN Sheng HEEE
(resigned on 13 April 2018)  (R2018F4A13B &) - - - - - -
Independent non-executive  BIFHTES
directors
Mr. SU Yuanfu HrELE 120 - - - - 120
Mr. FENG Zhongshi BHELE 120 - - - - 120
Ms. CHENG Xinxin Rt 120 - - - - 120
4,951 3,069 20,953 55 1,283 30,311
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e ISR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BrEEEREIN - LARBIITR)
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 6 EEME (&F)
Year ended 31 December 2017
HBE17F12R31A L5
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors”  and benefits  Discretionary scheme  Share-hased
fees in kind bonus  contribution payment (i) Total
g% BER DR RER
22108 ENEH ML RGBT BIRIAA() @5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARBTRT  ARETrT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETR
Executive directors yrEE
Mr. AN Yubao ZHERE 1,300 1,080 8,599 - 1515 12,494
Ms. LI Qian BERL 1,320 973 8,599 21 1,515 12,428
Mr. ZHU Quan REEE 435 465 258 - 1,425 2,583
Non-executive directors FUTES
Mr. WANG Shunlong TIRERE
(retired on 31 May 2017) (R2017E5A31BR(E) - - - - - -
Mr. LIN Sheng W& - - = - = -
Independent non-executive ~ BUEHTES
directors
Mr. SU Yuanfu BLREE 120 - - - - 120
Mr. FENG Zhongshi BhELE 120 - - - - 120
Ms. CHENG Xinxin Bl e 120 - - - - 120
3,415 2518 17,456 21 4,455 27,865
(i) These represent the estimated value of share options (i) EARBEAARBRENZRTFESZBR

granted to the directors under the Company’s Share

Option Scheme. The value of these share options is

measured according to the Group’s accounting policies

for share-based payment transactions as set out in note

1(s)(ii).

The details of these benefits in kind, including the

principal terms and number of options granted, are

disclosed under the paragraph “Share Option Scheme”

in the directors’ report and note 23(a).

REOEFEE ZSERENEERRAER
HARODRERNNRR SO ABE (FR
MEEE1(s) (i) 5HE o

ZEEVRANFE (ERREBERENTE
GRREE) EEEGREG [EREAE] —&
K PFr23(a) B EE o
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nv_\é“,ﬁji%ﬁﬂ%wqi

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=AEHERN - UARKIITR)

7  INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 7 EBEFMAL
Of the five individuals with highest emoluments, four FEGEEFMALTHEMESE (2017F : =
(2017: three) are directors of the Company whose #) BANRIES - HEAH 6
emoluments are disclosed in note 6. The aggregate of FIN—H (20175 : ME) AL F A
the emoluments in respect of the other one (2017: two) AT :

individual are as follows:

2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT R ARETTT

Salaries and other emoluments & N E b 859 1,327

Contributions to retirement scheme RIREF B R - 31

Share-based payment VARS {7 723 EERE B 5 50 134 1,021

993 2,379

The emoluments of the one (2017: two) individual with Z—% (2017F : MB) ZFMALH
the highest emoluments is within the following bands: FMNFAT & E -

2018 2017

20184 20174

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

ATEA ATEH

HKD500,000 - HKD 1,000,000 500,000/ T & 1,000,000/ 7T 1 -

HKD1,000,001 — HKD2,000,000 1,000,001/ 7t 22,000,000/ 7T - 2
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8 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)

Basic earnings per share

e ISR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBBREPI - LARKEIIR)

8 BREF

(a)

The calculation of basic earnings per share

is based on the profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company of RMB465,353,000
(2017: RMB396,242,000) and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of
854,841,000 shares (2017: 861,067,000 shares)
in issue during the year, calculated as follows:

BREFEF

BERERBFDBEFAELEAQ
AETREEMG AR
465,353,0007T (20174 : AR %
396,242,0007T) KRB #ETEBRK
/9 N4 F 15 #854,841,0000% % 1
(20174 : 861,067,000/ %15 ) &t
o AEWMT

Weighted average number of ordinary shares ZEAERINEFITE
2018 2017
20185 20174
’000 shares '000 shares
TR T A%
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January 18182317 T @R 873,610 974,268
Effect of shares repurchased B8 E R EESEAR (D Y o 2
and cancelled - (100,496)
Effect of issuance of shares BITRID I E - 6,925
Effect of share options exercised EITEERENTE 929 68
Effect of treasury shares held BB ZEHEFE R
under the Share Award Scheme EFR 2 (19,698) (19,698)
Weighted average number of M12 8318 L BARAY
ordinary shares at 31 December N9 854,841 861,067
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=BEHI -

8

EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

(b)

AAREIITR)

Diluted earnings per share

8 BRER (&)

(b)

The calculation of diluted earnings per share
for the year ended 31 December 2018 is based
on the profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company of RMB465,353,000(2017:
RMB396,242,000) and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 877,986,000 shares
(2017: 867,114,000 shares), calculated as

BREERF

HZE2018F12A31 B I FENER
BE B F THAR IR AN R o AR R E
1% A A R #465,353,0007T (2017
&F: AR#%396,242,0007T) KB
& B9 N4 S 19 24877,986,000 % A% 15
(20174F : 867,114,0000% A% 1) &t
o FTEWMT

follows:
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ZARINEFITE (#E)
(diluted)
2018 2017
20184 20174
’000 shares 000 shares
F B TA%
Weighted average number of M12H31 8 & imika)
ordinary shares at 31 December hnE I Ex 854,841 861,067
Dilutive effect of deemed issue HE AR ST 118 TR A 31T
of shares under the Share &t Y S E R 2
Option Scheme 23,145 6,047
Weighted average number of M®12 8318 L @R
ordinary shares (diluted) keS8 ()
at 31 December 877,986 867,114
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IIV-\éﬁji%ﬁ%Mj‘%I

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BrEEEREIN - LARBIITR)
INVESTMENT PROPERTY 9 BREWE
RMB’000
AR¥ET T
Cost AR AR
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017, R2017F1 /818 ~ 2017F12H318 -
1 January 2018 and 31 December 2018 2018F1H1H K&2018F12H31H 18,890
Accumulated depreciation: ZHTE -
At 1 January 2017 201761 /18 (338)
Charge for the year FAMK (676)
At 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 7R2017%F12A31H &2018F1 5 1H (1,014)
Charge for the year FAHMER (676)
At 31 December 2018 M2018F12831H (1,690)
Net book value: BRIEFE ¢
At 31 December 2018 M2018F12A31H 17,200
At 31 December 2017 M2017612H31H 17,876
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:-v_\éﬂji%ﬁﬂ%wqi

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=AEHERN - UARKIITR)

INVESTMENT PROPERTY (Continued)

Investment properties of the Group are situated in the
PRC.

The Group leases out investment properties under
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial
period of 5 years, with an option to renew the lease
after that date at which time all terms are renegotiated.
Lease payments are usually increased every year to
reflect market rentals. None of the leases includes
contingent rentals.

Included in investment property, properties of
RMB13,886,000 (2017: RMB13,886,000) are held
under operating leases that would otherwise meet the
definition of investment property, and properties of
RMB5,004,000 (2017: RMB5,004,000) are held for a
currently undetermined future use.

Investment properties of the Group were stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. The
carrying amounts of the investment properties were
not materially different from their fair value as at 31
December 2018 and 2017.
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AEBENREMEULRNTE -

AEERBEEHEEHBREDE - 15
HEERF  RZBRAIEEEN &
BEEMHEMBGR - HENKATE
BEEM - URBHEES - HEREE
ExAHEE -

BRENMERREUREHERARFTAR
BEYETENYE AR %13,886,0007T
(20174 : A R %13,886,0007T) N B i
18 R T TE R 2R AR 42 A9 7 2 A R #55,004,000
JC (20174 © AR¥5,004,0007T) °

REBWIREMERGTE VBRI R IR
R R ERREREIIER - R20184F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EEmRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBBREPI - LARKEIIR)

10 OTHER PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 10 HMWXE - BERRHE

Machinery
and Motor Office  Construction
Buildings equipment vehicles equipment in progress Total
BT  REREE RE HARE HBIR gt
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AEETT AEETR AEETR AEETR AEETR AEETR
Cost: BA
At 1 January 2017 201751718 299,505 161,450 14,204 14,188 10,093 499,440
Transfer from construction in progress BB Ti2E# 15,264 18,118 - 1,254 (34,636) -
Other additions HipiRE 429 2,379 185 1,781 38,314 43,088
Disposals RE - (5,574) (397) (851) - (6,322)
At 31 December 2017 and R2017512R318 R
1 January 2018 2018141 315,198 176,373 13,992 16,372 13,771 535,706
Transfer from construction in progress BB Ti2E# 11,482 19,615 9 252 (31,358) -
Other additions iR 2,991 1,506 10,472 1,459 184,361 200,789
Disposals RE - (762) (3,604) (379) - (4741)
At 31 December 2018 H2018E12A318 329,674 196,732 20,869 17,708 166,774 731,754
Accumulated depreciation: ZHNE:
At 1 January 2017 R2017E1A1R (51,824) (38,936) (7,676) (8,122) - (106,558)
Charge for the year ERmk (14,813) (15,332) (1,461) (2.332) - (33,938)
Written back on disposal REEREE = 4,398 381 808 - 5,587
At 31 December 2017 and R2017E12A318 R
1 January 2018 2018£1A18 (66,637) (49.870) (8756) (9,646) - (134,909)
Charge for the year Eiks (16,417) (18,421) (1560) (189) - (38,292)
Written back on disposal REEREMD - 724 2,156 352 - 3,232
At 31 December 2018 #2018%12A31H (83,054) (67,567) (8,160) (11,188) - (169,969)
Net book value: BREFE:
At 31 December 2018 #2018E 127318 246,617 129,165 12,709 6,520 166,774 561,785
At 31 December 2017 20175127318 248 561 126,503 5,236 6,726 13,7171 400,797
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=AEHERN - UARKIITR)

11 LEASE PREPAYMENTS

11 HERARE

RMB’000
ARET T
Cost: A -
At 1 January 2017 R201751H1H 93,618
Additions =T 49,877
At 31 December 2017, 1 January 2018 R2017%F12A31H ~ 201815 1H
and 31 December 2018 2018412831 H 143,495
Accumulated amortisation: RET#e
At 1 January 2017 20171 1H (7,612)
Charge for the year FRHk (3,106)
At 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 MR2017FE12H31H &2018%1 A 1H (10,718)
Charge for the year F AR (3,134)
At 31 December 2018 #2018F12831H (13,852)
Net book value: R FE
At 31 December 2018 R2018F12A31H 129,643
At 31 December 2017 MR2017F12H31H 132,777

Lease prepayments represent prepayments for land

MERMFREEN THEKEN LBE

use rights paid to the PRC authorities. The leasehold FRAETEMNFRIE - BE LU RFE - R

lands are located in the PRC, on which the Group’s
manufacturing plants were built. The Group was granted

land use rights for a period of 50 years initially and the F-30ZE48%F o

remaining periods range from 30 to 48 years.
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e ISR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBBREPI - LARKEIIR)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS BEEE
Patents Trademark Total
=R EE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETr AR%¥®Tr AR%®Tx
Cost: RN :
At 1 January 2017, R20171 /18 -

31 December 2017, 20174%12H31H

1 January 2018 and 2018F1 A1 &

31 December 2018 201812 H31H 248,103 256,233 504,336
Accumulated amortisation: E5tEe -

At 1 January 2017 M2017F1 18 (14,707) - (14,707)
Charge for the year FAHKR (29,414) = (29,414)
At 31 December 2017 and R2017F12A318 &

1 January 2018 201841 A 1H (44,121) - (44,121)
Charge for the year FRHIK (29,415) - (29,415)
At 31 December 2018 MR2018F12 A31H (73,536) - (73,536)
Net book value: BRTEFE
At 31 December 2018 MK2018%F12A31H 174,567 256,233 430,800
At 31 December 2017 R2017F12H31H 203,982 256,233 460,215

The amortisation charge for the year is included in “cost
of sales” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Trademark with the carrying amount of
RMB256,233,000, acquired through the acquisition of
Yulin Pharmaceutical Group in 2016, is assessed to
have indefinite useful lives when, based on an analysis
of all of the relevant factors, there is no foreseeable
limit to the period over which the asset is expected
to generate net cash inflows for the Group. The
recoverable amount of the trademark that has indefinite
useful life is estimated annually whether or not there is
any indication of impairment. The amount is allocated
to the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGU”) of Yulin
Pharmaceutical Group.

RERTBRNWBEHEFEBEERSBRERA
) TEHERA | & o

R2016F BB RS M B B & @ i &5
R E A AR ¥256,233,0007T M & 1Z
EREMAREREN ST TEEES
BRASEEEESFR R AR & DR
# - WA AESERERAFE - HXE
EERERAFHNERRBETF TG E
WeBARREHBEMBERR - %&
BRI AEBNEMNBEEBNR
EEEN ((ReEEEN]) -
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=BEHI -

12

13
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AAREIITR)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

The recoverable amount of the trademark that has
indefinite useful life is determined based on value-in-use
calculations by preparing cash flow projections of the
relevant CGU derived from the most recent financial
forecast approved by the management covering a
five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period
are extrapolated using an estimated increase rate of 3%
in selling price and cost with no growth in sales volume.
The cash flows are discounted using a discount rate
of 13.65% (2017: 14.94%). The discount rate used is
pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating to the relevant
CGU. No impairment loss was recognised during the
year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

GOODWILL

Goodwill acquired through business combination is
allocated to the Group’s CGU of Yulin Pharmaceutical
Group.

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined
based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations
use cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a five-year period.
Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated
using an estimated growth rate of 3% in selling price
and cost with no growth in sales volume. The growth
rates used do not exceed the long-term average growth
rates for the business in which the CGU operates. The
cash flows are discounted using a discount rate of
13.65% (2017: 14.94%). The discount rates used are
pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating to the relevant
CGU. No impairment loss was recognised during the
year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

12

13

BIEE (&)

B R R A B R A Al Y Bl £ BB AR
BEAEBEFEMERE  HEA: HlEE
1 E & B S BB 5 TEORI O E L 5 B
M) SHMNEARSELENRESRER
Bl e BBAFHMNESREE A G H
EERER RKANIERI%MmHE 2 I &
RS - HeR=RKAIIHE £13.65%
(20174 : 14.94%) #73R - FR{E AT IR
ETRBI AT R RN @ EEEUE
R Rk o MBI E2018F12H31H
IEFE - MEERREEE (201745 -
|m) o

]

BREGAFMESHEEN KR AE
B EMBESE IR ELEN -

Tigh

REEEBMNA AU E S5 IR EGE R E
B EMERE - 25 ERANKERE
BENMKEZ CRERFIHHE) RE%E
MBS REREN  BAAFHNRESRE
FERET S EREG R KK AL RE3%M
HESWEEREE - FIEANERET
CTHARSEABENMEEEBNTHEERE
HigRE - BEeRERAITRE13.65%
(20174F : 14.94%) #73R - FIEAHITR
ERBATY RREAEER S ELENE
B R R E B B o B E20185F12H31H
HFEE BERRABEESE (2017F
/) o
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e ISR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BrEEEREIN - LARBIITR)
14 OTHER INVESTMENTS 14 Hihiw &
31 December 1 January 31 December
2018 2018 (i) 2017 (i)
20185 20184 20174
12A31H 1H1B(>) 12H31H()
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T ARETTT ARETTT
Financial assets measured BARBEFGT ABRTE
at FVPL(i) W RVEE()
- unlisted equity securities — I E AR A& - 2,600 -
Available-for-sale financial Al S R E A ()
assets (ii)
— unlisted equity securities — JE EMRANE 75 - = 2,600

(i)

(if)

(iii)

Available-for-sale financial assets were reclassified
to financial assets measured at FVPL upon initial
application of HKFRS 9 at 1 January 2018. Under the
transition method chosen, comparative information is

not restated (see note 1(c)(i)).

The unlisted equity securities represents an investment
in a domestic medicine manufacturer located in Inner
Mongolia Autonomous Region of the PRC. The Group
owns a 5% equity interest in the domestic medicine

manufacturer.

During 2018, net unrealised losses on investment
not held for trading of RMB2,600,000 (2017: Nil) was
recognised, representing the fair value change of the

investment not held for trading of the Group.

(i) R2018F1B1B & X ER BB U153k
SRR FEE  AEEECREES
HoBAKRARBEH ABRIENSRE
BE - BBFMERANBERE  LREA
BAFEH (RMTEE(C)) °

(ii) FLTRARFRENPEARS B
EH—FRENBELERNRE - A%
EEEZENEEEERRE%AME o

R2018F MR T WHHIEET R LD
REIRIR A B8 T8 AR 2,600,000
7 (20174 : &) » RRANEE W IEF
EEEABRREARBENES -

(iii)
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nv_\é“,ﬁji%ﬁﬂ%wqi

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=AEHERN - UARKIITR)

15 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 15 RHEEAANRE
(a) List of subsidiaries (a) MEBARSRE
As at 31 December 2018, the Company had R2018F 128318 * AR AR T
direct or indirect interests in the following FIMB AR (2HMRIARE) #
subsidiaries, all of which are private companies, BEEENEEEZ  FBEHWM
particulars of which are set out below: ™
Authorised/
Place of registered  Attributable equity
incorporation and fully interest held by
Name of company and business paid up capital the Company Principal activities
Bl EE/BERR AR EREN
NRER EE3E BRRE [y 3 TEEH
Direct  Indirect
Ef i
Brilliant Reach Group Limited BVI United States 100% - Investment holding
BEEEERAT SBRTES Dollars (“USD”) REBR
50,000/USDA1
50,000% 7
([&x))/1%n
Immense Value Holdings Limited BVI USD50,000/USD1 100% - Investment holding
Immense Value Holdings Limited RBRUHS 50,000%7 /1% RARR
Century International Develop Limited Hong Kong HKD10,000/HKD1 - 100%  Investment holding
BB AR AR LA & 10,0007/ 187 RERR
Grand Reach Company Limited Hong Kong HKD10,000/HKD1,000 - 100%  Investment holding
BHARLH & 10,000%7C /1,000 7T RERk
Guangzhou Consun PRC RMB300,000,000/ = 100%  Production and sales of
(BNREEZBBRLR) i RMB300,000,000 pharmaceutical products
BMREEX ARG AR%300,000,0007C,/ EHER
AR#300,000,0007
Guangzhou Consun Medicine Company ~ PRC RMB3,000,000/ - 100%  Trading of pharmaceutical
Limited (B/MEEBEBRAR) * e RMB3,000,000 products
ENREBEERAA AR3,000,0007T,/ EngH
AE#3,000,0007T
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IIV-\éﬁji%ﬁ%Mj‘%I

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

List of subsidiaries (Continued)

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 15

(BRABEHI -

AAREIITR)

RHELRNRE (&)
(a) KEIEERE (&)

Authorised/
Place of registered  Attributable equity
incorporation and fully interest held by
Name of company and business paid up capital the Company Principal activities
LR EE/BERR A EREN
NREH e ARRE L RAER TERK
Direct  Indirect
Ef 583
Guangzhou Consun Pharmaceutical PRC RMB10,000,000/ - 100%  Research and development
Research Company Limited e RMB10,000,000 of pharmaceutical products
(BMREZNHREARAA) AR #10,000,0007T / REBm
BNREENHAERAR AR #10,000,0007
Shenzhen Qianhai Consun Investment PRC USD2,000,000/ - 100%  Investment holding
and Funding Management Co., Ltd HE USD500,000 RARER
(AT REREESER 2,000,000%7 /
BRRA) 500,000% 7T
ATAERERERAESER
B2
Guangzhou Consun Health Technology ~ PRC RMBS5,000,000/ - 100%  Research and development
Company Limited e RMB Nil of pharmaceutical products
(BMRERERBARAR) * AR5,000,0007T/ HEEm
BNRERERRERAR AREZT
Inner Mongolia Consun PRC RMB25,000,000/ - 100%  Production and sales
(REEX (WFh) BREFAR) " HE RMB25,000,000 of pharmaceutical products
REEE (ARG) ARREAA" AR 25,000,000/ EHBR
AR 25,000,000
Yulin Pharmaceutical PRC RMB448,834,102/ - 72.69%  Production and sales of
(BREMREEEERETLNA) " i RMB448,834,102 pharmaceutical products
ERIMHEREAREANR A% 448,834,102 / ERER
AR 448,834,1027T
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nv_\é“,ﬁji%ﬁﬂ%wqi

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREHEERIN - LAREBIITR)
15 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 15 RHERIRNKRE (&)
(a) List of subsidiaries (Continued) (a) MIBEATEE (&)
Authorised/
Place of registered  Attributable equity
incorporation and fully interest held by
Name of company and business paid up capital the Company Principal activities
R R EE/BERR A EREN
NREH e BRERE L RARR TEEH
Direct  Indirect
EE 583
Yulin Capsule PRC RMB1,340,000/ - 72.69% Production and sales
(EREMEEBEERAAF) HE RMB1,340,000 of capsule
BREMEE % ﬁ DA ARH1,340,0007/ EHBE
AR%1,340,0007
Yuming Chinese Traditional Medicine PRC RMB2,000,000/ - 7269% Trading of pharmaceutical
(EEEESEEZREEREAAR) " HE RMB2,000,000 products
ERATEEEREPEERELLA AR#2,000,0007/ EnE
AK%2,000,0007
Yonglv Chinese Traditional Medicine PRC RMB1,000,000/ - 72.69% Production and sales of
(BERLEEEXGTEELBRAR) . HE RMB1,000,000 pharmaceutical products
BRTEEEKGTEEZERAR) AR#1,000,0007/ EHEn
AK%1,000,0007
Hongsheng Trading PRC RMB500,000/ - 72.69% Trading of pharmaceutical
(ERENZEEELAZHBRAR) . HE RMB500,000 products
BREMREEEEAZHERAA" AR 500,000,/ En%5
AR#500,0007
Yunxiang Real Estate PRC RMB3,000,000/ - 72.69%  Property development
(BEIMEFEXARAR) * ikl RMB3,000,000 NELR
BRINEREXARLA AR#3,000,0007 /
A #3,000,0007T

The official name of the entity is in Chinese. The

English translation of the entity’s name is for

reference only.
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15 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 15

(b)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

The following table lists out the information (b)

relating to Yulin Pharmaceutical Group, the only

sub-group of the Group which has a material

NCI.

The summarised financial information

presented below represents the amounts before

any inter-company elimination.

(BRBBREPI - LARKEIIR)

REARNERE (&)

TRINEEEEMBEEE (KK
BEAEAERERE—T&
) WER - TX25NMEER
ME SR TAEEARBREHE
GIEN Ao

2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFIT

NCI percentage at 31 December MR12H31BIEERER B Dt 27.31% 27.31%
Current assets RENEE 829,172 945 471
Non-current assets EREEE 900,034 784,106
Current liabilities UEE=NE (400,336) (475,549)
Non-current liabilities B A E (84,530) (91,473)
Net assets BEFE 1,244,340 1,162,555
Carrying amount of NCI JEI IS S AR B 339,793 317,460
Revenue of the year FEUA 624,387 599,725
Profit and total FEafRkEmEKEERE

comprehensive income

of the year 117,692 93,666
Profit allocated to NCI 7 BR T IEFE AR AE 55 895 ) 32,138 25,578
Cash flows from operating activities #&&EEHE LR 137,231 (56,475)
Cash flows from investing activities R&EEIE LR (151,139) (44,494)
Cash flows from financing activities & EFEHIE R (141,243) 69,106
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=BEHI -

AARESITR)
16 OTHER PREPAYMENTS 16 Ha AR

2018 2017
2018% 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREET T

Prepayment for purchase of EEEMYZE - BRE L&
other property, plant and equipment EOREENEN 5,022 13,417

Prepayment for loan facility BERLHEANTENR —
fees-non-current portion (note 18(c)) FERNEREB (D (FFEE18(c)) 684 4,323
5,706 17,740
17 INVENTORIES 17 FE

2018 2017
2018% 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBFIT
Raw materials R A4 % 109,960 89,207
Work in progress E& 5 50,624 39,908
Finished goods SURY Th 49,726 70,886
210,310 200,001

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as

an expense and included in profit or loss is as follows:

ERRRAXTAABENFESEAOM
W

2018 2017

20184 20174

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBETIT

Cost of inventories sold BEEFERAN 456,822 430,850
Write down of inventories &MU 2,725 985
459,547 431,835
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

e ISR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBBREPI - LARKEIIR)

18 EZRHMERNRER

2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETTT

Trade debtors and bills receivables, =) AGEE S E S
net of loss allowance (a) kR EE R (a) 863,992 970,294
Other debtors, net of loss allowance (b) HfhEUBETR - IR EEEHE (D) 20,279 15,776
Financial assets measured RN AFTENESRIEE
at amortised cost 884,271 986,070
Prepayments (c) FETFRIE(C) 31,828 9,015
916,099 995,085
(a) Ageing analysis (a) BRER D AT

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing
analysis of trade debtors and bills receivable (which
are included in trade and other receivables), based

on the invoice date and net of loss allowance, is as

RBERR - B RUBIERRERRIE
(BFFABE S REMEHGRIR) UBER
B A E A IR B R B RO R e 0 T
LIl

follows:
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETT
Within 3 months 3EAR 691,927 903,231
3 to 12 months 3Z12f@A 158,447 58,986
Over 12 months 128 A LA E 13,618 8,077
863,992 970,294

Trade debtors and bills receivable are due within 30-90
days from the date of billing. Further details on the
Group’s credit policy and credit risk arising from trade

debtors and bills receivables are set out in note 26(a).

BoRBERREREEEHLRER
HERFEET30-00F M EIH - REBE(FEIX
FRARKREE 5 EWERETR R EREIERD
SERMBEE — S HBEENMET26(a)
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EEAIN - LAREIITR)
18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 18 EBEZREAMBWRKIE (&)
(b) Other debtors (b) H e U AR FX
As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s other receivables R2018F 128318 « A& B H fib fFE IR
of RMB259,000 (31 December 2017: RMB122,000) I A R #259,0007T (2017412 A 31
were determined to be impaired in full. H: AR¥122,0007T) B #E 5T 2R
o
(c) Prepayments (c) FESRIE
Loan facility fees of RMB4,323,000 (31 December 2017: AR =FHER (fF21) HEMER
RMB9,266,000) in connection with the three-year term ZHEE A A A R4,323,0007T (2017
loan (note 21) were prepaid, of which RMB684,000 F12A31H : A R ¥9,266,0007T) *
was expected to be recognised as expenses after Hih AR%684,000c TEHA G R BB —
more than one year and was classified as non-current FREBRRABANE S EREMIEN
and included in other prepayments (note 16), and FIERNERE D (MfsE16) « REERA A
the remaining amount of RMB3,639,000 which was R #£3,639,0007T 78 HA & 1 — & A 1 g
expected to be recognised as expenses within one RRBERIWEAE S REMEYKRIE -
year was included in trade and other receivables.
19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER 19 RERFSLEEHREURAEMHRESR
CASH FLOW INFORMATION EER
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a) HL2RBRLEEEFEHERE:
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBTIT
Cash at bank and on hand RITEFHEES 1,269,746 989,565
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r e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBBREPI - LARKEIIR)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER 19 BHEeFPHEESEZEBEBURHMEREER

CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued) BER (&)
(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash (b) BADEFELEFRESRSHEIR !
generated from operations:
2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARETTT

Profit before taxation A a A 616,699 544,982
Adjustments for 1R
Depreciation e 38,968 34,614
Amortisation 3 32,549 32,520
Provision recognised/(reversed) MR (BE) REEEE
for doubtful debts 9,894 (2,089)
Interest income .2 W 2 (11,316) (3,419)
Finance costs BhE AR 27,469 14,754
Loss on disposal of property, HEWSE - BKEREHE
plant and equipment EEREE 231 307
Share-based payment transactions  LARRD AEBRENZZ 5 8,490 21,187
Write down of inventories FEHH 2,725 985
Foreign exchange loss/(gain) SNEEIE S (UWES) 22,242 (23,192)
Net unrealised losses on WIRHIEEERER
investment not held for trading AREIRIGE B85 58 2,600 =
Changes in working capital BIEE S EL
Increase in inventories FEEMm (13,034) (60,012)
Decrease/(Increase) in trade and B 5 NH M E IR
other receivables > (3 hn) 67,845 (412,869)
Increase in trade and B 5 I B th FE (<RIBS A0
other payables 71,803 198,606
Decrease in deferred income I FE W 2= (2,320) (654)
Cash generated from operations & FEHRS 874,845 345,720
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=AEHERN - UARKIITR)

19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER 19
CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from

financing activities:

RERRESEBRBURREMBRER

BER (&)

(c) RMEFTHELENEEHIR:

Prepayment
Loans and for loan
borrowings  facility fees Total
ENZHER
EXRER :OFERREA EoH
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBT R ARBT R
Note 21 Note 18(c)
fifata Fi#E18(c)
At 1 January 2017 201741 A1H - = =
Changes from financing cash flows: FEHLHRESE :
Proceeds of new bank loans BRI ERAE A 653,707 = 653,707
Repayments of bank loans RITEFETE (59,066) = (59,066)
Finance costs paid BERREKAR (11,052) (12,968) (24,020)
Total changes from financing MEESREEF B
cash flows 583,589 (12,968) 570,621
Exchange adjustments ERAE (26,537) = (26,537)
Other changes: Hitt& A :
Interest on bank loans (note 4(a)) RITERF S (MizE4(a)) 11,052 = 11,052
Finance charges on bank RITEFHMBER
loans (note 4(a)) (HzE4(a)) - 3,702 3,702
Total other charges HEthBERE%E 11,052 3,702 14,754
At 31 December 2017 and R2017F12A318 &
1 January 2018 2018F1A1H 568,104 (9,266) 558,838
Changes from financing cash flows: REBRLFELH :
Repayments of bank loans RITERERR (197,008) - (197,008)
Finance costs paid BABERAE (22,526) - (22,526)
Total changes from financing cash flows BIEE & REZ &R (219,534) - (219,534)
Exchange adjustments ERAR 21,442 = 21,442
Other changes: Hth&R
Interest on bank loans (note 4(a)) BITEFHME (HE4(a)) 22,526 - 22,526
Finance charges on bank FIERHBER
loans (note 4(a)) GEZE) = 4,943 4,943
Total other charges Hib & REHR 22,526 4,943 27,469
At 31 December 2018 201812 A31H 392,538 (4,323) 388,215
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20 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

ARE SRR B EE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBBREPI - LARKEIIR)

20 EBEZREMENTE

31 December 1 January 31 December

2018 2018 2017

20184 20184 20174

12A31H 1H1H 12H31H

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETT ARBTT

Trade payables B S IA 92,755 68,739 68,739
Contract liabilities (i) BHEE>) 6,097 4,220 _
Refund liabilities (ii) RIB A E() 66,677 60,924 -
Receipts in advance TEU IR - - 4,220
Accrued expenses FEETR L 257,926 236,738 236,738
Employee benefits payable e E B 28 F 188,242 174,995 174,995
Other payables H o fE A 1B 139,107 134,106 195,030
750,804 679,722 679,722

(if)

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 15, receipts
in advance from customers are included in contract

liabilities (see note1(c)(ii)).

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 15, sales rebates
payable to customers are included in refund liabilities

(see notel(c)(ii)).

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing

analysis of trade payables (which are included in the

trade and other payables), based on the invoice date,

is as follows:

(i) AR RANB BT BREEAE155 - 1
EEEWBZHBEFASHEE (RKH
FE1(c)(ii)) °

(ii) HARENE SIS REERZE155 - [
BEPFIMZEERFREEFARESR
& (RKIaE1(c)(ii) °

RBEESHR - BHENFE (EFAES
REMEMNRIE) AEERBREENR
eI

2018 2017

2018% 20174

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBFIT

Within 1 month 1EANR 45,355 31,129
1 to 12 months 121218 A 44,318 36,619
Over 12 months 1218 A A 3,082 991
92,755 68,739
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(BR=AEHERN - UARKIITR)

21

182 CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED RE#ZESEER QA

LOANS AND BORROWINGS

At 31 December 2018, loans and borrowings were
unsecured bank loans and were repayable as follows:

BRREK

R2018%F12A31H  ER N E R A EK
HIRITER - BZAR T HRER :

2018 2017

20185 20174

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETTT

Within 1 year —FR 147,202 193,621
After 1 year but within 2 years —FEERMEAR 245,336 140,431
After 2 years but within 3 years MEZRBR=FA - 234,052
245,336 374,483

392,538 568,104

A three-year term loan which amounted to
HKD560,000,000 was included in loans and borrowings
and is interest-bearing at 2.00% per annum over the
relevant HIBOR, with repayment schedule from 2018 to
2020.

As at 31 December 2018, certain bank loans of the
Group amounted to RMB392,538,000 (31 December
2017: RMB548,104,000) are subject to the fulfilment
of covenants relating to certain of the Group’s or the
subsidiaries’ financial ratios, as are commonly found
in lending arrangements with financial institutions. If
the Group had breached the covenants the drawn
down loans would have become payable on demand.
The Group regularly monitors its compliance with
these covenants. As at 31 December 2018, none of
the covenants relating to drawn down loans had been
breached (31 December 2017: Nil).

ER R BB —IE S5 /560,000,000
BTN =FHER  HEFNEREERS
RITRIZETF B HN2.00% @ B EHA20184F
Z2020% -

M20185F12A31H - AEEHBHERITE
A R #392,538,0007T (2017412 431
H : AR¥548,104,00070) 5 #ll 7 #f A
EESMBARE TUHBLRMEE (%
EXEFZERESBEBOERZHEHR) -
BEAEBER T%EHHE  DRIWE
RESERBAREREER AEETHE
REFTZELBRIBMR - R20185F 128
310 ' AEEWEERTMEDIRMER
HERER RS (20174128318 : &) °



22

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBBREPI - LARKEIIR)

DEFERRED INCOME IEIE W 25
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBTTT
At 1 January ®1A1H 22,295 22,949
Additions HAth 3 N 146 1,690
Credited to profit or loss (note 3) sTAE= (FizE3) (2,466) (2,344)
At 31 December W12H31H 19,975 22,295
Representing: RAR
Current portion BVEAER 1 1,655 1,554
Non-current portion JEENEAER 1D 18,320 20,741
19,975 22,295

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, deferred income
of the Group mainly includes various conditional
government grants for research and development
projects of new or existing pharmaceutical products
and subsidies relating to purchase of land use rights.

Deferred government grants relating to research and
development projects will be recognised as income
in the same periods in which the expenses for the
development project are incurred. Deferred government
grants relating to purchase of land use rights will be
recognised as income on a straight-line basis over the
expected useful life of the relevant land use rights.

R20184F &2017F 128318 » A& B K
BN EEREFSEMSIRE B
HEMZIERGHBRGHE) - AREEE
T E AR e FhAL o

FHEMEEENECRAHBEEESE
FM#EBEARXHERSREZR SR - A
FRBE L AENEERNHEB S S
MR L E R ENTRET AT E B FHANE
RORHER A -
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(Br=BEHI -

23

184 CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED EREX/FXSEEABRAA

AAREIITR)

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(a)

Employees’ Share Option Scheme

In 2014, the Company granted 60,000,000 share
options to certain directors and employees at
a consideration of HKD1 for each grantee (the
‘2014 Grant”). The exercise price of these
share options was HKD6.64 per share, and
the aggregate fair value of these share options
amounted to RMB138,095,000. The options vest
after one year to five years from the date of grant
and are then exercisable on or before 23 March
2024.

In 2016, an aggregate of 24,790,000 unvested
share options under the 2014 Grant were
cancelled (the “Cancelled Share Options”),
among which 9,200,000 and 15,590,000
unvested share options were previously granted
to directors and employees, respectively, with
remaining vesting period ranging from one year
to three years.

In 2016, the Company granted 52,000,000 share
options to certain directors and employees
(the “2016 Grant”). The exercise price of these
share options was HKD4.01 per share, and
the aggregate fair value of these share options
amounted to RMB81,168,000. The options vest
after one year to three years from the date of
grant and are then exercisable on or before 31
March 2026.

Under the 2016 Grant, 36,440,000 share options
(the “Replacing Share Options”) were identified
as the replacement for 23,650,000 of the
Cancelled Share Options (the “Replaced Share
Options”), while the remaining 15,560,000 new
share options were granted to certain employees
who previously were not grantees of the 2014
Grant.

23

DURBAEE I AR M RER N A

(a)

ESBERETE

20145 » A 7l A AL A& A
1IBTHRERTETESERES
60,000,00017 & % # ([20145 &%
)  ZEERBTEERER
6.648TT  REBREARNEERT
#= A\ R #138,095,0007T ° % % B
BRERAREBHE—EZAFHE -
SR 1& F] AR 202443 A 23 H sk 2 Al
1T ©

R2016%F » 2014F XK E T~ A &
24,790,000 X HF B A B R ER
Wi ([EEHBRE)  HA
9,200,000 }15,590,00017 K &
BERELIERRTESRIE
B BRTHNEBEENT —F2=

o

_FH

R2016%5F - ARRBRTFETESK
& 852,000,00017 & % # ([2016
FRE] - ZEBRETEEARAT
4018 ZEEREALES
5HiE A R #81,168,0007T ° % &
BRERNREBHE —FE2=F5
B A% A LAR2026F3 831 H 5
ZBIAT{E °

B #E20164F # i - 36,440,00017
ERE((BREBRE]) BERR
B IEERRAER H F123,650,000
HHBERBRE] HERE -
i £ $215,560,00017 7 #E B iE 2 1%
F A T IE2014F 5% R E AR B

B o
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EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
(Continued)

(a)

Employees’ Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The number and weighted average exercise

ARE SRR B EE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBBREPI - LARKEIIR)

23 LUBREEEYLUROAERBOLR
(&)

(a) 1EEBRESS (F)
BREHE RNEFHITEEN

prices of share options are as follows: I
2018
20185
Weighted

average Number of

exercise price options

IR ITEE BREHA

HKD ’000

BT T’

Outstanding at 1 January 2018 R2018F1 A1 H MARITE 4.85 64,562
Exercised during the year FRITE 4,32 (1,581)
Forfeited during the year FERRIK 4.16 (8,018)
Outstanding at 31 December 2018 M2018F12 431 H M ARITE 4.97 54,963
Exercisable at 31 December 2018 72018412 A31 B AJ1T1E 5.39 37,271

The weighted average share price at the date of
exercise for share options exercised during the
year was HKD8.39 (2017: HKD7.07).

The share options outstanding at 31 December
2018 had an exercise price of HKD6.64 or
HKD4.01 (831 December 2017: HKD6.64 or
HKD4.01) and a weighted-average remaining
contractual life of 6.5 years (31 December 2017:
7.6 years).

The Group recognised share option expenses
of RMB8,490,000 during the year ended 31
December 2018 (2017: RMB21,187,000).

RERITEBRES B MEFES
i% (& %&8.39% T (20174 : 7.07/%
JC) °

R2018% 128318 @ M A ITHIE
MEHETTEE B6.648L8k4.0158 T
(20175128318 : 6.64/8 7T =
4.0187T) - MEFHFHREDOF
HA A6.5% (20174128318 : 7.6
F) o

& Z2018F12A8318 It & E -
AEEBEBRBEREBRARK
8,490,0007T (20174 : A R #
21,187,0007T) °
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(BRmHERBEI - LARKEIIR)

23 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 23 LRBRESZFEVYLUROGCBERAOGTR

(Continued) (&)
(a) Employees’ Share Option Scheme (Continued) (a) {EEBRESS (&)
(i) The terms and conditions of the 2016 (i) 20165 H A IR EL (& (1A
Grant are as follows: T 8
Number Contractual
Tranche of options life of
Date of grant number granted Vesting period options
ERLEB BREMN
B8 il REZE HEH BREH

Options granted to employees:

R EENERE

1 April 2016 Tranche 1 12,600,000 1 year after the date of grant 10 years
2016F4A1H S8t R B#®R1F 105

1 April 2016 Tranche 2 12,600,000 2 years after the date of grant 10 years
20164718 Foft BB #%2E 106

1 April 2016 Tranche 3 16,800,000 3 years after the date of grant 10 years
2016F4 H1H F34t & B H%3E 105

Options granted to directors:

KTESHNERE

1 April 2016 Tranche 1 600,000 1 year after the date of grant 10 years
2016F4A1H S8t RHBH®RIF 104

1 April 2016 Tranche 2 600,000 2 years after the date of grant 10 years
2016F4A1H Hot BB H%2F 105

1 April 2016 Tranche 3 800,000 3 years after the date of grant 10 years
20164 H1H E3Ht i B EE3EF 105

27 May 2016 Tranche 4 2,400,000 1 year after the date of grant 9.8 years
2016F5R27H a4t RHBH®RIF 9.8F

27 May 2016 Tranche 5 2,400,000 2 years after the date of grant 9.8 years
2016F5R27H 54t BB H%2F 9.8

27 May 2016 Tranche 6 3,200,000 3 years after the date of grant 9.8 years
201665H27H Fo6ht =i B EE3EF 9.8F

Total share options granted
FHBREAH 52,000,000
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23 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(Continued)

(a) Employees’ Share Option Scheme (Continued)

(ii)

Fair value of share options under the 2016
Grant and assumptions:

The fair value of services received in
return for the share options granted is
measured by reference to the fair value
of share options granted. The estimated
fair value of the share options granted
is measured based on a binomial tree
model. The contractual life of the share
options is used as an input into this
model. Expectations of early exercise are
incorporated into the binomial tree model.
Set out below are the fair value of share
options and assumptions.

e ISR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBBREPI - LARKEIIR)

23 LUBREEEYLUROAERBOLR
(&)

(a) EEBKRETSE (&)

(i) 20164 FHIE THRIEN A
AERRE :

PR PASR BRIR H B s A P 2 AR
BORAEDN2EMELE
Bz AR ERE - HHEE
NG AREBEDERZ
XEREGE - BEREAD
FHEU BT RES R
WABUE - IRAITTIER TR
E AL = R - TX
HIBERENAAEBERR

Tranche number

#3

1 2 3 4 5 6

Fair value at HEAARE

measurement (&)

date (HKD) 1.73 1.87 1.98 1.71 1.85 1.97
Share price (HKD) RE (Bx) 3.99 3.99 3.99 4.02 4.02 4.02
Exercise price (HKD) {7£(8 (&7t) 4.01 4.01 4.01 4.01 4.01 4.01
Expected volatility BERE 56.71%  56.71%  56.71%  5599%  55.99%  55.99%
Expected option life  TEHARERRIEE R 10years 10years 10years 98years 98years 9.8 years
104 105 106 9.8 9.8% 9.8%
Dividend yield [igsR:d 1.23% 1.23% 1.23% 1.23% 1.23% 1.23%
Risk-free rate mR R 1.61% 1.61% 1.61% 1.72% 1.72% 1.72%
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=AEHERN - UARKIITR)

23 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 23 AU RERAH L LR H B ER MK
(Continued) (&)
(a) EEBREHE (F)

(a) Employees’ Share Option Scheme (Continued)

(iii)  Fair value of the Replaced Share Options
under the 2014 Grant and assumptions:

The fair value of the Replaced Share
Options and the incremental fair value
of the Replacing Share Options were
RMB26,422,000 and RMB30,472,000
respectively. The incremental fair value
of the Replacing Share Options was the
difference between the fair value of the
36,440,000 share options under the 2016
Grant and the fair value of the Replaced
Share Options, both at the respective date
of grant of the share options under the 2016
Grant. The fair value of the Replaced Share
Options were estimated as at the date of
replacement, using a binomial tree model,
taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which those options were granted. Set
out below are the fair value of the Replaced
Share Options and assumptions.

(iii)

2014 F R HTE N SR ER
EHAREREBR

WERERENAABRS
REBIHER Q2 EIEIE D B
B ANR#26,422,0007T &2 A
R#30,472,0007C ° B
BRHERY A fp B IR B 20165F
¥ H 18 36,440,000 B8 %
R A BB R AR
MARBEZHENZERE DA
BEHR2016FHEBE NS
RiERHEBE - RER
HE - EZREHBEREDN
BRI IEG% - BB REBRR
R A R EER A = XA
flETSH o TXETIWER
BIREN AT ERRE -

Fair value at measurement date (HKD) 1.32 ~ 1.45
AEHAAE (BI)

Share price (HKD) 3.99
IRE (B7T)

Exercise price (HKD) 6.64
1768 (BT)

Expected volatility 54.68%
TEHRK 1B

Expected option life 8 years
T8 HAfE AR e F HR 8%
Expected dividend yield 1.23%
TRHIR B

Risk-free rate 1.51%

R o M) =R

The expected volatility is based on the
historic volatility (calculated based on the
weighted average remaining life of the
share options), adjusted for any expected
changes to future volatility based on
publicly available information. Expected
dividends are based on historical
dividends. Changes in the subjective input
assumptions could materially affect the fair
value estimate.
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EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Employees’ Share Option Scheme (Continued)
(iii) Fair value of the Replaced Share Options
under the 2014 Grant and assumptions:

(Continued)

Share options were granted under service
conditions and non-market performance
conditions. These conditions had not
been taken into account in the grant date
fair value measurement of the services
received. There was no market conditions
associated with the share option grants.

Employees’ Share Award Scheme

On 21 July 2014, the board of directors of the
Company approved the adoption of a share
award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”)
under which shares of the Company (the
“Awarded Shares”) may be awarded to selected
employees (the “Selected Employees”) in
accordance with the provisions of the Share
Award Scheme and the nominal value of the
shares awarded under the Share Award Scheme
shall not exceed 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company from time to time.

Unless terminated earlier by the board of
directors in accordance with the rules of the
Share Award Scheme, the Share Award Scheme
will be valid and effective for a term of 10 years
starting on 21 July 2014. A trust has been set up
and fully funded by the Company for the purpose
of purchasing, administrating and holding the
Company'’s shares for the Share Award Scheme.

When a Selected Employee has satisfied all
vesting conditions, which might include service
and/or performance conditions, specified by the
board of directors of the Company at the time
of making the award and become entitled to the
shares of the Company forming the subject of
the award, the trustee shall transfer the relevant
Awarded Shares to that employee at no cost.
The Selected Employee however is not entitled
to receive any income or distribution, such as
dividend derived from the unvested Awarded
Shares allocated to him/her.

ARE SRR B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRSHEEAIN - LARBIITR)

23 LDUBREZEYURGCAEBROIR
(#%&)

(a) EEBKRESS (F)

(iii) 20145 HIE T B R B
EHARBERRE : (&)

B A 7 5 R A 1 T 3
SRR T o 1%
FEPES SR £ A B IR A0 8
B AR EEHE - B
E 2 % U3 4 5 T 0
o

BEERMDERTE

MR2014E7H218 » AAFEES
HOERM—BR D REE 2 ([
REERETE]) - B ATARIER (D 52
B smRERTRTREE ([#
EEE!]) ARAHKRD ([EER
7 1) - BRp SRR E T 2R A%
MEETSBBEARRTREEET
BEZAHI10% o

(b)

BRIERE B RIERD BRI EA
RMABERRIE - BOEEENE
WERHE 5201447 A21H L5t AHA
10F « ARRIEKI —IA{E7EI1R
HEWES - STHERE B
MIFA AR B RD EZEEHE T A%

{/\ ®

W ERENARNAREFTENR
HEBRIEENMERBIESE (7
REREREEHRBENE) LF
BEABEKERNAQA RN - A
AR %R B R RE
o BAWEUERZER - AW - %
B 8 ERWEUEAIBMARD K -
10 E 7 2 o B9 K 55 8 22D A {0 P
EEMKE -
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRmHERBEI - LARKEIIR)

23 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 23
(Continued)

(b) Employees’ Share Award Scheme (Continued)

The Awarded Shares granted under the Share
Award Scheme on 7 May 2015 were vested
or forfeited by the end of 31 December 2016.
Therefore, no share award expense was
recognised during the year ended 31 December
2018 (2017: Nil).

Details of the Awarded Shares vested under the
Share Award Scheme are set out below:

DURESEELIURDHERN TR
(&)

(b) REERGEBTS (&)

% {7 22 B 5+ B 18~ M20155F5 A7
H & W & 2B AR (0 B 720164512
A31B & RATFH BRI o #utt -
H £2018F12A31B I F E © #
EmERRMNDEZEE A (20174 :
/) o

Betn £2RhA 8178 T 2 57 B Y SR B i
MEFBEHNTX

Number of
Awarded
Shares Vested
EEEER
R #E

’000

TR

At 31 December 2018 and 2017 MR20184F K 2017F 12 A31H 302

Details of the treasury shares held under the

RIB I BB T 845 A W BT It

Share Award Scheme are set out below: BENTX :
Average No. of
purchase shares
price held Value of shares
ARG
FHBEE BB R EE
HKD ’000 HKD’000 RMB’000
BT TR FET AR®TR
At 31 December M2018%5 20174
2018 and 2017 128318 5.68 19,698 111,854 88,642
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Continued)

(b)

24 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a)

Employees’ Share Award Scheme (Continued) (b)

At 31 December 2018, 19,798,000 ordinary
shares (2017: 19,798,000 shares) were held
by the trustee under the Share Award Scheme,
among which 100,000 shares in respect of the
Awarded Shares vested as at 31 December 2018
were held on behalf of certain employees (2017:
100,000 shares), while the remaining 19,698,000
shares (2017: 19,698,000 shares) were held on

behalf of the Company.

Current taxation in the consolidated statement (a)

of financial position represents:

(BRABEHI -

(&)

M B 47

AAREIITR)

DUREEELIURDHERN TR

BERMDEBTE (&)

R2018F12831H » 7 AR &
B fn 22 B aT £ #5519,798,0004% &
B AR (20174 : 19,798,000% A%
) - EFRR20186 128318 E 5
B 1) 228 A% 15 A9 100,0008% & K &
= TEEHA (20174 : 100,000
+ if1 £ £#219,698,0008% f%
MAIREKRARQAFAH (20174F -

19,698,000A% A% 17 ) °

24 HREMBRRERANAEH

wRE R IR R A Y BN B IR IS

2018 2017

20185 20174

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T ARETTT

At 1 January R1A1H 95,336 62,133

Provision of PRC income tax FRFBEFTSHEE

for the year 130,068 127,354
Over-provision for PRC income BEFENPREAEE

tax in respect of prior years FRRERE (5,277) (554)

PRC income tax paid during the year FREfHBEATEH (120,635) (93,597)

At 31 December R12A318 99,492 95,336
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EEAIN - LAREIITR)
24 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 24 HEUBKRRANFAEH (&)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) CEIRELHEBEERER:
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) RERE B IS AR N R A TR A IR LT
recognised in the consolidated statement of BEE /(AR WAKIMHREF
financial position and the movements during the WEET -
year are as follows:
Withholding
tax on future Fair value
dividend adjustment
income Provisions from Intra group
Deferred tax assets/ RETHEENEL from PRC Unused and business  unrealised
(liabilities) arising from: ~ #E&E /(&f8) . subsidiaries tax losses* accruals  acquisition profits Total
REPERE
DAXRKRE  KBABE BER  EBUER £EBK
gz WRIH B EER  ANERE 2R 57 st
RMB’000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTRE AR%Tr AR%Tr ARETR ARETR AR%T:x
At 1 January 2017 R2017%1A18 (40,850) 144 18,190 (90,238) 1418 (111,336)
(Charged)/credited to (%) / s ABH
profit or loss (17,153) 285 16,095 5,191 (780) 3,638
At 31 December 2017 and 120175128318 K
1 January 2018 20181518 (58,00) 429 34,285 (85,047) 638 (107,698
(Charged)/credited to (1B / st AB&
profit or loss - 1,207 (819) 5,195 - 5,583
At 31 December 2018 R2018%125318 (58,003) 1,636 33,466 (79,852) 638 (102,115)
Deferred tax assets are recognised on unused U EERBEBEEDRASEET

tax losses of certain PRC subsidiaries of the
Group. They are now progressing to their
normal operation stage and are deriving profits.
Accordingly, it is considered probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available in the
future to utilise their unused tax losses before
they expire. As at 31 December 2018, tax losses
of RMB9,752,000 will expire from 2019 to 2023.
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AN =
e M ERERMEE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B BHEIERIN » UARKEHIR)
24 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 24 BREMEBERRARANFAEH (&)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)
(c) Reconciliation to the consolidated statement (c) HAEFBRRRNYER
of financial position
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AREET T
Net deferred tax assets RERE AR R IER A
recognised in the consolidated EETIR B E)FE
statement of financial position 35,102 34,714
Net deferred tax liabilities RERE HIEARR R ERA
recognised in the consolidated EEFIR B EFRE
statement of financial position (137,217) (142,412)
(102,115) (107,698)
(d) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised: (d) REBWECEHAER
As at 31 December 2018, deferred tax liabilities N20185F12A318 © I K # &
of RMB125,419,000 (31 December 2017: HBAR A EEMNARE
RMB71,687,000) in respect of temporary 1,254,186,0007T (20174 : AKH
differences relating to the undistributed profits 716,863,0007t) & B ) H B
of subsidiaries amounted to RMB1,254,186,000 MEEMNECHBERABAR®K
(2017: RMB716,863,000) were not recognised 125,419,0007T (2017412 A31
as the Company controls the dividend policy of H: AR®71,687,0007T) © Jy M
these subsidiaries and it has been determined RARRZEFZEHRE AR MRS
that those profits will not be distributed in the B - WEIRFE R A AR BRI
foreseeable future. FIREZE R -
25 CAPITAL, RESERVE AND DIVIDENDS 25 EX - RERKRE

(a)

Movement in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and
closing balances of each component of the
Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Details of the changes in the Company’s
individual components of equity between the
beginning and the end of the year are set out
below:

REARBONEES

AEEGFE RSN S @EAKE DR
HY) R R A R T RO B BR B R 4R
EREEHR - AAAERAER
ARED R FINRFERZEHE
FHBER X

(a)
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=AEHERN - UARKIITR)

25 CAPITAL, RESERVE AND DIVIDENDS (Continued)

25 EBX- FEERRE (&)

(a) Movement in components of equity (Continued) (a) ERAKPONED (&
Treasury
shares held
under Share
Share Share Other Capital Award Accumulated
capital premium reserves reserve Scheme losses Total
RERGRE
FiE 2
s e Rttt BARRE HERR ZithE gt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB’000
ARETT  ARETn  ARETn  ARMTrR  ARETn  ARETn ARETR
note 25(c)  note 25(d)(i) note 25(d)(iv) note 25(d)(iii)  note 23(h)
WeEos(c) M) MEsd)v)  MEs(d)i)  ME23(b)
At 1 January 2017 Ro0171 A1H 76297 454130 %6472 104000 (88642  (11587) 890,700
Purchase and cancellation ~ £NEE kit
of own shares during EEG)
the year (11,436) (454,130) (40,150) - - - (505,716)
Dividends approved and paid 3t RE fHIRE = - (13231) - - - (173231)
Recognition of Employess'  EEREEEREHE
Share Option Scheme - - - 21,187 - - 21,187
Shares issuance BhELT 3,691 236,060 - - - - 239,751
Shares issued due to exercise BB I /771
of Share Option Scheme e 160 11212 = (3.879) - - 7493
Total comprehensive income A2 EW#EE
for the year - - - - - (13,99) (13,995)
At 31 December 2017 Ro0174128318 68650 247272 143091 121,398 (83642) (25582 466,189
At 1 January 2018 R2018E1A1R 68,652 247,212 143,091 121,398 (88,642) (25,582) 466,189
Dividends approved and paid 3t ERE (TEIRE - (68,043) - - - - (68,043)
Recognition of Employees’ TEEBRETE
Share Option Scheme - - - 8,490 - - 8,490
Shares issued due to exercise R MREHEI171E
of Share Option Scheme EL) 130 9,577 - (4,083) - - 5,624
Total comprehensive income ~ £R2EW#HE
for the year - - - - - (68,549) (68,549)
At 31 December 2018 #2018%12A31H 68,782 187,906 143,091 125,805 (88,642) (94,131) 342,811
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e ISR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBBREPI - LARKEIIR)

CAPITAL, RESERVE AND DIVIDENDS (Continued) 25 &% @ERRE (&)
(b) Dividends (b)

()

Dividends payable to equity
shareholders of the Company
attributable to the year

BRE
(i) FERENTE L el fEm KRR
=
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARETT

Interim dividend declared and BEEIR R A H E

paid per ordinary share A& 8 (20174 :

(2017: HKD0.096) 0.096/7T) - 66,059
Final dividend proposed after FRIZBEZRARE

the end of the year of IR ST E R

HKDO0.20 per ordinary share 0.207% 7T (20174 :

(2017: HKDO0.10) 0.10%7T) 146,288 68,943

146,288 135,002

Final dividend proposed after the end of
the year have not been recognised as
liabilities as at the end of the year.

FRIERZARIIE I &
RERKHERARAE -
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=AEHERN - UARKIITR)

25 CAPITAL, RESERVE AND DIVIDENDS (Continued) 25 E& - f#ERRKRE (&)

(b) Dividends (Continued) (b) BE (&)
(i)  Dividends payable to equity (i) E—HEKEEENELEE
shareholders of the Company wBREHRE  REAHE
attributable to the previous financial Rt

year, approved and paid during the year

2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARET T

Final dividend in respect of the F—UBEERE

previous financial year, RS - ERFANE

approved and paid during ol R F 2R

the year of HKD0.10 per L iEAR0.10/% 7T

ordinary share (2017: HKDO0.05) (20174 : 0.05/8 L) 68,943 35,724
Special dividend approved AF RUIERE A R S+

and paid during the year SOESHEINIS

(2017: HKDO.10) (20174 : 0.10%7T) - 71,448

68,943 107,172
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25 CAPITAL, RESERVE AND DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(c) Share capital

()

(ii)

Issued share capital

e ISR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBBREPI - LARKEIIR)

BR - BERRE (£)
(c) mB’=R
(i) EZTRAE

2018
20185
Nominal Nominal
value of value of
Number of fully paid fully paid
shares shares shares
RO EE BRROEE HEROEE
’000 HKD’000 RMB’000
TR THET ARBTR
Ordinary shares, ERITRAR
issued and fully paid: TER :
As at 1 January 2018 20181 A1H 873,610 87,361 68,652
Shares issued due E R Sl TR
to exercise of Share 21T B9 10 (i)
Option Scheme (ii) 1,581 158 130
As at 31 December 720184 12H31H
2018 875,191 87,519 68,782

The ordinary shares of the Company have
a par value of HKDO0.10 per share.

Shares issued due to exercise of share
options granted under the Share Option
Scheme

During the year 2018, share options
were exercised to subscribe for a total of
1,581,000 ordinary shares in the Company
at a consideration of HKD6,835,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB5,624,000),
of which RMB130,000 and RMB5,494,000
were credited to share capital and the
share premium account respectively.
RMB4,083,000 was transferred from the
capital reserve to the share premium
account in accordance with policy set out in
note 1(s)(ii).

o

ARRERABEEEAEER
0.10% 7T

(i) FEBRETBRLBIKE
TRETRITHIR G

R2018F W + FE R 1 E 1T
8 - LA X 186,835,000/ JT
(FEER K AR5,624,000
L) RBAAREARA
$#£1,581,0008% + H # A
R #130,000T & A R #
5,494,0007T 2 2 Bl &F A B
KRR EERR o RIFH T
1) (iFTHMEER - AR
4,083,0007T 2 B & A f# &
ERERMIRER -
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=AEHERN - UARKIITR)

25 CAPITAL, RESERVE AND DIVIDENDS (Continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves
(i) Share premium

The share premium represents the
difference between the par value of the
shares of the Company and proceeds
received from the issuance of the shares
of the Company.

Under the Companies Law (Revised)
of the Cayman lIslands, the funds in the
share premium account of the Company
are distributable to the shareholders of
the Company provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is
proposed to be distributed, the Company
will be in a position to pay off its debts
as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

(ii)  Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising from
the translation of the financial information
of operations with functional currency
other than RMB.

(iii) Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the portion
of the grant date fair value of unexercised
share options granted to employees of
the Company that has been recognised
in accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for share-based payments in note

1(s)(ii).
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BEX - RERKRE (&)
RENEERAR

(d)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

B aE

R 17 3% (B #5 AN A B B 0 A (B
B 5 21T AR B AR 10 W B AY
FresBr MrZ% -

BRERSHEARE (K&
71) 0 AN AR B R
MESAHYIKTARER
R HEEHEREOIKKREE
Bi& - ARBIHBEBRENE
EEN B EBBR D H
HERS

ELFE

EXFEHEERREAARE
PASMNEOTh B & 6 51 (B ) 275
B BT 76 & B R E A I P S
MEZEER

N1

B R AR EE1(s) (i)
FAUABR A7 23 EE B B 15 SR P 5%
MZEHBE  RETAR
AEEMARITEERED E
ROFELBHRAEZE
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(d)
(iv)

(v)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CAPITAL, RESERVE AND DIVIDENDS (Continued)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

Other reserves

The other reserves of the Group represent
the difference between (a) the nominal
value of share capital of Guangzhou
Consun; and (b) the nominal value of
the shares issued by the Company in
exchange under the reorganisation of the
Group completed on 24 December 2012.

The other reserves of the Company
represent the difference between (a) the
consolidated net assets of the subsidiaries
acquired; and (b) the nominal value of
the shares issued by the Company in
exchange under the reorganisation of the
Group on 24 December 2012.

The other reserves of the Company are
distributable. The dividend appropriation
made through other reserves in the
Company’s financial statements is
recorded as through retained earnings in
the consolidated financial statements of
the Group.

PRC statutory reserves

Pursuant to the articles of association
of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries now
comprising the Group, appropriations to
the PRC statutory reserves were made
at a certain percentage of profit after
taxation determined in accordance with
the accounting rules and regulations
of the PRC, until the PRC statutory
reserves was equal to 50% of the entity’s
registered capital. The percentage for this
appropriation was decided by the directors
of the respective subsidiaries. This
reserve fund can be utilised in setting off
accumulated losses or increasing capital
of the subsidiaries and is non-distributable
other than in liquidation.
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AAREIITR)

CAPITAL, RESERVE AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

()

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
(v) PRC statutory reserves (Continued)

During 2018, Guangzhou Consun and
Yulin Pharmaceutical appropriated 10%
of their net profit to the PRC statutory
reserves. The PRC statutory reserves
balances of Inner Mongolia Consun had
reached 50% of their registered capital,
and no further appropriation was made for
the year ended 31 December 2018. Other
PRC subsidiaries of the Group had made
losses during 2017 or had accumulated
losses, no appropriation was made
accordingly.

Distributability of reserves

As at 31 December 2018, the aggregate amount
of distributable reserves of the Company,
calculated in accordance with the Companies
Law of the Cayman lIslands, amounted to
RMB274,029,000 (2017: RMB397,537,000).

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can
continue to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the
level of risk and by securing access to finance at
a reasonable cost.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the
basis of an adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio. For
this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total
debt (which includes interest-bearing loans and
borrowings) plus unaccrued proposed dividends,
less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted capital
comprises all components of equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBHEIEAEIN  UARBIIR)
CAPITAL, RESERVE AND DIVIDENDS (Continued) 25 ¥BZ& - #BRERE (&)
(f)  Capital management (Continued) (h EBFXE=E#E)
During the year, the Group’'s strategy was FA - AEBORE S EHERRE
to maintain the debt-to-equity ratio at a A b R M B A AN AR B B TR I TR
level considered reasonable by the Group’s 2EZAMAMRAHEEEIKTF o
management from time to time with reference RTHEFHBARBLLE - NEHT
to the prevailing market conditions. In order EEERERN TRAERRNKRES
to maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group may B BITHRKEENEBRE -
adjust the amount of dividends paid to equity
shareholders, issue new shares or raise new debt
financing.
As at 31 December 2018, the Group presented R2018F 128310 - A& E £ 7
adjusted net asset, thus net debt-to-capital ratio TRAREESE ARV EGTHE
was not calculated. The Group’s adjusted net SFEEE AR X o REEM2018
asset at 31 December 2018 was as follows: FI2ABMAAREEFEN
T
2018 2017
2018% 20174
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
it AR®Tr ARETT
Current liabilities: mENEE
- Loans and borrowings — BERRERK 21 147,202 193,621
Non-current liabilities: FEREAE
- Loans and borrowings — BERRERK 21 245,336 374,483
Total debt RIETS 392,538 568,104
Add: Proposed dividends o BRARE 25(b) 146,288 68,943
Less: Cash and cash equivalents ¥ : R4 RIRESZEEAR 19  (1,269,746) (989,565)
Adjusted net asset HEEEFE 730,920 352,518

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
are subject to externally imposed capital
requirements, except that banking facilities
granted to certain subsidiaries are subject
to the fulfilment of covenants relating to the
subsidiaries’ balance sheet ratios (note 21).
The Group will actively and regularly monitor its
compliance to such covenants.

ARAREEFMERRBAZR
RONEBIEINE B AR E R - ERTH
THEBARMNRITHEARETEZ
EMBRAEABBERLEEG/EN
g (M E21) - REEKEE K
EHEEEETRERHENIER
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit and liquidity risks arises in the

normal course of the Group’s business. The Group’s

exposure to these risks and the financial risk

management policies and practices used by the Group

to manage these risks are described below.

(a)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty
will default on its contractual obligations resulting
in a financial loss to the Group. The Group’s
credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
receivables. The Group’s exposure to credit risk
arising from cash and cash equivalents and bills
receivable is limited because the counterparties
are banks and financial institutions, for which
the Group considers to have low credit risk.
Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on
an ongoing basis.

Trade receivables

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer rather than the industry or country
in which the customers operate and therefore
significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure to
individual customers. At the end of the reporting
period, 24% (2017: 25%) and 58% (2017: 48%)
of the total trade receivables were due from the
Group’s largest customer and the five largest
customers respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s
past history of making payments when due and
current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which
the customer operates. Trade receivables are
due within 30-90 days from the date of billing.
Debtors with balances that are more than 12
months past due are requested to settle all
outstanding balances before any further credit
is granted. Normally, the Group does not obtain
collateral from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix.
As the Group’s historical credit loss experience
does not indicate significantly different loss
patterns for different customer segments, the loss
allowance based on ageing status is not further
distinguished between the Group’s different
customer bases.

ARE SRR B EE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 26 BERBREEREMIANQDIAE
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) (%)
(a)  Credit risk (Continued) (a) FEERK (&)
Trade receivables (Continued) EZEWE (&)
The following table provides information about T &R R20185F 12318 B
the Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for REBEFEERRIARE S EWHKRIE
trade receivables as at 31 December 2018: WIEHEEBENER
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FEHBAE IRMEAAE BERE
% RMB’000 RMB’000

% ARBTR AR®T T

Current BN ER 1.00% 452,738 (4,252)
1-90 days past due #E1Z90H 2.00% 4,790 (92)
91-180 days past due #EA91£180H 3.00% 139,505 (4,321)
181-365 days past due #EI1812365H 5.00% 15,985 (1,281)
1-2 years past due BHA1 =2 20.00% 1,314 (263)
2-3 years past due BHEOE=3F 50.00% 80 (40)
More than 3 years BHASBE LA |
past due 100.00% 334 (334)
614,746 (10,583)
Expected loss rates are based on actual loss TBHERETIRBERBESFHNER
experience over the past 5 years. These rates BRELRITESL - ZFLETIK
are adjusted to reflect differences between B DA I B P LR S R SR BHR B R
economic conditions during the period over KOBAR S« BRI R DA R AR [
which the historic data has been collected, FE USSR TE 9 TR BR AT 48 HA P9 /0 A AR
current conditions and the Group’s view of W2 EEER o

economic conditions over the expected lives of
the receivables.
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)

Comparative information under HKAS 39

Prior to 1 January 2018, an impairment loss
was recognised only when there was objective
evidence of impairment (see note 1(I)(i)(B) -
policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018). At 31
December 2017, trade debtors of RMB11,058,000
were individually determined to be impaired. The
ageing analysis of trade debtors that were not
considered to be impaired was as follows:

e ISR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBBREPI - LARKEIIR)

26 I HKEREERESEBMIENAAE

(&)
(a)

FERR (&)

RIEE B EF KR 3955 EH # aT
20181 A1H Al © BB & B E
REBRENEBHIERER (B
22 B Bt 5E1(1)(i)(B) — i BB 742018
F1H18 A1 B B 5K) » R20174F
12A318 ' BEF R HIEARK
11,058,0007T B & Bl #EsRR (B © &
WRABBRENE S EUERRA R
BROMMT

2017

20174

RMB’000

ARET T

Neither past due nor impaired R ER IR AR E 539,496
1-90 days past due HH1Z=90H 901
91-180 days past due #HI91E180H 8,777
181-365 days past due #HA181%2365H 16,113
1-2 years past due BHR1 =24 323
More than 2 years past due BE2F LA -
26,114

565,610

Receivables that were neither past due nor
impaired related to a wide range of customers for
whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired
related to a number of independent customers
that had a good track record with the Group.
Based on past experience, management believed
that no impairment allowance was necessary in
respect of these balances as there had been
no significant change in credit quality and the
balances were still considered fully recoverable.

R 380 5 AR R B F) FE LK R TR L A B
I Ef RSN B EFP AR

BB HBERREN RIS RE
THEAREEGFRFERLENSE
MEP - REBBERLR  BEER
RBAZFERIEL R ERE -
REEERYBEREHEBME
SRR R 22K E -
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)

(%)
(a)

Comparative information under HKAS 39

(Continued)

Movement in the loss allowance account in
respect of trade receivables during the year is as

follows:

26 HHXEREERESEBMIENAAE

FERR (&)
REEBE a1 ERFE39HEH HY 7
LEBREH (&)

4 7O 5 U HROE 598 8 1B
BT :

(b)

2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBFIT
Balance at 31 December 2017 RIEEE 2T 4R E 3957
under HKAS 39 =HE - R20179F12831H
B 45 1,476 3,565
Impact on initial application of E/AFEEHE/%QMX%&%’ Al

HKFRS 9 (note 1(c)(i)) FORMFZE (MizE1(c)()) - -
Balance at 1 January BB 1H & 1,476 3,565
Amounts written off during the year  ERX#f$4HI & 58 (650) =
Impairment losses recognised/ FRABHER,/(BE) &

(reversed) during the year BEEE 9,757 (2,089)
Balance at 31 December M12 831 BRI &R 10,583 1,476
Liquidity risk (b) REELEK
Individual operating entities within the Group ﬂXEIW{%U%%‘f’%ﬁfE\AXQZ
are responsible for their own cash management, ReER  BREEESBMRIERTN

including the short term investment of cash
surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demands, subject to approval

206 CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED EREX/XESEEABRAA

by the Company’s board when the borrowings
exceed certain predetermined levels of authority.
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its
liquidity requirements, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and readily realisable
marketable securities and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.

?fxéf&ii EERNENAREESS
2 - EMEFRB L E T IRE R EK
¥ ABEARRESRS CHET
EE - ARBCHRAEREE
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EXEW”?E@M%%Z}EE% mﬁa
BRE  UENEREHEDESS
Sk o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following tables show the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the reporting
period of the Group’s financial liabilities (exclude
receipts in advance), which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual
rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the
end of the reporting period) and the earliest date
the Group can be required to pay:

e ISR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBBREPI - LARKEIIR)

26 I HKEREERESEBMIENAAE
(&)

(b)

nRBEERR (&)

TRIBAEENTEEE (AR
FERRIN) RBEHARORHRA L
B DREBANANRRESR (B
BRRaNN RS (MEFE) BR
EHARMBRTHRFENF BN
) EAREEAXNNREEHZ
5l :

2018
20184
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BHRARRELR
More than
Within 1 year but
1 year or less than Carrying
on demand 2 years Total amount
15Rs  BB1FE
RER DR2F st BREE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTRT AR®TR AR¥TR AR¥TR
Loans and borrowings B kER 160,981 248,738 409,719 392,538
Trade and other payables 5 R EAMEN B 744,707 - 744,707 744,707
905,688 248,738 1,154,426 1,137,245
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EEAIN - LAREIITR)
26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 26 HXEBREERESMIANAAE
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) (&
(b)  Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) HREBELRAR (&)
2017
2017F
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BRRTRERR
More than More than
Within -~ 1yearbut 2 years but
1 year or less than less than Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years Total amount
1ER%  BBI1FE  BRFR
RER DRE DIREF a5t EHE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTE ARETT ARETT ARETR
Loans and borrowings BERRMER 208,359 150,376 236,507 595,242 568,104
Trade and other payables 25K EMENIA 675,502 = = 675,502 675,502
883,861 150,376 236,507 1,270,744 1,243,606
As shown in the above analysis, bank loans and W EXAEIR - AEEAHA
related interest expense of the Group amounting R #160,981,0007T B R 1T B 3 &
to RMB160,981,000 were due to be repaid during A B 5 X B 7220194 A 2| HA
2019. The short-term liquidity risk inherent in this B - AEXEHABEENEER
contractual maturity date was not significantly PFECRBNARERRTES A
changed after the reporting period. g o
(c) Interest rate risk (c) RA=E@EKE

208 CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED EREX/EXESEEABRAA

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or
future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The Group’s interest rate risk arises
primarily from borrowings from banks. Borrowings
issued at variable rates and at fixed rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk and fair
value interest rate risk respectively. The Group’s
interest rate profile as monitored by management
is set out in (i) below.

NMERBRS—EHTBTANAR
R SRR & 0t B Th 45 71 R 2 8 i )
BT IRE R o AN B A R E
REBRB|RITER - WEBF =X
KB EMEEHHERD RIS AL
BAAZRSRNERABRRRAE
FEER AREREEEEREN
M ERBRER T() °
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 26
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest
rate profile of the Group’s interest-bearing
borrowings at the end of the reporting

(BRBBREPI - LARKEIIR)

BHERAREEREMIANARE
(&)

(c) FEmB (&)
(i)  FEER

TRANAKENREHIR
FHEMERNMERER -

period.
2018 2017
20184 20174
Effective Effective
interest interest
rates Amount rates Amount
BB FIE 5 BERFI= & F
% RMB’000 % RMB’000
% AR¥ETRT % ARETFIT
Fixed rate borrowings: EE&5 :
Bank loans RITEK - - 4.35% 100,000
Variable rate borrowings: ¥ E & :
Bank loans RITEXR 3.22% 392,538 3.19% 468,104
Total borrowings EE k] 392,538 568,104
Fixed rate borrowings JE B & FIG
as a percentage of B A
total borrowings Bkt 0% 18%
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=AEHERN - UARKIITR)

26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)
(ii)  Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2018, it is estimated
that a general increase/decrease of
100 basis points in interest rates, with
all other variable held constant, would
have decreased/increased the Group’s
profit after taxation and retained profits
by approximately RMB3,925,000 (2017:
RMB4,681,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates
the instantaneous change in the Group’s
profit after tax and retained profits that
would arise assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the end of
the reporting period and had been applied
to re-measure those financial instruments
held by the Group which expose the
Group to fair value interest rate risk at the
end of the reporting period. In respect of
the exposure to cash flow interest rate risk
arising from floating rate non-derivative
instruments held by the Group at the end
of the reporting period, the impact on the
Group’s profit after tax and retained profits
is estimated as an annualised impact
on interest expense or income of such a
change in interest rates.
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26 HHXEREERESEBMIENAAE
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Flzee 3R T#H100ME
I MArBE Mg
T & B R & 5 T
RARB = TR A g
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il BRE DB RS E
B R A5 18 a8 1) B2 AR B8 gt A1) B]
EREENRKZE 24K
RN R BB B e B R
£ WERARENFEAE
B R B A RS IR AR
SEmEEREAAENEERRD
TRTA - IAKREREE
HIRPI S B BN R IROTE
TREAMNBRS RN XER
mE - AEERRB &R &
REBNAXZETREH
M= BB HFE LN B h
AR B AR



26

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d)

Currency risk

As the Group’s principal activities are carried out
in the PRC, the Group’s transactions are mainly
denominated in Renminbi, which is not freely
convertible into foreign currencies. All foreign
exchange transactions involving Renminbi must
take place through the People’s Bank of China
or other institutions authorised to buy and sell
foreign exchange. The exchange rates adopted
for the foreign exchange transactions are the
rates of exchange quoted by the People’s Bank
of China that are determined largely by supply
and demand.

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
give rise to cash balances that are denominated
in a foreign currency, i.e. a currency other than
the functional currency of the operations to which
the transactions relate. The currencies giving rise
to this risk are primarily Hong Kong dollars and
United States dollars.

(i) Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s
and the Company’s exposure at the end
of reporting period to currency risk arising
from recognised assets or liabilities
denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the entity to which
they relate. For presentation purposes,
the amounts of the exposure are shown in
RMB translated using the spot rate at the
period end date. Differences resulting from
the translation of the financial statements
of foreign operations into the Group’s
presentation currency are excluded.

e ISR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=AEHERN - UARKIITR)

26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 26 HMEERKREERESEMIANAAE
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) (%)
(d)  Currency risk (Continued) (d) EH¥EkE (&)
(i)  Exposure to currency risk (Continued) () EHHEERE (Z)
Exposure to foreign currencies
SRR
(expressed in Renminbi)
(AARYSIR)
2018 2017
20185 201746

Hong United Hong United
Kong States Kong States
Dollars Dollars Dollars Dollars
BT EY BT X
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETR AR¥TR ARETE ARETT
Trade and other receivables & 5 & H it fE U T8 - - 2,873 -
Cash and cash equivalents  H& ML ZEEE 15,384 2,858 110,830 2,720
Trade and other payables B 5 REMERNTIE - - (3,187) -
Loans and borrowings EARER (392,538) - (468,104) -

Gross and net exposure ERREERARES

arising from recognised MR B B SOF R

assets and liabilities (377,154) 2,858 (357,588) 2,720

212 CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED EREHX/EXESEEABRAA



26

(d)
(ii)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Expressed in Renminbi

e ISR M

unless otherwise indicated)

(BRSHEEAIN - LARBIITR)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 26 HMEEBEERESRMIANAAE
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) (&)
Currency risk (Continued) (d) EXE@RKE (&)
Sensitivity analysis (i) BEEZH
The following table indicates the TR AT in A 5 B 3 E
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit NA E AR B A A Y B SR R
after tax and retained profits that would ZBBEMES  WREFA
arise if foreign exchange rates to which the HEMEmZsgErge
Group has significant exposure at the end SEMBRT BN RRE R
of the reporting period had changed at FIRTgE L3R 2 BNRs £ ) -
that date, assuming all other risk variables
remained constant.
2018 2017
20184 20174
Effect on Effect on
Increase profit after Increase profit after
in foreign tax and in foreign tax and
exchange retained exchange retained
rate profit rate profit
HERH® Mz
R R AR E i A R AR
BEEXxEA HINTE EE A SHHNZE
Hong Kong Dollars BT 1% (3,772) 1% (3,576)
United States Dollars ETT 1% 29 1% 27

Results of the analysis as presented in the
above table represent an aggregation of
the instantaneous effects on each of the
Group entities’ profit after tax measured
in the respective functional currencies,
translated into Renminbi at the exchange
rate ruling at the end of the reporting
period for presentation purposes.
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRmHERBEI - LARKEIIR)

26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d)  Currency risk (Continued)
(ii)  Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the
change in foreign exchange rates had
been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to foreign currency
risk at the end of the reporting period,
including inter-company payables and
receivables within the Group which are
denominated in a currency other than
the functional currencies of the lender
or the borrower. The analysis excludes
differences that would result from the
translation of the financial statements
of foreign operations into the Group’s
presentation currency. The Group had
no significant foreign exchange exposure
as at 31 December 2017, as the cash
and cash equivalents held by the Group
denominated in the currency other than
Renminbi was insignificant.

(e) Fair value measurement

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured
at fair value

At 31 December 2018 and 31 December
2017, the Company has no significant
financial instruments accounted for using
fair value model.

(ii)  Fair value of other financial assets and
liabilities carried at other than fair value

The carrying amount of the Group’s
financial instruments carried at cost or
amortised cost were not materially different
from their fair value as at 31 December
2018 and 31 December 2017.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
IMKTg?E$¢i§§$Q§§§EBﬁt%jE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBBREPI - LARKEIIR)

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 27 BAREE
Capital commitments outstanding as at 31 December R2018F 12 A31 A I R 4R & M BB | K
2018 not provided for in the consolidated financial BERRBITERAEDT :

statements were as follows:

2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETTT

Contracted for EHED) 195,861 125,239
Authorised but not contracted for B EBRRETL 298,467 260,833
Total BiE 494,328 386,072

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 28 EAXBABAIRS

Key management personnel remuneration TEEEAEME
Remuneration for key management personnel of the REBTZEEABNME - BERAEA
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s RIEEXMHFIE (M6 EE) UKk
directors as disclosed in note 6 and certain of the & TR ES TR IE (WMEE7FT
highest paid employees as disclosed in note 7, is as $EE) HIWAT
follows:
2018 2017
2018% 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETTT

Salaries and other benefits e kEMmEF 32,307 27,081
Retirement scheme of AERFERIKET B

defined contribution 116 98
Equity settled share-based VAR #E 45 B0 DA R A ATl

payment expenses EOENENE B3 1,795 5,882

34,218 33,061

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note BNt A T8 TR A (RKTFE4(b)) °
4(b)).
None of the above related party transactions falls under Wi P SR S E FTiRAIE14AE
the definition of connected transaction or continuing FTARAEMELZHRIEERETS °
connected transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRmHERBEI - LARKEIIR)

29 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES

The key sources of estimation uncertainty and critical
accounting judgments in applying the Group’s
accounting policies are described below.

(a) Impairments for goodwill and other intangible
assets — trademark

In considering the impairment losses that may
be required for goodwill and intangible assets —
trademark, recoverable amount of these assets
needs to be determined. The Group assesses
the recoverable amount of the Relevant CGU
using the value in use method by preparing a
discounted cash flow forecast derived from the
most recent financial forecast approved by the
management covering a five-year period. The
assessment of the recoverable amounts of the
Relevant CGU involves significant management
estimation and judgement, in particular in
determining the key assumptions adopted in the
cash flow forecast, which include future revenue,
future cost of sales, other operating expenses,
and the discount rate applied.

(b) Loss allowance for trade receivables

The Group estimates the loss allowances for
trade receivables by assessing the ECLs. This
requires the use of estimates and judgements.
ECLs are based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, and an assessment of
both the current and forecast general economic
conditions at the end of reporting period. Where
the estimation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will affect the carrying
amounts of trade receivables and thus the
impairment loss in the period in which such
estimate is changed. The Group keeps assessing
the expected credit loss of trade receivables
during their expected lives.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
IIV-\éﬁji%ﬁ%Mj.%I

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BrBBEIEEIN - UARKETITR)
COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL UNGIVETETE RS 3 O
POSITION
2018 2017
20184 20174
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HiaF AR¥T T ARETTT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment in subsidiaries RSB R RRERE 15 342,444 342,444
Total non-current assets FRBEEHE 342,444 342,444
Current assets REEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E MW GRIE 407,319 411,124
Cash and cash equivalents B FIReEMEER 19,663 199,694
Total current assets REBEEHAE 426,982 610,818
Current liabilities REEE
Loans and borrowings B M fEik 21 147,202 93,621
Other payables H b fEN B 34,077 18,969
Total current liabilities REBEARE 181,279 112,590
Net current assets REBEEFE 245,703 498,228
Total assets less current liabilities ZAEERASHEE 588,147 840,672
Non-current liabilities FRBERE
Loans and borrowings BERRER 21 245,336 374,483
Net Assets EEFE 342,811 466,189
Capital and reserves B HE 25(a)
Share capital [N 68,782 68,652
Reserves & 274,029 397,537
Total equity EREE 342,811 466,189
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=BEHI -

31

32

33

AAREIITR)

NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

(a) After the end of the reporting period, the
Company granted 63,000,000 share options to
certain directors and employees. The exercise
price of these share options was HKD4.476 per
share. The options will vest after one year to
three years from the date of grant and are then
exercisable on or before 1 January 2029.

(b) After the end of the reporting period, the
Company repurchased 3,212,000 shares of its
own ordinary shares through the Stock Exchange
at a total consideration of approximately
HKD15,581,000 (approximately RMB13,518,000).
The shares repurchased by the Company will be
cancelled in due course.

(c) After the end of the reporting period the directors
proposed a final dividend. Further details are
disclosed in note 25(b).

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS
9 at 1 January 2018. Under the transition methods
chosen, comparative information is not restated. Further
details of the changes in accounting policies are
disclosed in note 1(c).

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and
new standards which are not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2018 and which have not been
adopted in these financial statements. These include
the following which may be relevant to the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidat

ed Financial Statements

e ISR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 33
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED

BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR

ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 (Continued)

(BRBBREPI - LARKEIIR)

EZE2018F12H31H L FEC EME
M AREMRNIERT  HEARRENE
EEE (&)

Effective for
accounting
periods
beginning
on or after
RT3 B
= AEBAIREY
BT HBEXR

HKFRS 16, Leases
BB BRELAE 6% - AE

HK(IFRIC) 23, Uncertainty
over income tax treatments

HE (BRVBRERBERES) £235% - MRS TRENTEEE

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
BBV BREER2015F 2201 7F BBAFEUE

Amendments to HKAS 28,
Long-term interest in associates
and joint ventures
ER G ERIFE28 (BFIA)  RE R R AL hENRP#ERS

1 January 2019
2019F1A1H

1 January 2019
201951 H1H

1 January 2019
201951 H1H

1 January 2019
20191 H1H
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AAREIITR)

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 (Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments, new standards
and interpretations is expected to be in the period of
initial application. So far the Group has identified some
aspects of HKFRS 16 which may have a significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements. Further
details of the expected impacts are discussed below.
While the assessment has been substantially completed
for HKFRS 16, the actual impact upon the initial
adoption of this standard may differ as the assessment
completed to date is based on the information currently
available to the Group, and further impacts may be
identified before the standard is initially applied in
the Group’s interim financial report for the six months
ended 30 June 2019. The Group may also change its
accounting policy elections, including the transition
options, until the standard is initially applied in that
financial report.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in note 1(k), currently the Group classifies
leases into finance leases and operating leases and
accounts for the lease arrangements differently,
depending on the classification of the lease. The Group
enters into some leases as the lessor and others as the
lessee.

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly
on the way that lessors account for their rights and
obligations under a lease. However, once HKFRS 16
is adopted, lessees will no longer distinguish between
finance leases and operating leases. Instead, subject to
practical expedients, lessees will account for all leases
in a similar way to current finance lease accounting,
i.e. at the commencement date of the lease the lessee
will recognise and measure a lease liability at the
present value of the minimum future lease payments
and will recognise a corresponding “right-of-use”
asset. After initial recognition of this asset and liability,
the lessee will recognise interest expense accrued on
the outstanding balance of the lease liability, and the
depreciation of the right-of-use asset, instead of the
current policy of recognising rental expenses incurred
under operating leases on a systematic basis over the
lease term. As a practical expedient, the lessee can
elect not to apply this accounting model to short-term
leases (i.e. where the lease term is 12 months or less)
and to leases of low-value assets, in which case the
rental expenses would continue to be recognised on a
systematic basis over the lease term.

e ISR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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AAREIITR)

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting
as a lessee of leases for properties, plant and
equipment which are currently classified as operating
leases. The application of the new accounting model
is expected to lead to an increase in both assets and
liabilities and to impact on the timing of the expense
recognition in the statement of profit or loss over the
period of the lease.

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2019. As allowed by HKFRS
16, the Group plans to use the practical expedient to
grandfather the previous assessment of which existing
arrangements are, or contain, leases. The Group will
therefore apply the new definition of a lease in HKFRS
16 only to contracts that are entered into on or after the
date of initial application. In addition, the Group plans
to elect the practical expedient for not applying the new
accounting model to short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets.
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

The Group plans to elect to use the modified
retrospective approach for the adoption of HKFRS
16 and will recognise the cumulative effect of
initial application as an adjustment to the opening
balance of equity at 1 January 2019 and will not
restate the comparative information. At 31 December
2018 the Group’s future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases amount to
RMB910,000 for properties, the majority of which
is payable within 1-2 year after the reporting date.
The Group plans to elect the practical expedient
for not applying the new accounting model to such
short-term leases. Upon the initial adoption of HKFRS
16, the opening balances of lease liabilities and the
corresponding right-of-use assets will be adjusted
to RMB719,000 after taking account the effects of
discounting, as at 1 January 2019.

Other than the recognition of lease liabilities and
right-of-use assets, the Group expects that the transition
adjustments to be made upon the initial adoption of
HKFRS 16 will not be material. However, the expected
changes in accounting policies as described above
could have a material impact on the Group’s financial
statement from 2019 onwards.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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Five-Year Financial Summary

hEFEMBRE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
20184 20174 20164 20154 20144
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARETRT ARETT AR®Tr ARBTT ARETT
Revenue A 1,843,973 1,660,230 1,223,488 831,108 730,683
Gross Profit EF 1,384,426 1,228,395 911,023 670,566 571,767
Profit before taxation T B A 616,699 544 982 403,452 314,782 264,159
Income tax Frig st 119,208 123,162 83,795 65,093 52,959
Profit for the year F A A 497,491 421,820 319,657 249,689 211,200
Profit for the year ZAN/NET s
attributable to equity JEAG F R 7
shareholders of the
Company 465,353 396,242 307,526 249,689 211,200
Earnings per share FARAF)
(expressed in RMB Yuan (AERARET
per share) HR)
- basic — EX 0.54 0.46 0.32 0.25 0.21
— diluted — ¥ 0.53 0.46 0.32 0.25 0.21
Assets and liabilities BERAE
Non-current assets EMBNE E 1,500,883 1,387,366 1,369,050 957,703 266,412
Current assets MENE E 2,396,155 2,184,651 1,390,005 960,188 1,396,529
Current liabilities mEaE 999,153 970,233 546,731 229,350 178,247
Non-current liabilities EREAE 400,873 537,636 151,273 51,786 51,508
Net assets BESE 2,497,012 2,064,148 2,061,051 1,636,755 1,433,186
Capital and reserves B EE
Share Capital & AR 68,782 68,652 76,237 78,074 78,250
Reserves w1 2,088,437 1,678,036 1,684,257 1,558,681 1,354,936

Total equity attributable to 7R A T HEZE AR R
equity shareholders of il ke

the Company 2,157,219 1,746,688 1,760,494 1,636,755 1,433,186
Non-controlling interests ~ JEIZRRfEZS 239,793 317,460 300,557 = =
Total equity ERERS 2,497,012 2,064,148 2,061,051 1,636,755 1,433,186

The summary above does not form part of the audited A -2 NEKK BRSBTS ®RER B HRK 2
consolidated financial statements. % o
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CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED

FREEEgU

Headquarters in the PRC #EI#&EB :
71, Dongpeng Avenue, Eastern section, Guangzhou Economic and Technological Development District, Guangzhou, PRC
HEIEMNEMN BRI RERRREAE 71 5

Principal place of business in Hong Kong &8 EZE & i 2

22nd Floor, World-Wide House, 19 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong
BBEWET 19 RIRHAE 2212

Liaison office in Hong Kong BB &M AR :

Room 1102, Wing On Plaza, 62 Mody Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon
TUBERIE IS 62 SRk ZES 1102 =

Tel &E3F : (86) 20-82264529 Fax {&X : (86) 20-82261886
Website #8175 : www.chinaconsun.com E-mail €7 &% : ir@chinaconsun.com
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